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Chairman’s Statement

2013 - BIKEEIERZ 1 - BRI In 2013, the global economy saw feeble growth and
OB RN AR - 5B IEEREBT]  the Chinese economic momentum slowed down.
HRABFEFNBESHEIEEITER  Due to the exacerbated competition as a result
HoEmMERBAMERET o of structural overcapacity, certain products of the
¥ BRERKLEIRIE S RESE  fluorosilica industry was faced up with considerable
BRARI(IARRA] KIEE]) pricing pressure. Faced with such a grim operating
NEWB AT (5 [ AEE]) 58  environment, Dongyue Group Limited (the “Company”
REIBFVIREA [BI%EE - 8 or “Dongyue”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the
RN LB - BEIAREE  "Group’), adhering to its operating guidelines known
26 FRBEEARHA - BIFT - @ as “Innovation, Transformation and Organic Growth”
B REREEFEMNES - £1H  and riding on its advantages in scientific research,
RRETMDESEEXBHBEIS  innovation, brand and size built up over the last 26
TRETEBENRITFERA - years, managed to deliver a brilliant performance in

every key aspect in such an adverse environment,

which earned it the acknowledgment from the whole

industry:
RES Zhang Jianhong
FE Chairman

(—)ERHHE B EERRREXENE—D (I)  Further increase in product sales, market share and brand

B influence

20135 - RARBIER ;o FEBIA#EE In 2013, the sales of our refrigerants, polymers and principal organic
(EBEZERHEERL D RIERS 7% » 446% silicone products increased by 8.7%, 44.6% and 14.6%, respectively, as
K146% o RERLBEIF® D FERITHG compared to the previous year. Dongyue’s refrigerants and polymers
BRIKARFITESEL  BAERTREE products continued to lead the industry in terms of market share,
Fb TEFMFEEHAL - FRIER NS once again proving its leading position in the fluorochemical industry.
BHERETS - IKERMES - FERFZEMN What is particularly worthy of mentioning is Dongyue's organic
FEREZE  REAMEEBREANKINER silicone business, which, riding on the technological advancement,
HREAR  EmEE « RITKEMZF 8 new product development and reduced energy consumption and

EIEITERSIRIE © potential stimulation, successfully resumed profit during the year,
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During the year, the Group launched a campaign known as “Quality
Service Visitation” and publicized the “Dongyue Service Statement”,
with an impressive accomplishment of its promise of “Triple Zeroes".
All these measures have further enhanced the reputation and market
image of its products.

Remarkable R&D achievements with significant breakthrough
in technical innovation

The Group rendered its best R&D performance ever in 2013, with
the greatest technical advancement and productivity in product
development. During the year, the Group filed application for an
aggregate of 38 patents, among which 28 have been authorized.
Through in-house R&D, the Group successfully delivered 21 new
products, including the hydrogen silicone oil, DMC linear products
under the organic silicone segment and the modified PTFE dispersion
resin, PTFE emulsion and new models of PVDF, FEP and FKM
under the polymers segment. Through technological innovation,
productivity and efficiency enhancement, the Group has increased
the output of its superior products such as TFE, PTFE, organic silicone
monomers, gaseous silica and 107 Silicone Rubber while reducing
the consumption of materials and energy, which has significantly
improved its competitiveness.
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Chairman’s Statement

The Group signed an agreement with AFCC (a wholly-owned
subsidiary of DaimlerandFord)in November 2013 tojointly develop cell
membrane for automobile fuel. This marked the beginning of official
cooperation between Dongyue and Daimler and Ford, two of the
world’s automobile giants, which is of huge significance for Dongyue
in its endeavour to further improve the technology standards of its
fuel cell membrane and accelerate the industrialization process of the
clean fuel-powered vehicles, while creating new opportunities for
penetrating new energy markets and securing new sources of profit.

Effective cost control

Faced with an adverse situation of declining prices and squeezed
profit margin, the Group continued to strengthen cost control,
reinforce budget management, optimize expenditure procedures
and arouse the awareness of economy among its employees. In
2013, the Group's recorded a significant decrease as compared with
the last year. In addition, through the Campaigns known as “Two Up,
Two Down” and the “Triple Guarantees (Guarantee Profit, Guarantee
Market Share and Guarantee Brand Image)’, our material and energy
consumption have been more or less reduced, which further
strengthened our cost competitiveness.

Successful consolidation of the acquired businesses to further
strengthen our industry chain

In February 2013, the Group successfully completed the acquisition
of Shandong Huaxia Shenzhou New Materials Co., Ltd. (“Huaxia
Shenzhou"). Huaxia Shenzhou is primarily engaged in the production
and sales of a variety of downstream fluoropolymer fine chemicals,
including VDF, PVDF, FKM and FEP. Such fluoropolymer fine chemicals
are deemed as new materials in China with outstanding properties,
and are widely used in a number of fields such as the electrical
and electronic industry, painting and automobile industries. The
key products of Huaxia Shenzhou enjoy leading market shares. For
example, its FEP holds the biggest market share in China, and PVDF
holds the second biggest. Upon completion of the acquisition,
the Group quickly and effectively consolidated Huaxia Shenzhou's
businesses, as a result of which the sales of its main products
recorded a significant growth in spite of the falling price, with its
profits growing beyond expectation and its profit margin topping
the list of all its business segments. During the year, Huaxia Shenzhou
also successfully developed many new products such as the PVDF
of the “solar back panel film” grade, PVDF of the “lithium cell binder”
grade, FEP of the “high frequency line” grade and high fluorine FKM.

Dongyue Group Limited
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In addition, Dongyue International Phase | (BREEIR

—Hf), the

Group's property development project, was launched in August 2013,

with nearly all its units sold out on the opening date, setting a record

of launching sales in the real estate market of Zibo City in recent years.

In 2014, the fluorosilica industry is expected to stay in the whirlpool

as the structural overcapacity is difficult to turn within a short time,

and the low-end surplus products will continue to face enormous

price pressure. The Group is going to take the following measures in

order to enhance its competitiveness and profitability while ensuring

sustainable development:

U

(n

(1

Enhancing its management expertise in every aspect
Introducing modern management models to pursue IT-based,
standardized and fully fine-tuned management, ensuring
that its operating guidelines will seep into every aspect of its
operation, so as to improve efficiency and effectiveness.

Effecting technology and product upgrades to reinforce
its leading position

Accelerating the pace of automation, maintaining and
improving quality; optimizing its technical support services
to answer the customers’ requests in a quicker and sincerer
manner; developing proprietary technologies, transplanting
advanced technologies and ensuring the imported high-end
& high-value products can be properly replaced; striving to
increase the proportion of new products and specially-supplied
materials in terms of sales revenue, and use the same to cultivate
a unique market for Dongyue.

Accelerating R&D of new products and capitalization
of the latest R&D achievements, and exploring for new
sources of profits

Focusing on market demands and developing well-marketable
products while accelerating the marketing and promotion
of new products previously developed; accelerating the
industrialization  process of perfluoro chlor-alkali ionic
membrane, FEVE and PFA, and exploring and securing new
sources of profits. We also aim to complete our incentive
system to encourage and reward innovation, so as to cultivate
an agreeable atmosphere of technological innovation within
the Group.
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Chairman’s Statement

Exercising strict control over safety and environmental
protection

Implementing guidelines on safety and environmental
protection, consolidating the fundamental work, arousing
awareness of safety and environmental protection in every

aspect of our operation, so as to ensure production safety.

Enhancing teamwork performance and inspiring creativity
among our people

Fully implementing the competition mechanism, rotation
mechanism, elimination mechanism and the appraisal system.
Meanwhile, paying more attention to our employees’ appeals,
creating an agreeable working environment to allow talents to

stand out and inspire innovation and creativity.

Despite the headwinds in the market, the Group was able to keep on

its growth. This is primarily attributable to the relentless efforts of its

management and staff as well as the trust and support of its Shareholders

and business partners. |, on behalf of the Board of Directors, would like

to express my gratitude from the depth of my heart to our Shareholders,

investors and business partners, and also to the management and staff for

their valuable contribution to the Group.

Zhang Jianhong

Chairman

The People’s Republic of China, 20 March 2014

Dongyue Group Limited ="~
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Financial review

Results Highlights

December 2013,
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) recorded revenue of approximately
RMB6,782,814,000, representing a decrease of 3.80% over RMB7,050,822,000
of the previous year. The gross profit margin decreased to 16.16% (2012:
23.88%) and the consolidated segment results margin* was 10.69% (2012:
18.98%). The operating results margin was 9.58% (2012: 16.88%). Should
the Certified Emission Reduction (the “CER") segment and expenses on

For the year ended 31 the Company and its

share options granted to the employees and the Directors be excluded,
the operating results margin of the Group would have been 10.04%
(2012: 1745%). During the year under review, the Group recorded profit
before tax of approximately RMB561,501,000 (2012: RMB1,054,572,000),
and net profit of approximately RMB437,226,000 (2012: RMB707,063,000),
while consolidated profit attributable to the Company’s owners was
approximately RMB465,898,000 (2012: RMB713,056,000). Basic earnings
per share were RMB0.22 (2012: RMBO0.34). The Board of Directors of the
Company recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.085
(2012: HKS0.130) per share to the shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on 28 May 2014

*  Consolidated Segment Results+Revenue X 100%

RESEARAT]
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Segment Revenue and Operating Results

Set out below is the comparison, by reportable and operating segments, of
the Group's revenue and results for the year ended 31 December 2013 and
the year ended 31 December 2012:

HE20126128318ILEE
For the year ended
31 December 2012

BZE2013F128315LLEE

For the year ended
31 December 2013

Wz EE KRERN=E Weas FE RERNE
Operating Operating
Reportable and Results Results
EHRREE DT Operating Segments Revenue Results Margin Revenue Results Margin
ARBTT AR®BTT ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
=9FhE Polymers 2,053,751 553,000 26.93% 1,944,666 856,118 44.02%
B Organic silicone 1,520,879 74,645 4.91% 1,351,278 (22,848) -1.69%
UL Refrigerants 2,923,890 74,013 2.53% 3,671,321 296,270 8.07%
—FRkE Dichloromethane,
Bals Polyvinyl Chloride
(Tpvc]) Mkeig ("PVC") and Liquid Alkali 1,143,614 4,015 0.35% 1,164,601 92,003 7.90%
CER CER 48,554 49,225 101.38% 184,697 135,524 73.38%
TEME Property development - (15,026) - - (9,063) -
Hith Others 555,930 (15,102) -2.72% 557,988 (9,669) -1.73%
8,246,618 724,770 8.79% 8,874,551 1,338,335 15.08%
W DEBEISEE Less: Inter-segment sales  (1,463,804) - - (1,823,729) - -
o) Consolidated 6,782,814 724,770 10.69% 7,050,822 1,338,335 18.98%

Dongyue Group Limited

7009,
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Analysis of Revenue and Operating Results

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the bleak domestic and
overseas economic environment, which was initiated by the vulnerable
U.S. economic recovery process and the issue of European debt crisis,
and the slowdown in the domestic economic growth in the People’s
Republic of China (the "PRC") continued and the whole fluorochemical
industry was adversely affected in terms of the decrease in selling prices
of fluorochemical products. Such unfavourable market sentiment had not
turned around during the year under review. Meanwhile, (1) additions of
new commercializing capacities mainly in the Refrigerants and Polymers
segments by the domestic peers had led to a substantial increase in
the supply of fluorochemical products, and (2) foreign peers geared up
their forces in the PRC fluorochemical market, which further intensified
the competition and drove down the selling prices of the majority of
the Group’s fluorochemical products, resulting in a drop in the Group’s
consolidated operating results margin during the year under review.

Under such unfavourable market condition, with its scalable vertically
integrated self-sufficient value chain, the Group continued to capitalize
on its leading market position, strong R&D capabilities and extensive sales
network to expand its production capacities, to upgrade its technology
level, to optimize its product mix and to develop new products. As a
result, during the year under review, the Group strived to increase its
overall production and sales volumes year-on-year for all of its operating
segments of the Group except CER operating segment. However, the
Group experienced substantial decrease in the selling prices of its
fluorochemical products year-on-year, which led to a substantial decrease
in the gross profit and operating results margins of the Group during the
year under review. Although there had been encouraging improvements
in the Group's Organic Silicone operating segment in terms of operating
results margin during the year and the Group completed the acquisition
(the "Acquisition”) of Shandong Huaxia Shenzhou New Materials Co., Ltd.
("Huaxia Shenzhou”) in February 2013 and has started to consolidate
the financial results of Huaxia Shenzhou after the completion, the
contributions from Huaxia Shenzhou and the Group’s Organic Silicone
operating segment cannot fully mitigate the negative impact arising from
the decrease in the selling prices in the fluorochemical industry. Moreover,
the Group recorded a substantial drop in the sales volume of the Group’s
CER operating segment, which, together with the above-mentioned
factors, mainly accounted for the substantial year-on-year decrease in the
Group's operating results. Such situation was further aggravated with the
decrease in the raw materials cost not in the same proportion.
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Polymers

Thanks to the consolidation of Huaxia Shenzhou's financial results by
the Group, during the year, the Polymers segment overtook Refrigerants
segment as the Group's largest external revenue contributor, accounting
for approximately 30.28% of the consolidated revenue of the Group
(2012: 27.58%). Despite the significant year-on-year decrease in the selling
prices of the Group's polymers products, the revenue from the Polymers
segment increased by 5.61% to RMB2,053,751,000 from RMB1,944,666,000
of the previous year. Polymers segment, together with the Organic Silicone
segment of the Group, fall within the “New Material Industry of the PRC”
with huge potential and business prospects. During the year, with the
Group's strategy in developing new products to optimize its product mix,
the Group developed a total of 15 new products with huge potential and
applied a total of 29 registered proprietary patents within this segment.

The segment mainly includes the revenue from the production and sales of
PTFE (a synthetic fluoropolymer with high level of resistance to temperature
changes, electrical insulation, and ageing and chemical resistant that is
used as a coating material and can also be further processed into high-end
fine chemicals which can be widely applied in the chemicals, construction,
electrical and electronics and automotive industries.) and HFP (a primary
raw material to produce fine fluorochemicals such as FEP (Fluorinated
Ethylene Propylene) and FKM (Fluorine Rubber)). After the Acquisition, this
segment further includes the revenue from the production and sales of
a variety of downstream fluoropolymer fine chemicals including PVDF
(Polyvinylidene Fluoride), VDF (Vinylidene Fluoride), FEP and FKM, in which
Huaxia Shenzhou has been engaging. Other fluorinated fine chemicals,
including PPVE, PSVE, HFPO, formed another major production category
of Huaxia Shenzhou.

Depending on specific market requirements, PTFE is produced and sold
in the forms of suspension medium grain, suspension fine powders,
dispersion resins and concentrate liquid. R22 (a major refrigerant product of
the Group) is the basic and important raw material for TFE (a fluorocarbon),
which is used by the Group for the production of PTFE and HFP. In addition,
Huaxia Shenzhou has been relying on the supply of R22, R142b (another
refrigerant product of the Group) and HFP by the Group as the raw
materials for the production of FEP, FKM and VDF (a raw material for the
production of PVDF).

Dongyue Group Limited
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Due to the weaknesses of its end-application industrial and manufacturing
markets, which translatedinto softened domestic and international demand
for the Group'’s products, coupled with the depressing raw material cost
(R22) and the increase in supply in the relevant industry, this segment saw a
significant year-on-year decline in the selling prices of PTFE and HFP in the
year of 2013, which negatively affected the sales revenue and the results
margin of this segment. However, the Group was able to record growth
in the sales volume of PTFE, which was attributable to (1) the increase of
10,000 tonnes per annum in the production capacity of TFE starting from
April 2013; (2) the increase of 7,000 tonnes per annum in the production
capacity of PTFE-dispersion resins starting from December 2012; (3) the
increase of 2,500 tonnes per annum in the production capacity of PTFE-
suspension fine powders starting from June 2013; and (4) the launching of
new products in such areas as PTFE-dispersion resins and PTFE-suspension
fine powders. Furthermore, the associated positive effects arising from
the consolidation of Huaxia Shenzhou's financial results can mitigate the
negative impacts arising from the fall in the selling prices.

The sales volume of HFP declined on a year-on-year basis as a result of
the decrease in the domestic external demand and the increase in the
internal demand by Huaxia Shenzhou which had to be eliminated as inter-
company transactions within this operating segment after the Acquisition.

This segment contributed 76.30% (2012: 63.97%) to the total segment
results of the Group, while its segment results margin decreased to 26.93%
from 44.02% of the previous year.

The following is a summary of the financial results of Huaxia Shenzhou
from the completion of the Acquisition to 31 December 2013 which were
consolidated into the Group's consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2013:

AREBTT

RMB'000

W —$IMEE Revenue-external sales 610770

FREM Profit for the year 120,745
RESEARA
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Compared with the previous year, 2013 saw a significant growth in the
sales volume of three core products of Huaxia Shenzhou, namely FEP
(modified materials of PTFE, produced with HFP added in TFE, mainly used
in the lining for wire insulation layer, thin-walled tube, heat shrinkable
tubes, pumps, valves and pipes), PVDF (fluorocarbon made with R142b to
produce VDF, mainly used as a fluorine coating resin, fluorinated powder
coating resin and lithium battery electrode binding material), and FKM
(a specialized fluorinated material which is mainly used in the fields of
aerospace, automotives, machinery and petro-chemistry because of
its superior mechanical property, and excellent oil, chemical and heat
resistance). However, all of the three core products experienced drop in the
selling prices as a result of the increase in industry capacity, leading to the
year-on-year decrease in the operating results margin of Huaxia Shenzhou.

Organic Silicone

Accounting for 22.34% (excluding inter-segment sales) of the consolidated
revenue of the Group for the current year under review, the revenue
from the Organic Silicone business segment increased by 12.55% to
RMB1,520,879,000 from RMB1,351,278,000. This segment mainly includes
the production and sales of DMC (upstream organic silicone intermediates
that are used as raw materials to produce deep proceeded mid-stream
and downstream silicone products, such as silicone oils, silicone rubber
and silicone resins), 107 Silicone Rubber, Raw Vulcanizate and Gross Rubber
(deep proceeded silicone rubber products, where Raw Vulcanizate is a
key raw material for producing Gross Rubber), and other by-products and
other high-end downstream products, such as Gaseous Silica, Silicone Qils
and D5. Named as “Industrial MSG”, organic silicone is widely applied in
military, aviation, automotive, electronic, construction and other industries,
mainly in the form of additives, treatment chemicals stabilizers, lubricants
and sealants and are a key ingredient in industrial processes. The Group
initially produces silicone monomers with silicone powder and internally-
generated chloromethane and further processes them to become silicone
intermediates (mainly DMC), with certain portion of which the Group
produces such deep processed mid-stream and downstream products
as silicone rubbers). The Group can also produce and generate other by-
products and high-end downstream products, such as Gaseous Silica,
Silicone Oils and D5 through its production processes.

Dongyue Group Limited ="~
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Same for the Polymers segment, one of the Group’s strategies in the
Organic Silicone business segment is to devise and develop new products
to cater for customers’ demand and to expand and upgrade the production
capacities of deep-processed mid-stream and downstream products
with higher profit margins. During the year under review, the Group was
successful in launching 6 new products and applied a total of 5 registered
patents within this business segment. Furthermore, the Group increased
the production capacities of 107 Silicone Rubber and Gaseous Silica by
15,000 tonnes per annum and 2,000 tonnes per annum, respectively.

In 2013, the market of organic silicone was less vulnerable compared with
the flurorchemcial market. As a result, the Group’s DMC, the principal
product in the Organic Silicone segment, experienced moderate increases
in both its sales volumes and selling prices year-on-year, while the Group's
silicone rubbers products recorded a considerable increase in the sales
volume resulting from its expansion in production capacity. In addition,
thanks to the increase in production capacity of 3,000 tonnes per annum
for Gaseous Silica previous year and an additional 2,000 tonnes per annum
during the year, as well as the shortage of supply of quality product in the
gaseous silica market, the Group was able to record a surge in the sales
volume as well as a substantial increase in the selling prices of the Group’s
Gaseous Silica product.

Moreover, during the year, the Group continued to achieve progressive and
enduring improvement in its operating efficiencies through its production
synergies, optimizing the rate of utilizing wastage and ancillary chemical
and increasing the yield of its production processes. As a result, the Group
achieved a drop in the production costs of this business segment. Together
with the above factors, the Organic Silicone segment of the Group turned-
around to achieve an operating profit of RMB74,645,000 during the year
under review, compared to a operating loss of RMB22,848,000 for the
previous year, and recorded a segment results margin of 491% (2012:
-1.69%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Refrigerants

During the year, the Refrigerants segment accounted for approximately
28.29% (excluding inter-segment sales) (2012: 32.90%) of the Group's
revenue. Due to the substantial drop in the selling prices of refrigerants
products, the revenue decreased by 20.36% to RMB2,923,890,000 from
RMB3,671,321,000 of the previous year. This segment includes the revenue
from the manufacturing and sales of traditional refrigerants products
(mainly R22), new green and environmental-friendly refrigerants products
(mainly R32, R125, R134a and R410a and so forth) and other types of
refrigerants products (mainly R142b and R152a and so forth). The Group
produces and sells refrigerants products externally to both domestic
and international customers and internally (mainly R22 and R142b) for its
Polymers business segment.

As the backbone refrigerants product of the Group with the largest
production capacity in the world, R22 is the most widely used refrigerant
in the PRC and is generally used in household appliances. Apart from
that, it has been one of the key raw materials for the production of the
fluoropolymers (i.e. PTFE, HFP and other downstream fluorinated chemicals)
and R125. R125 and R32 are the key refrigerant mixture for other types of
green refrigerants (such as R410a and R439a (independently developed by
the Group)) to replace R22. Currently, R410a and R439a have been the two
principal replacing refrigerants which have been widely applied in inverter
air conditioners and other green home appliances. R134a is broadly
used in the refrigeration and air-conditioning systems in automobile air
conditioners, while R152a is another key refrigerant product of the Group
which can also be used as blowing agents, aerosols and cleaning agents.
Apart from the fact that R142b can be used as refrigerant, temperature
controller medium, or intermediates of aviation propellant, it can also be
one of the main raw materials for the production of VDF, the production of
which Huaxia Shenzhou has been presently engaging in.

Dongyue Group Limited ="~
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Pursuant to the Montreal Protocol, R22 would be progressively phased
out as a refrigerant in the PRC by the end of 2030 and would be replaced
by other green refrigerants. The Chinese government has stopped
granting approval to the building up of new R22 capacity. Starting from
2013, the Chinese government has been enforcing a quota system for
the sales of R22 as a refrigerant or ozone depleting substances for all of
the domestic R22 producers. As a result, the year-on-year growth of the
sales volume of R22 was limited and the external sales volume was flat
compared to the previous year. However, as the Group’s internal demand
for R22 for the production of downstream fluoropolymers remained
strong, which principally resulted from expansion of production capacity
in PTFE, the Group was able to record growth in the overall sales volume
of R22. Notwithstanding this, the depressed raw materials prices (such as
fluorspar, AHF and methane chloride) and the softness in the domestic and
worldwide economy and momentum has led to a fall in the selling prices of
the Group's R22 product as compared to the previous year.

The irrational massive expansion in the capacity of R134a in the domestic
market during the year and the general weakness in the domestic and
foreign automobile markets had intensified the price competition, which
made the Group see the substantial year-on-year drop in both the sales
volume and prices of R134a. Such excessive supply situation applied
to R32 and R125 markets in that existing and potential domestic peers
aggressively expanded the capacities based on the expectation that R32
and R125 would replace R22 in a quicker pace and the flourishing outlook
of the green home appliances would drive up the consumption of these
refrigerants, resulting from increasing awareness of the environment
protection by the Chinese government, manufacturers and the general
public. Despite the fall in the selling prices of these two categories, the
Group was able to record substantial increase in the relevant sales volumes
as one of the Group's key foreign customers increased its purchase
quantities from the Group.
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With the gradual recovery of the PRC's property market, the green home
appliance products end-market and other relevant industries have all
boosted the domestic demand for R410a. During the year under review,
the Group modified its strategy by promoting R410a which has become
more widely accepted by the market. As a result, the Group saw a material
decrease in the sales volume of R439a and a significant increase in R410a.
However, as a result of the aggressive expansion in the supply of R410a
in the market, the selling prices of R410a experienced substantial decline,
leading to a fall in the sales revenue of this category. Notwithstanding this,
the sustained growth in the sales volume of such green refrigerants as R32,
R125 and R410a over the last few years indicates that green refrigerants
would gradually substitute R22 as the most commonly used refrigerant in
the PRC.

The acquisition of Huaxia Shenzhou enabled the Group to secure a stable
and reliable source of demand for the Group’s R142b product, and the
strong downstream fluoropolymer fine chemicals markets also led to the
significant year-on-year increase in the sales volume of R142b achieved
during 2013.

Notwithstanding the increase in sales volume of this business segment,
during the year of 2013, as the Group recorded a substantial fall in the
selling prices of all of its refrigerants products, the sales revenue of this
segment declined accordingly as compared to the previous year.

The results of the Refrigerants segment contributed 10.21% (2012: 22.14%)
to the total segment results of the Group, while its segment results margin
was 2.53%, compared with 8.07% of the last year. In 2013, there was
significant decline in the selling prices of the Group's refrigerants products.
Notwithstanding the fact that the raw materials (fluorspar, AHF, methane
chloride, sulfuric acid, methanol, industrial salt, etc)) cost decreased year-
on-year, such decreases were not able to offset entirely the impact of the
decrease in selling prices, leading to the overall decrease in this segment
results margin.

Dichloromethane, PVC and Liquid Alkali

This segment includes the revenue from the production and sale of
the Group's two main ancillary products of the Refrigerants segment
(dichloromethane and liquid alkali) and the PVC products.

Dongyue Group Limited
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During the year, accounting for approximately 16.04% (excluding inter-
segment sale) of the Group'’s consolidated revenue, the revenue for this
segment decreased by 1.80% to RMB1,143,614,000 from RMB1,164,601,000
of the previous year.

Liquid alkali is a basic chemical product from the production of methane
chloride, and is used in textile, power and materials industries. Methane
chloride includes dichloromethane, which is mainly used to produce
antibiotics and as a foaming mode for polyurethane. The Group engaged
in the production of PVC (a widely used thermoplastic polymer applied
in construction industry to replace traditional building materials). The
production of refrigerants products generates a chemical, hydrogen
chloride, which is one of the basic raw materials for PVC production.
Therefore, the Group's PVC production can ensure production synergies
and increase economic value generated from a self-sufficient business
chain.

During the year under review, while the sales volume of PVC and liquid
alkali increased and that of dichloromethane was slightly decreased
year-on-year as compared to 2012, the selling prices of dichloromethane
and liquid alkali recorded significant drop year-on-year as a result of the
general weakness and downturn of manufacturing industries as well as
overcapacity in the PRC's methane chloride market, which principally led
to a drop in the sales revenue of this segment.

During the year, as a result of market downturn in the chemical industry,
this segment recorded an operational profit of RMB4,015,000, compared
with segment profits of RMB92,003,000 recorded in the year ended 31
December 2012. The Group experienced substantial decrease in the
average selling price and the increase in the average production costs of
dichloromethane which, together with the drop in the gross profit margin
of liquid alkali, accounted for the decrease in the segment results. However,
the Group was able to alleviate the operating loss of the PVC product year-
on-year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CER

During the year, the Group sold a total of approximately 3,224,000 (2012:
12,691,562) tonnes of CER units and a total amount of RMB48,554,000 (2012:
RMB184,697,000) was recorded as the CER revenue in respect of the Group's
reduction in HFC23 emission (the “CDM Project”) for the third and fourth
quarters in 2012, which have been confirmed and endorsed by United
Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change (“UNFCCC"). In the
wake of the weakness of the worldwide CER market, the majority of the
Group's CER units could only be sold at the minimum price of US$6.5 per
each CER unit as stipulated by the Chinese government. The Group did not
recognize any CER revenue in the second half of 2013.

During the year, the sales volume of CER units dropped substantially as (1)
one of the Group'’s CER customers terminated the CER purchase agreement
with the Group by compensating USD4 million (equivalent RMB24,869,000)
as the condition for the termination, and (2) only two operating quarters
were included during the year, compared with five operating quarters
recorded during the previous year.

As the registration of the CDM Project with UNFCCC expired on 31
December 2012, the Group temporarily ceased the production of CER units
during the year. The Group had been in active negotiation with UNFCCC,
the existing and other potential customers to have the relevant registration
renewed and to have the operation re-commenced. Moreover, the Group
had been studying the potential of entering into the CER market of the PRC
and refining the prevailing facilities such that they can be employed for
other operating purposes, if necessary.

Property Development - Dongyue International Project (the
“Project”)

The Project comprises, among others, residential portion of two parcels
of land which are adjacent to each other. They are located at the west
of Liuguan North Road, the north of Huantai Avenue and the south of
Gongyuan Road, Huantai County, Zibo City, Shandong Province, the PRC
with a total site area of 189,381 square metres. The residential portion is
157,187 square metres, upon which the Group planned to construct 23
residential blocks with a total planned gross floor area of approximately
296,000 square metres. It comprises five phases which are scheduled for
completion by the end of 2017. The Group, owning 100% interest in the
Project, commenced to construct the first two phases with planned gross
floor area of approximately 152,000 square metres during the year under
review.
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The Group commenced pre-sale of the phase 1 during the year and phase
2 subsequent to the year end date. The Project received overwhelming
response and approximately 89,000 square metres of the phase 1 were
sold at average selling prices of RMB6,506 per square metre. However, as
the phase 1 and phase 2 are in the course of construction and the sales
transactions were not completed up to the date of this annual report, no
revenue was recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

Others
This segment includes the revenue from the production and sale of the
Group's other side and by-products of various operating segments.

During the year, accounting for approximately 2.33% (excluding inter-
segment sale) of the Group’s consolidated revenue, the revenue for
this segment slightly decreased by 037% to RMB555930,000 from
RMB557,988,000 of the previous year, and this segment recorded an
operational loss of RMB15,102,000, compared to operational loss of
RMB9,669,000 in 2012.

Distribution and Selling Expenses

During the year, the distribution and selling expenses increased by 20.99%
to RMB253,976,000 from RMB209,912,000 of the previous year, which was
mainly due to (1) year-on-year increase in the sales volume of the Group
and (2) the Acquisition.

Administrative Expenses

During the vyear, the administrative expenses decreased by 18.71%
to RMB298,483,000 from RMB367203,000. The decrease was mainly
attributable to the decrease in the expenses on share options granted to
the Directors and the employees. Should the relevant expenses on share
options be excluded, the administrative expenses during the year would
have been RMB223,521,000 (2012: RMB224,156,000), representing a slight
decrease of 0.28%.

Research and Development Expenses

During the year, the research and development expenses increased by
112.26% to RMB71,668,000 from RMB33,764,000 of the previous year, which
was mainly due to increase in the number of research and development
projects and activities undertaken by the Polymers segment of the Group.
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Finance Costs

During the year, the finance costs decreased by 34.55% to RMB89,065,000
from RMB136,076,000 of the previous year. This was mainly attributable
to (1) the decrease in the average interest rate of the Group’s borrowings
during the year, and (2) the substantial increase in the amount of finance
costs capitalised.

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group's aggregate capital
expenditure was approximately RMB1,306,035,000 (2012: RMB791,901,000).
The Group used an amount of RMB590,000,000 for the Acquisition and used
the remaining amount of capital expenditure mainly for acquisition of fixed
assets including the equipment and facilities for the Group’s expansion
projects in (1) the 10,000 tonnes per annum of TFE, (2) the 7,500 tonnes per
annum of PTFE, (3) the technological upgrade in respect of organic silicone
monomers capacity to 200,000 tonnes per annum, (4) the 15,000 tonnes
per annum of 107 Rubber, (5) the 2,000 tonnes per annum of Gaseous Silica,
(6) the 2,000 tonnes per annum of PVDF, and (7) the 15,000 tonnes per
annum of Tetrachloroethylene (a raw material for the production of R125
under PCE method), and for the Group's various technological revamp,
energy saving and emission management projects.

During the year, the Group'’s two mineral exploration licenses of a nickel
mine and an iron and fluorspar mine expired and the Group successfully
renewed the aforementioned licenses for a period of two years. In addition,
the Group has commenced its required exploration works and strived to
obtain the necessary extraction licenses for the mines before engaging
in actual production, which enables the Group to secure supply of raw
materials for its existing business and to align with the Group's strategy of
vertical integration into the fluorochemical value chain.

Dongyue Group Limited """+
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group's financial position is sound with healthy working capital
management and strong operational cash flow. As at 31 December 2013,
the Group's total equity amounted to RMB5,510,828,000, representing
an increase of 543% compared with that as at 31 December 2012. As
at 31 December 2013, the Group’s bank balances and cash totaled
RMB1,243,296,000 (31 December 2012: RMB1,682,728,000). During the
year under review, the Group generated a total of RMB1,114,330,000 (for
the year ended 31 December 2012: RMB2,075,326,000) cash inflow from its
operating activities. The current ratio® of the Group as at 31 December
2013 was 146 (31 December 2012: 1.80).

Taking the above figures into account, together with the available bank
balances and cash, the unutilized banking credit facilities and support from
its banks as well as its strong operational cash flows, the management is
confident that the Group will have adequate resources to settle any debts
and to finance its daily operational and capital expenditures.

Capital Structure

During the year, the Company repurchased and cancelled a total of
1,233,000 ordinary shares of the Company (the “Buyback Shares”). After
the cancellation of the Buyback Shares, the number of issued shares of the
Company was decreased from 2,120,552,455 to 2,119,319,455.

As at 31 December 2013, the borrowings of the Group totaled
RMB2,152,564,000 (31 December 2012: RMB1,912,098,000). The gearing
ratio® of the Group was 14.16% (31 December 2012: 4.20%)

The Group had no particular seasonal pattern of borrowing. As at 31
December 2013, the Group's borrowings comprised non-current portion
(over 1 year) and current portion (within 1 year). The non-current portion
of borrowings amounted to approximately RMB1,286,090,000, which are
wholly repayable after one year but not exceeding five years. The current
portion of borrowings amounted to approximately RMB866,474,000. The
Group's borrowings were made at fixed interest rates and floating rates.
The weighted average effective interest rates on floating rate borrowings
and fixed rate borrowings for the year ended 31 December 2013 were
6.45% (2012: 6.65%) and 6.16% (2012: 6.53%) per annum, respectively. As
at 31 December 2013, 35.46% (31 December 2012: 12.20%) of the Group's
borrowings bear fixed interest rates.
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As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s borrowings were denominated
in RMB and US dollars, amounting to approximately RMB2,049,679,000
and approximately  US$16,875,000
RMB102,885,000) respectively.

(equivalent to approximately

Group Structure

During the year, Shandong Dongyue Polymers Co. Ltd., a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, acquired the entire issued equity capital in
Huaxia Shenzhou. Huaxia Shenzhou is a company established in the PRC
and is principally engaged in the business of the production and sales of
a variety of downstream fluoropolymer fine chemicals, which is related to
the reportable and operating segment of “Polymers” of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, there has been no change in the structure of the
Group.

Notes:
m Current Ratio = Current Assets + Current Liabilities
2 Gearing Ratio = Net Debt + Total Capital
Net Debt = Total Borrowing - Bank Balances and Cash

Total Capital = Net Debt + Total Equity

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had certain property, plant and
equipment and lease prepayments with an aggregate carrying value of
approximately RMB558,694,000 (31 December 2012: RMB751,261,000), and
bank deposits of RMB106,320,000 (31 December 2012: RMB20,570,000),
which were pledged to secure the Group's borrowings and the bills
payable of the Group.

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates and Related
Hedges

The Group's functional currency is RMB with most of the transactions
settled in RMB. However, foreign currencies (mainly United States dollars)
were received/paid when the Group earned revenue from overseas
customers and when settling purchases of machinery and equipment
from the overseas suppliers.

Dongyue Group Limited
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The Group entered into forward contacts for managing certain risks arising
from foreign currency transactions. In order to reduce the risk of holding
foreign currencies, the Group normally converts the foreign currencies into
RMB upon receipt while taking into account its foreign currencies payment
schedule in the near future.

Employees and Emolument Policy

The Group employed 6,797 employees in total as at 31 December 2013 (31
December 2012: 5,887). The Group implemented its remuneration policy,
bonus and share option schemes based on the performance of the Group
and its employees. The Group provided benefits such as social insurance
and pensions to ensure competitiveness.

In addition, the Group had also adopted a share option scheme as a long
term incentive to the Directors and eligible employees. The emolument
policy for the Directors and senior management of the Group is set up
by the Company’s Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group's
performance, individual performance and comparable market conditions.
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Directors

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is responsible for the
management and operation of the Company's businesses and has the
general authority in this regard. Certain information of the members of the
Board is as follows:

Executive directors

Mr. ZHANG Jianhong, aged 54, was appointed as the chairman, chief
executive officer and executive director of the Company in July 2006. He
has been with the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
and its predecessors since October 1986 and has over 25 years of experience
in the chemical industry. He is also the chairman of Dongyue Chemicals,
Dongyue Polymers and Dongyue Organic Silicone, and a director of
Dongyue F&S, Dongying Dongyue Salt and Dongyue Precision Chemicals,
all of which are the Company’s subsidiaries. Mr. Zhang is a senior officer of
political affairs with a postgraduate degree in economics. He had served
the People’s Liberation Army Navy from 1978 to 1982. He has obtained
the honorary titles of Powerful Figure of China Petroleum and Chemical
Industry (First Session), Top 10 Outstanding Figures of Chinese Brands in
the International Market, the Shandong Labour Model, Top 10 News Figures
of Shandong Province in 2006, Outstanding Private Entrepreneur Award
for Outstanding Contribution in Petroleum and Chemicals in China of the
Eleventh Five-Year and the most outstanding CEO of the Year chosen by
a Hong Kong magazine “& 74 £ Capital CEQ". Mr. Zhang is a committee
member of Chinese People Political Consultative Conference, Shandong
Province, a member of Chinese Communist Committee of Zibo City and
an authorized representative of 8th Chinese Communist Party meeting
of Shandong Province. Mr. Zhang has been the vice standing member of
China Association of Organic Fluorine and Silicone Material Industry (FR[E
BB MBI TEWE). In December 2012, Mr. Zhang was elected the
vice chairman of the 11th China Federation of Industry & Commerce (55
—ErEIHXRKAS)
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Mr. FU Kwan, aged 57, was appointed as the executive director of the
Company in July 2006. He is formerly a director of Dongyue Chemicals,
Dongyue Polymers, Dongyue Organic Silicone and Dongyue F&S. Mr. Fu
is the chairman of the board of directors and the president of Macro-Link
Holding Limited (“Macrolink Holding”) and is a director of Macro-Link
International Investment Co. Ltd. (“Macrolink International”), a substantial
shareholder of the Company. Mr. Fu is a senior economist with a
postgraduate degree in business administration. Mr. Fu has over 25 years
of experience in corporate management and business strategy planning.
Mr. Fu was the deputy director of the Economic Committee of Liling City,
Hunan Province, head of the Foreign Trade Bureau of Liling City, Hunan
Province and the vice chairman of the 10th China Federation of Industry
& Commerce, and is a committee member of the Chinese People Political
& Consultative Conference, the chairman of Chamber of Commerce of
Beijing and Hunan Enterprises (At TR (B 2 E), vice chairman of China
Civil Chamber of Commerce (FEIR EIRE ) and director of political affairs
committee of China Federation of Industry and Commerce (% B T il
SEGEBZEES). Mr. Fu has also been awarded the “Top 10 Outstanding
Entrepreneurs in China Certificate” in 2003 by the China Professional
Managers Association. Mr. Fu is the chairman of the board of directors of
Macro-Link Property Joint Stock Company Limited T2 R BIERR /DS
FR2A7]), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr. Fu owns
a direct 10.63% and an indirect 75% interest in Macrolink Holding, which
wholly owns Macrolink International. Macrolink International is a substantial
shareholder of JLF Investment Company Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "HKSE").

Mr. LIU Chuangqi, aged 64, was appointed as the executive director of the
Company in July 2006. He has been with the Group and its predecessors
since October 1986. Mr. Liu has over 25 years of experience in the chemical
industry and is a director of Dongyue Chemicals, Dongyue Polymers,
Dongyue F&S, Dongyue Organic Silicone, Dongying Dongyue Salt, Huaxia
Shenzhou and Dongyue Precision Chemicals and was a director of Zibo
Dongyue Lvyuan, all of which are the Company’s subsidiaries. He is also
formerly the general manager of Dongyue Chemicals and currently the
president of the Group. He is a senior officer of political affairs, and was
awarded “Medal for Enhancing the Labour Force of Zibo City” in 2002 by
the Zibo City Labour Union.
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Mr. CUI Tongzheng, aged 52, was appointed as the executive director,
vice president and chief financial officer of the Company in July 2006. He
has been with the Group and its predecessors since November 1988. Mr.
Cuihas over 20 years of experience in the corporate financial management.
Mr. Cui holds a bachelor degree from China Statistics Cadre College as well
as a MBA diploma from Shanghai Jiao Tong University.

Dr. WU Tao, aged 55, has approximately 20 years of experience in corporate
management. Dr. Wu obtained a doctorate degree in computer science
from National University of Defense Technology (FEIBIfHEHE K& in
1991. In his early years, Dr. Wu served at National University of Defense
Technology and at various business incorporations as president, vice-
president and general managers. Dr. Wu joined the Company in 2005 and
is currently a director of Dongyue Chemicals, Dongyue Polymers, Dongyue
F&S, Dongyue Organic Silicone and Dongying Dongyue Salt. In addition,
Dr. Wu is currently a director and vice president of Macrolink Holding,
which owns 80% equity interest in Macro-Link Asset Investment Co. Ltd. (
HIEERE AR E AR]), in which Dr Wu is the chairman, and a director
of various local incorporations. Dr. Wu was a director of Tong Hua Winery
Joint Stock Company Limited (B{tEEBRHBRAT]), the shares of
which are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, until August 2012.

Mr. ZHANG Jian, aged 41, was appointed as the executive director of the
Company in July 2006 and has been with the Group since February 2006.
Mr. Zhang has more than 10 years of experience in the investment banking
and corporate finance. Mr. Zhang holds a bachelor degree in Economics
and Law from Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics and a Master
degree in Business Administration from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong. He is the controller of listed company division of Macrolink Holding,
as well as an executive director of JLF Investment Company Limited and
Macro-Link Property Joint Stock Company Limited TR T EEKNDA
R2RD).
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Independent non-executive directors

Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen MH, FCCA, FCPA (PRACTISING), ACA, CTA
(HK), FHKIoD, aged 60, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company in November 2007. Mr. Ting is a certified public
accountant and has been the managing partner of Messrs Ting Ho Kwan
& Chan, Certified Public Accountants (Practising) since 1987. Mr. Ting is a
member of the 9th, 10th and 11th Chinese People Political Consultative
Conference, Fujian Province. Mr. Ting is currently a non-executive director
of Chow Sang Sang Holdings International Limited and an independent
non-executive director of six companies listed on the HKSE, namely Tong
Ren Tang Technologies Company Limited, Tongda Group Holdings Limited,
JLF Investment Company Limited, Computer and Technologies Holdings
Limited, Texhong Textile Group Limited and China SCE Property Holdings
Limited. Mr. Ting was an independent non-executive director of Minmetals
Resources Limited until 30 November 2011. Save for the aforesaid, Mr. Ting
does not have any other directorships in listed companies during the past
3 years.

Mr. LIU Yi, aged 68, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company in November 2007 and has been with the
Group since then. Mr. Liu had previously worked in the Chinese Research
Academy of Environmental Sciences as a department head and in the
State Environment Protection Administration as a standing member
where he retired in January 2006. He has many years of experience in
handling environmental protection issues. Mr. Liu does not have any other
directorships in listed companies.

Mr. YUE Rundong, aged 74, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company in November 2007 and has been
with the Group since then. Mr. Yue has more than 40 years of experience in
the chemical industry. He was the technical officer of research department
of Shen Yang Chemical Research Institute, the dean of Chen Guang
Chemical Research Institute and the dean of Chengdu Silicone Research
Centre. Recently, he has taken the post of the manager of the technology
department of China National Bluestar Group and the dean as well as the
chairman of Bluestar Institute of Chemical Technology. Mr Yue is also the
honorary standing chairman of China Association of Organic Fluorine and
Silicone Material Industry (P EI S B #EMEI TSR E). Mr. Yue is currently
an independent director of Chengdu Guibao Science and Technology
Co, Ltd, (EBREERHE IR BIRAF), a company listed on the Growth
Enterprises Board of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
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Senior management

Mr. ZHOU Guangsheng, aged 58, is the deputy president of the Group.
He has been serving the Group since March 1988 and is responsible for
production, safety and environmental protection. He served as a deputy
head of production plant and deputy production general manager from
April 1989 to March 2004. He served as the deputy general manager of
Dongyue Chemicals from March 2004 to March 2006. He has been serving
as the vice president of the Group since March 2006 until now.

Mr. ZHANG Heng, aged 46, is an engineer and had obtained an
undergraduate degree in economics from the China Petroleum University.
He has been serving the Group since November 1988 and is formerly the
general manager of Dongyue Polymers and the deputy general manager
of Dongyue Chemicals. Mr. Zhang is currently the vice president of the
Group and a director of Dongyue Polymers. He has pioneered several
research projects which had twice been awarded the Shandong Science
and Technology Spark Award, and had several times been awarded the
Zibo City Science and Technology Improvement Award and the Zibo City
Spark Award.

Mr. WANG Weidong, aged 50, has worked for the Group since September
1996 and is responsible for technical matters and projects. He is currently
the general manager and a director of Dongyue Organic Silicone, and the
chairman of Dongyue F&S. In 2005, he was awarded the title of Outstanding
Scientific Researcher of National Chemical Industry and in 2006, he
obtained the award for “Outstanding Worker of National Chlor-alkali
Industry”. Mr. Wang holds a bachelor degree in Chinese Literature.

Mr. PANG Feng, aged 48, had obtained a MBA diploma from Shanghai
Jiao Tong University. He has been serving the Group since March 1988
and is formerly the deputy production manager and the deputy general
manager of Dongyue Chemicals. He is currently the general manager of
Dongyue Chemicals.

Mr. ZENG Hongzhi, aged 50, has been serving the Group since October
2003 and is formerly a chief officer of the Group’s safety and environment
protection department and the Group's corporate administration
department, as well as the deputy general manager of Dongyue Polymers.
He has been serving as the general manager of Dongyue Polymers since
February 2009 until now.
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Company secretary

Mr. NG Kwok Choi, aged 42, is a full time company secretary of the
Company.He joined the Group on 3 July 2009. Mr.Ng is primarily responsible
for the overall financial reporting and company secretarial matters of the
Company. Mr. Ng has over 18 years of experience in the fields of finance,
auditing and accounting. Prior to joining the Group, he had been the group
financial controller of two companies listed on the Main Board of the HKSE
from July 2000 to September 2008, and had worked for more than five
years in an international accounting firm in Hong Kong. Mr. Ng graduated
from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology majoring
in Accounting in 1994. Mr. Ng is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Report of the Directors
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The Directors present their report together with the audited financial
statements of Dongyue Group Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2013.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to the financial statements.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the year.

Results and appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 65.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of an interim dividend for
the six months ended 30 June 2013 (six months ended 30 June 2012: Nil).

The Directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.085
per share (the “Final Dividend") (approximately equivalent to RMB0.067 per
share) (2012: HK$0.130 per share, approximately equivalent to RMB0.106 per
share), in respect of the year 2013, to the shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company (the “Register”) on 28 May

014. The Final Dividend is subject to the approval of the members of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the "AGM”") to be
held on 23 May 2014.
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Closure of the Register

The Register will be closed to ascertain the qualification for attending and
voting at the AGM and for the entitlement to the Final Dividend.

The Register will be closed from 20 May 2014 to 23 May 2014, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In
order to qualify for attending and voting at the AGM, all share transfers,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the
Company's Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on 19 May 2014.

The Register will be closed from 29 May to 3 June 2014, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to
qualify for the entitlement to the Final Dividend, all share transfers,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged with Tricor
Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road
East, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on 28 May 2014.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of change in equity on page 68.

Property, plant and equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.
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Report of the Directors

Share capital

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are set out
in note 30 to the financial statements.

Distributable reserves

As at 31 December 2013, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
to shareholders as computed in accordance with the Companies Law (2003
Revision) of the Cayman Islands amounted to RMB1,460,197,000, of which
HK$180,044,000 (approximately equivalent to RMB141,551,000) has been
proposed as the Final Dividend.

Pre-emptive right

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles
of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing
shareholders.

Purchase, sale or redemption of listed securities

During the year, the Company repurchased, on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the "HKSE"), a total of 1,233,000 ordinary shares of the
Company (the “Buyback Shares”) at a price range of HK$2.92 to HK$2.99 per
share. The aggregate consideration for the Buyback Shares is approximately
HK$3,646,000, which was funded from internal resources of the Company.
The Buyback Shares were validly cancelled on 4 and 12 July 2013.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31 December 2013.
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Share options

Share option scheme

Pursuant to the share option scheme approved by a written resolution of
all shareholders of the Company on 16 November 2007 (the “Scheme”),
the Company may grant to, among others, the Directors of the Company
and employees of the Group, for the recognition of their contribution of
the Group, options to subscribe for the Shares. According to the Scheme,
the board of Directors (the “Board”) may, at its discretion, invite any eligible
participants to take up options to subscribe for Shares of the Company,
which when aggregated with any other share option scheme, shall not
exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time. The total number
of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Scheme and any other scheme must not, in aggregate, exceed
10% of the number of Shares inissue as at the date on which dealings in the
Shares first commence on the HKSE unless further shareholders’ approval
had been obtained pursuant to the conditions set out in the Scheme. The
total number of Shares in issue and to be issued upon exercise of all option
under the Scheme and any other schemes (including both exercised or
outstanding options) to each participant in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company.

The offer for the grant of options (the “Offer”) must be taken up within 28
days from the date of Offer, with a payment of HK$1.00 as consideration.
The exercise price of the share option will be determined at the highest
of (i) the average closing prices of Shares as stated in the HKSE's daily
quotations sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of the Offer; (ii) the closing price of Shares as stated in the HKSE's daily
quotations sheet on the date of the Offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Shares. The total number of Shares which may fall to be issued under the
Scheme and any other scheme must not, in aggregate, exceed 208,000,000
which represents 10% of the total issued share capital as at the Listing Date
unless further shareholders” approval is obtained. The share options are
exercisable at any time during a period of not more than 10 years from the
date of grant, subject to the terms and conditions of the Scheme and any
conditions of grant as may be stipulated by the Board. Unless terminated
by the Company by resolution in general meeting, the Scheme shall be
valid and effective for a period of 10 years from 16 November 2007.
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As at 31 December 2013, particulars of the options granted to certain

Directors and employees of the Group under the Scheme are set out below:

BREHE
Number of options
H013E R2013%
1818 RER RER RER 128318 e e
&8 M ENSE ff  HAGE i¥E RLAS B £
Balance Outstanding
Name or asat Lapsed  Reclassified ~ Exercised asat
S8% Category of 1 January during during during 31 December Exercise Exercisable Exercisable
HESER  participant 2013 the year the year the year 2013 Pricc  DateofGrant  from until
wr ()
HKS  (Note)
HTES:  Executive Directors:
FREEL  MrZhang Jianhong
EH Tranche | 3,325,000 - - - 3325000 813 2MECAIR  01F6AIE 016F6A1H
1 June 2011 1 June 2012 1June 2016
EH Tranche 2 3,325,000 - - - 3325000 813 WNECAIE  013F6A1R  201656A1A
1June 2011 1June 2013 1 June 2016
Eid Tranche 3 3,325,000 - - - 3305000 813 20MECAIR  014F6AIE  016F6A1H
1 June 2011 1June 2014 1June 2016
it Tranche 4 3,325,000 - - - 3325000 813 WNECAIE 0158618 201656A1H
1June 2011 1June 2015 1June 2016
BIEHEE M LiuChuangi
Eid Tranche 1 3,375,000 - - - 3375000 813 2MECAIR  01FAIE 016F6A1H
1June 2011 1June 2012 1June 2016
S Tranche 2 3,375,000 - - - 3375000 813 WNECAIR N3F6AIE 016F6A1H
1June 2011 1June 2013 1 June 2016
E=H Tranche 3 3375000 - - - 3375000 813 20MECAIR  014FAIE  2016F6A1H
1June 2011 1June 2014 1 June 2016
E Tranche 4 3,375,000 - - - 3375000 813 20NEAIR  015F6ATE  2016F6A1H
1 June 2011 1 June 2015 1 June 2016
ERAREE  MrCuiTongzheng
Eaid Tranche 1 1,250,000 - - - 1250000 813 01EGAIR 0NF6AIE 016F6A1H
1June 2011 1June 2012 1 June 2016
S Tranche 2 1,250,000 - - - 1250000 813 2MEAIR  013F6AIE  016F6A1H
1 June 2011 1June 2013 1June 2016
B=H Tranche 3 1,250,000 - - - 1250000 813 WNECAIE  014F6A1B  201656A1H
1June 2011 1June 2014 1 June 2016
Sl Tranche 4 1,250,000 - - - 1250000 813 20MEAIR  015F6AIE 016F6A1H
1 June 2011 1 June 2015 1 June 2016
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BhREHE
Number of options
20135 R2013%
181A RER RER RER 12831 s il
& M ENSE i HATE  GRE REEH B £R
Balance Outstanding
Name or asat Lapsed  Reclassified Exercised asat
SHE Category of 1 January during during during 31 December Exercise Exercisable Exercisable
p2RER  participant 213 theyear  theyear theyear 2013 Price  DateofGrant  from until
Ar (M)
HKS  (Note)
EEAL M Yan Jianhua
£ Tranche | 500,000 - (500,000) - - 813 01F6AIR  01F6AIR 016F6E1R
1 June 2011 1June 2012 1June 2016
FH Tranche 2 500,000 - (500,000) - - 813 20MECAIR  013F6AIE  2016F6A1H
1 June 2011 1June 2013 1June 2016
EH Tranche 3 500000 - (500000) - - 813 WNEGAIR  014F6A1E 016F6A1H
1 June 2011 1 June 2014 1June 2016
EE Tranche 4 500,000 - (500000) - - 813 0NEGAIR 015F6A1R 016F6A1H
1June 2011 1June 2015 1June 2016
FEEE M Zhang Jian
E-# Tranche 1 50,000 - - - 50,000 813 01E6AIR  0124F6A1B  016F6A1H
1 June 2011 1 June 2012 1June 2016
EH Tranche 2 50,000 - - - 50,000 813 01E6AIR 013F6A1E 016F6A1H
1June 2011 1June 2013 1June 2016
E=H Tranche 3 50000 - - - 50,000 813 WNEGAIR 014E6AIR 016F6A1H
1 June 2011 1June 2014 1 June 2016
Fm Tranche 4 50000 - - - 50000 813 20ME6AIR  015F6AIRE 016F6A1H
1June 2011 1June 2015 1June 2016
5! Employees:
&t In aggregate
F-4 Tranche 1 27,900,000 (700,000) 500,000 - 27,700,000 813 01%6A1H 01F6A1H 201656818
1 June 2011 1June 2012 1 June 2016
g Tranche 2 27,900,000 (700,000) 500,000 - 27,700,000 813 011%F6A1H 013F6A1H 016%6A1A0
1 June 2011 1June 2013 1June 2016
=N Tranche 3 27,900,000 (700,000) 500,000 - 27,700,000 813 011%F6A1H W014F6A1H 016F6A1A
1June 2011 1June 2014 1June 2016
EE Tranche 4 27,900,000 (700,000) 500,000 - 27700000 813 01E6AIR  015F6A1E  016F6A1H
1June 2011 1 June 2015 1June 2016
145,600,000 (2,800,000) - - 142800000
BRE - EER B B2 AR TE A EL7 98T © Note: The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date of grant is HK$7.98 per
Share.
REEEBRAT]
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The fair value of the share options granted under the Scheme were
determined and measured using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model
on 1 June 2011. The significant inputs into the model were the exercise
price shown above, volatility of 64.65%, dividend yield of 3.68%, an
expected option life of 3.5 to 5 years and on annual interest-free interest
rates of 1.00%, 1.18%, 1.34% and 1.49%. As any changes in subjective input
assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimates, in the opinion of
professional appraiser, the valuation model for the share options granted
does not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of
the share options.

The related accounting policy for the fair value of the share options are set
out in note 3 to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no option had been granted or agreed to be
granted to any person under the Scheme since its adoption.

Directors

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2013 and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Jianhong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Fu Kwan

Mr. Liu Chuangqi (President)

Mr. Cui Tongzheng (Vice President and Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Yan Jianhua (resigned on 21 March 2013)

Dr. Wu Tao (appointed on 21 March 2013)

Mr. Zhang Jian

Independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs")

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen
Mr. Liu Yi
Mr. Yue Rundong

Pursuant to Article 87(1) of the Company’s articles of association, at each of
the annual general meeting, one third of the Directors for the time being,
or, if their number is not 3 or a multiple of 3, then the number nearest to
but not less than one- third, shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every 3 years. Mr. Cui Tongzheng, Mr. Liu Yi and Mr. Yue Rundong will retire
by rotation at the AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Dongyue Group Limited
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Directors’ service contracts

None of the Directors proposal for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has entered or has proposed to enter into any
service contracts with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ interests in contracts

No contract of significance, to which the Company, its fellow subsidiaries,
its subsidiaries or its holding company was a party and in which a Director
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Director’s rights to acquire shares

Other than as disclosed in the section headed “Share Options” in this report,
at no time during the year was the Company, its holding company or any
of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors, their respective spouse or minor children to acquire
benefit by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

Biographical details of Directors and senior
management

Brief biographical details of Directors of the Company and senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 25 to 30.

Remuneration of the Directors

The remuneration of each Director is determined with reference to the
duties, responsibilities, performance of the Directors and the results of the
Group.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 11 to the

financial statements.

Corporate governance practice

Details of the corporate governance practice of the Company are set out
on pages 46 to 62.
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Disclosure of interests

(a)

Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short
positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures

As at 31 December 2013, the interests or short positions of the
Directorsand the chief executive of the Company and their respective
associates in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the HKSE pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have taken
under such provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the "Model
Code") to be notified to the Company and the HKSE were as follows:

B 12 Sk AHEE
8k §E|

Number of Shares or
underlying Shares

HE 8T
RAB DL
% of issued
share capital

SRIERTE
Mr. Zhang Jianhong

BELE

Mr. Fu Kwan

AEHRE
Mr. Liu Chuangi

ERREE
Mr. Cui Tongzheng

REEHLT
Dr. Wu Tao

SRIESEE
Mr. Zhang Jian

Sl
Corporate interest!”

B A dAE Ny

Bl
Beneficial interest

RO
Corporate interest®

EEEERY
Corporate interest®
Eafam

Beneficial interest

MR
Corporate interest®
BEaER

Beneficial interest

s s
BmiEm

Beneficial interest

B
Beneficial interest

166,551,273 (L) 7.86 (L)
20,447,636 (L) 0.96 (L)
609,646,818 (L) 28.77 (L)
87,360,000 (L) 412 (L)
19,853,454 (L) 0.94 (L)
156,852,363 (L) 740 (L)
10,162,180 (L) 048 (L)
85,000 (L) 0.004 (L)
597,091 (L) 003 (L)
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Dongyue Initiator Limited#) % E0## % - #UE A
18 B Dongyue Initiator Limited$ A #9156,852,363
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Notes:

®)

Pursuant to the SFO, as Mr. Zhang Jianhong holds 100% interest in Dongyue
Team Limited, Mr. Zhang is deemed to be interested in the 166,551,273
Shares(L) held by Dongyue Team Limited.

These Shares are directly held by Macro-Link International Investment Co.
Ltd. ("Macrolink International”) which in turn is wholly-owned by Macro-Link
Industrial Investment Limited (“Macrolink Industrial”). Macrolink Holding,
a company owned by Xi Zang Cheung Shek Investment Limited ("Xi Zang
Cheung Shek”) as to 75% and by Mr. Fu Kwan as to 10.63%, respectively, wholly
owned Macrolink Industrial. In addition, Mr. Fu Kwan and Mrs. Xiao Wenhui
directly own Xi Zang Cheung Shek as to 53.35% and 33.33%, respectively.

These Shares are directly held by Dongyue Wealth Limited which is wholly
owned by Mr. Liu Chuangi. Mr. Liu is deemed to be interested in the 87,360,000
Shares(L) held by Dongyue Wealth Limited under the SFO.

Pursuant to the SFO, as Mr. Cui Tongzheng holds 100% interest in Dongyue
Initiator Limited, Mr. Cui is deemed to be interested in the 156,852,363 Shares(L)
held by Dongyue Initiator Limited.

L: Long Position

Save asdisclosed above,asat 31 December 2013, none of the Directors

or chief executive of the Company or their respective associates had

any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and

debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations

(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be

notified to the Company and the HKSE pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8

of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which

they were taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions

of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the

SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein or which were

required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company
and the HKSE.
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Report of the Directors

Substantial shareholders’ and other
interests and short positions

underlying Shares and debentures

person’s
in the Shares,

As at 31 December 2013, so far as is known to the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company, the following persons (not being
a Director or chief executive of the Company) had an interest or a
short position in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO or which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

I3 AR
Sk E|

Number of shares or
underlying Shares

HEe 8T
RAB DL
% of issued

share capital

FTEEEE B
Macrolink International

FrERE
Macrolink Industrial

MERER
Macrolink Holding

E&A

Xi Zang Cheung Shek
HXEX+

Mrs. Xiao Wenhui

Dongyue Team Limited
Dongyue Team Limited

Dongyue Initiator Limited
Dongyue Initiator Limited

BRE -

BEanEmD
Beneficial interest”

Sl
Corporate interest™

L
Corporate interest™

Corporate interest™

ER L EE L)
BEamfEam®

Beneficial interest®

ol ol

Beneficial interest®

m

@

©)]

ZERDHNERBBREESS - MNEBEER
BT EME X2 EHA o NEN T X HMER
EREEES  MAERIERABARRA RE
FBRAED PIHEB75%51063%  toh - BRI ERA
DRBEELEERE XBZTEERB5335%%
33.33%#E5 ©

BEEFRBEGRY AR RERLERE
Dongyue Team Limited®) 2 5P s + MR SE AR
YE#E 5 Dongyue Team Limited FITH5 5 166,551,273/%
Bty (O EHE RS ©

BREZEFRBEGRY BRERBREERE
Dongyue Initiator Limitedf) % & # = + #§ & 5t
4 3 48 B # ADongyue Initiator Limited T 5 &
156,852,363% A% 7 (L AORE A

609,646,818 (L) 2877 (L)
609,646,818 (L) 28.77 (L)
609,646,818 (L) 28.77 (L)
609,646,818 (L) 28.77 (L)
609,646,818 (L) 28.77 (L)
166,551,273 (L) 7.86 (L)
156,852,363 (L) 740 (L)

Notes:

(M These Shares are directly held by Macrolink International which in turn

is wholly-owned by Macrolink Industrial. Macrolink Holding, a company
owned by Xi Zang Cheung Shek as to 75% and by Mr. Fu Kwan as to 10.63%,
respectively, wholly owned Macrolink Industrial. In addition, Mr. Fu Kwan and
Mrs. Xiao Wenhui directly own Xi Zang Cheung Shek as to 53.35% and 33.33%,
respectively.

(2) Pursuant to the SFO, as Mr. Zhang Jianhong holds 100% interest in Dongyue
Team Limited, Mr. Zhang is deemed to be interested in the 166,551,273
Shares(L) held by Dongyue Team Limited.

(3) Pursuant to the SFO, as Mr. Cui Tongzheng holds 100% interest in Dongyue
Initiator Limited, Mr. Cui is deemed to be interested in the 156,852,363 Shares(L)
held by Dongyue Initiator Limited.

(4) L: Long Position
Dongyue Group Limited
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() R2013F12A31HRETEBHMA () Interests in other members of the Group as at 31

ERTFNER December 2013

LEBENMELR

BRITRE

AAT B DB BB ZMB AR EERR EEME HRELXABDL
% of issued share

capital/registered

Name of the Name of substantial shareholder  Nature of capital of such

Company’s subsidiary of such subsidiary interest subsidiary

IERREREM B ARAF] IRE @I RAMIRE AR A A] NG 1678

(TRERE]D
Shandong Dongyue Fluo-Silicon Shandong Hi Tech Investment Corporate

Materials Co., Ltd. ("Dongyue F&S") Co., Ltd.
NEEREZ BRI TERAR] TRE S IEFREBR AT NG 49
Inner Mongolia Dongyue Peak Fluorine Chifeng Peak Copper Co., Ltd. Corporate

Chemicals Co,, Ltd.

TREEFBERR A A TRE S IEIFEBR AT NG 20

Chifeng HuaSheng Mining Co,, Ltd. Chifeng Peak Copper Co., Ltd. Corporate

REREHEEFRAA MEBEXREARAA NG 40

(TREREHEE]) (THrEmMERERE )
Dongying Dongyue Salt Co,, Ltd. Macro-Link Asset Investment Corporate

("Dongying Dongyue Salt”) Co., Ltd.

("Macrolink Asset Investment”)

REREEMETARADA MEBERERE
Dongying Dongyue Precision Chemicals Macrolink Asset Investment!

Co,, Ltd.
LR R SOA MR A R A E] WL R A E SO TR A F NG] 49
Shandong Dongyue Wenhe Fluorine Shandong Lai Wu Wen He Corporate

Chemicals Co,, Ltd. Chemicals Co,, Ltd.

Bi3E - Note:

m FEREXRERBRE R T HEEM00ER ) Macrolink Asset Investment is a 40% equity holder in Dongying Dongyue Salt
MREREHEEERERERALCIARAA which, in turn, owns 75% of Dongying Dongyue Precision Chemicals Co,, Ltd,,
B)75% s - ANA R AR R T 25% e o Eit - with the remaining 25% owned by the Company. Consequently, Macrolink
TEREARERERBRERERBMEIER Asset Investment indirectly owns more than 10% of Dongying Dongyue
ARIFBIR10%E R Precision Chemicals Co,, Ltd.

REEEBRAT]
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Report of the Directors

Saved as disclosed above, so far as is known to the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company, as at 31 December 2013, no other person (other
than the Directors or the chief executive of the Company) had any interest
or a short position in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who were, directly or indirectly,
interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital
carrying rights to vote in all at general meetings of any other member of
the Group.

Directors’ interests in competing business

During the year ended 31 December 2013, none of the Directors of the
Company was interested in any business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

Management contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered into or
existed during the year.

Major suppliers and customers

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to the
Group's major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases
- the largest supplier 11.11%
— five largest suppliers combined 25.89%
Sales
- the largest customer 1.53%
— five largest customers combined 6.19%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.

Dongyue Group Limited _~""-
gy p 043"
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BERXS

REERKFELEETBRIEBAES LD
FHA (T ETHEAD) $£14A45(5 30 F14A63 KB 1R
EIERNFES S -

AREBREZE2013F12A3HIEFEFI LB £

Connected transactions

During the year, the Group had not entered into connected transactions
that are subject to be reported pursuant to Rule 14A.45 or 14A.63 of the

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the HKSE (the “Listing Rules”).

Details of the continuing connected transactions entered into by the Group

MHRABABBRTHREBER HFBEERIIW during the year ended 31 December 2013 not falling under Rule 14A 33 of
™ the Listing Rules are set out below:

03 FWIRHERER S FE LR BEREH

Continuing connected transactions for the year 2013 Annual Cap Actual

(AR®BET) (ARBBEET)

(RMB million) (RMB million)

MIREREEE (FEREHE Framework agreement for the 119.7 304

BEXERAR]) KB TXE
S
HESSEANCIED)

T -

e ((RERE

purchase of industrial salt from
Dongying Dongyue Salt (previously
named Dongying Macrolink Salt Co,, Ltd.)

(the "DDS Agreement”) (Note)

VR ERTHERZENENRASELEERBRE
(AREENRARE SRR TREREEENEE
FEERME) c REREEERAH RARREFR —(I#H
TEEEERENHEARANR A E BRI EBEER
RSB AMKABBEALT - TEBEXREHNERT
B R AR R AT E0%X%20% ° #2010F12A8318 » B
AiEEEAREEEREE013F2ANNALEZAFE
FIVREREHEERS  URASENRRERETHER
BEIXE - FERERTHEERZNFBRAELARA
B1A2010F12A31 AR ©

M2013F12A318 - REAHEREREHET VAT
RLeREEERE ASH=F HEZE2016F12A318 °
BB RERTEEGENFBEENARR B A
20131231 HHAE »

TRENEEERIAGAT2ETEEERZHE
ATBER FBSLE = 7 R IR EATFERERR]
3 WRBAEER—EAZEEHRN AL ELERD
A BREERTCUT  REREEFE A 5%
SUREASEAREREEE RN THHE -

REEEBRAR
—EB-=HER

Note:

The purpose of the DDS Agreement is for the purpose of the Group’s production
of liquid alkali and chlorine (an essential intermediate raw material for the Group's
refrigerants, fluoropolymers and organic silicone production). Dongying Dongyue
Salt is a connected person by virtue of it being an associate of one of the Company’s
executive Directors, Mr. Fu Kwan and an associate of the Company’s substantial
shareholder, Macrolink International. Macrolink Asset Investment is held as to 80% by
Macrolink Holding and 20% by Xi Zang Cheung Shek. On 31 December 2010, Dongyue
F&S entered into the DDS Agreement with Dongying Dongyue Salt for three years to 31
December 2013 for purchase of industrial salt by the Group from Dongying Dongyue
Salt. Details of the DDS Agreement are set out in the Company’s announcement dated
31 December 2010.

On 31 December 2013, Dongyue F&S entered into the Renewed DDS Agreement with
Dongying Dongyue Selt for three years to 31 December 2016. Details of the Renewed
DDS Agreement are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 31 December
2013.

The purchase price for the industrial salt payable by the Group shall be paid by means
of cheque or remittance with one month credit term and on normal commercial terms
which will be determined after arm’s length negotiation between the parties with
reference to the then prevailing market price of industrial salt that is no less favourable
than that offered to independent third parties. There is no provision in the DDS
Agreement requiring the Group to exclusively source industrial salt from Dongying
Dongyue Salt.
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Report of the Directors

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been reviewed by
the INEDs. The INEDs confirmed that the aforesaid continuing connected
transaction were entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Group; (b) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from independent third
parties; and () in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Board engaged the auditors of the Company in respect of the aforesaid
continuing connected transactions. The auditors have reported to the
Board in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float of the issued shares of the
Company as required under the Listing Rules.

Auditors

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu will retire as auditors of the Company and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the
re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company
will be proposed at the AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Jianhong
Chairman

The People’s Republic of China, 20 March 2014

Dongyue Group Limited ="~
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The board of Directors (the “Board”) of Dongyue Group Limited (the
“Company”) recognizes their mission of creating values and maximizing
returns to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”), while at
the same time fulfilling their corporate responsibilities. To this end, we strive
to promote and uphold the highest standard of corporate governance.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “HKSE") has promulgated
the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) which came into effect for
listed issuers’ first financial year commencing on or after 1 January 2005.
Afterwards, the HKSE has made revision to the Code (the “Revised Code”)
which becomes effective from 1 January and 1 April 2012 and 1 September
2013. The Board has completed the review of the Revised Code. In order
to continue to maintain high standard of corporate governance, the
Board ensures that, taking into account the prevailing standards adopted
by the Company and its own circumstances, the Company can comply
with the requirements as stipulated under the Revised Code, by making
the necessary disclosure, modification to the various procedures and
documentation.

The Board has reviewed the corporate governance practices of the
Company with the adoption and improvement of the various procedures
and documentation which are detailed in this report. To the best
knowledge and belief of the Directors, the Company has adopted and
complied with the code provisions of the Code and the Revised Code
during the year ended 31 December 2013 and up to the date of this report,
except for deviation regarding the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer, the details of which have been disclosed in the relevant paragraphs
below in this report.

The Board

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”), and oversees the Group's businesses,
strategic direction and performance. The Board delegates the authority
and responsibility to the Group’s management for the management of the
Group. In addition, the Board has also delegated various responsibilities
to the Board’s Committees. The composition of the Board is reviewed
regularly to ensure that it has a good balance of expertise, skills and
experience which can meet the requirements of the business of the Group.
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During the year ended 31 December 2013 and up to the date of this report,
except that Mr. Yan Jianhua resigned from his office as the Company’s
Executive Director with effect from 21 March 2013 and that Dr. Wu Tao was
appointed as the Company's Executive Director with effect from the same
date, there was no change in the structure of the Board, which currently

comprises nine Directors and its composition is set out as follows:

Executive Directors (“EDs"):

Mr. Zhang Jianhong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Fu Kwan

Mr. Liu Chuangqi (President)

Mr. Cui Tongzheng (Vice President and Chief Financial Officer)
Dr.Wu Tao

Mr. Zhang Jian

Independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs"):

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen
Mr. Liu Yi
Mr. Yue Rundong

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in the “Directors’
and Senior Management's Profile” section on pages 25 to 28 of this annual
report.

The Company has three INEDs representing one-third of the Board. At least
one of the INEDs has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise pursuant to Rule 3.10 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the HKSE (the "Listing Rules”).
The Board has received from each INED an annual confirmation of his
independence and considers that all the INEDs are independent under the
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Dongyue Group Limited
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EXEeTHen  AANAEEBRRRBAREE
BRI - WEMRIEAREBFEE LT EE
BUELEER U BN HFREEE G
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RBREBEREG ((RREFRE]) - RIRRE
FREIN ARBMERTHORTEE - BE
FHREFSSZ MRRBEFRENBE AT
T

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as the
operation and financial performance of the Group, and to review and
approve the Group’s annual and interim results, as well as corporate
governance, financial, capital, remuneration and mergers and acquisition
matters. During the year under review, five Board meetings and an annual
general meeting ("AGM") were held. Apart from the AGM, no other general
meetings were held by the Company. The attendance of each Director at
the Board meetings and the AGM is set out as follows:

HEE BT HERR
EESRERLNH BEXEER
Number of

Board meetings Attendance of

attended/held the AGM
BITES EDs:
RERTAE Mr. Zhang Jianhong 5/5 V
BELLE Mr. Fu Kwan 2/5%
2EFRE Mr. Liu Chuangi 4/5
ERBEE Mr. Cui Tongzheng 5/5 V
BeiEEEL A Mr. Yan Jianhua 2/5
REEL Dr. Wu Tao 2/5 V
RIS Mr. Zhang Jian 5/5 V
BYFHTES INEDs:
TRBEA Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 5/5 V
EllE e Mr. Liu Yi 5/5 V
EHREE Mr. Yue Rundong 5/5 V
* BEEZAETEAREREHHAEHEESEESE - * Mr. Fu appointed certain individuals to attend the Board meetings on his behalf during

HEWRFNLAJNBLEFE  EFSRECFEE
TESRAEBRERE FERPHES R
EEYE - REBBUK - DEER - BEXR UK
MRKEEE EFSCKASEZBFEKE
BEZRSEEBEABAE UXEZRCEE - It
AN 2013128178 0 TRES BB IFNTT
EFZem (UEEMRNITEEL2M) - UAER
MEBEE  SEMCEESEBSTEIRESR -

RESEARAT]
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his absence.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Board has dealt with matters
covering mainly the Group's overall strategy, annual and interim results,
internal control, dividend policies, corporate governance, capital, financial,
remuneration and acquisition matters. The Board has delegated the
day-to-day operations of the Group to the senior management under the
supervision of the Board. In addition, on 17 December 2013, the Chairman
and all the INEDs met without the presence of other EDs to exchange views
on matters concerning the business development, management and
corporate governance of the Group.
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Board meetings are scheduled to be held at approximately quarterly
intervals and as required by business needs. At least 14 days' notice of
regular Board meetings (or reasonable notice for all other meetings) is
normally given to all Directors who are given an opportunity to include
matters for discussion in the agenda. The Company Secretary assists
the Chairman in preparing the agenda for meetings and ensures that all
applicable rules and regulations are complied with. The agenda and the
accompanying Board papers are normally sent to all Directors at least 3
days before the intended date of a Board meeting. All minutes are kept by
the Company Secretary and are open for inspection at any reasonable time
on reasonable notice by any Director.

In facilitating the Directors to discharge their responsibilities as stipulated
under the Listing Rules, starting from April 2012, the Directors have been
provided with monthly updates giving a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group's performance, position and prospects in
sufficient detail and with appropriate insurance cover to protect them from
potential risks arising from legal actions against them while they discharge
their duties.

Directors’ continuous professional development

The Directors are briefed on the amendments to or updates on the
relevant laws, rules and regulations. In addition, the Directors are provided
with written materials to develop and refresh their professional skills. On
20 March 2013, the Company organized for the Directors an in-house
workshop (the "Workshop”) on the Listing Rules.

According to the records maintained by the Company, the Directors
received the following training on continuous professional development
during the year under review:
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Directors’ responsibilities in corporate governance

The Directors recognize the importance and their responsibilities for
maintaining a high standard of corporate governance. In this accord,
during the year under review, the Board has established a corporate
governance committee which is responsible for, among others, reviewing
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and the
Company'’s compliance with the Code and the Revised Code and the
relevant disclosure in this report.

More details are set out under the relevant paragraphs of the section
headed "Corporate Governance Committee” of this report.
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Directors’ securities transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors confirmed they have complied
with the required standard set out in the code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors adopted by the Company.

Roles of chairman and chief executive officer

Code A.2.1 of the Code stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. Mr. Zhang Jianhong is both the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. The Board believes that vesting the roles
of both Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the same position provides
the Group with stronger and more consistent leadership and allows for
more effective planning. Further, the Board considers that this structure
will not impair the balance of power, which has been closely monitored
by the Board, which comprises experienced and high caliber individuals.
The Board has full confidence in Mr. Zhang and believes that the current
arrangement is beneficial to the business prospect of the Group.

Appointment and re-election of Directors

The appointment of new Director(s) and other related matters have
been delegated to the Company’s Nomination Committee, which would
make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters including the
appointment or reappointment of the Directors of the Company. The
Board considers that the new Director(s) is expected to have expertise in
relevant area to make contribution to the Company and to have sufficient
time to participate in the decision making process of the Company.

The EDs of the Company did not enter into service contracts with the
Company. However, each of the INEDs signed a letter of appointment with
the Company for a term of approximately two years commencing from 1
January 2012. Upon the expiry of the appointment letters on 31 December
2013, all the INEDs signed new letters of appointment with the Company
for a term of another two years commencing from 1 January 2014.
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Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association (the “Articles”), one-third
of the Directors for the time being (or if the number is not a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire
from office by rotation at each AGM in accordance with the provisions of
the Articles. Accordingly, all Directors shall be subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at AGM under the Articles.

Board committees

TheBoard hasestablished a Remuneration Committee, an Audit Committee,
a Nomination Committee and a Corporate Governance Committee, each
of which has its specific written terms of reference, which have been
available on the Company’s and the HKSE's websites, and is chaired by
INEDs (except the Nomination Committee and the Corporate Governance
Committee). To further enhance independence, all the committees (except
the Corporate Governance Committee) include a majority of INEDs.

Remuneration committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises the Company’s two INEDs and
one ED, namely, Mr. Liu Yi (being the Chairman of the Committee), Mr.
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen and Mr. Zhang Jianhong. The written terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee cover, among other things,
the review of the Group’s policy and structure for the remuneration for
all the Directors and senior management of the Group, the approval of
the remuneration for all the EDs and senior management of the Group,
including the granting of share options to the Group’s employees and the
EDs under the Company’s Share Option Scheme, and the recommendation
to the Board for the remuneration for the INEDs.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, two meetings of the
Remuneration Committee were held. The attendance of each member is
set out as follows:

HEE AT
ZEEEERH
Number of
Committee meeting

attended/held
EEEKE Committee member:
BESEE Mr. Liu i 2/2
TREBGE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 2/2
RERTAE Mr. Zhang Jianhong 2/2
REEEBRAT]
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During the meetings, the remuneration of the EDs and the Group’s senior
management for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 was approved.
In addition, the members discussed and reviewed the remuneration
for the Directors and the Group's senior management and the Group’s
remuneration related matters.

The remuneration of the members of the senior management by band for
the year ended 31 December 2013 is set out below:

AB

Number of persons

2,000,001 7€ 23,000,0007T
3,000,0017T24,000,0007T
4,000,0017T 2 5,000,0007T

BiE ETRBM 6B THRENEBESHH X
Afifx = 5 ME B 0#E — DB HN I R R
11812

BREES

ERREQHARR =BBUIFNTES - 75l
RTRERE (ZEEXR ABAEEXER
KGR BEEEREXNR)  BIEEERE
TR AR -

EVZBENIZRARBENARRFHRLEKR
RAFERERER Uit EFSRHEEZS
RER  BERE ERZERERINEZEENR
SEGRUESEULMEINEZEEMNME M E
B - BEZZE S NARRHAKRENY S
AR P RRREEIR BT - W R IR R

2,000,001 to 3,000,000 1
3,000,001 to 4,000,000 3
4,000,001 to 5,000,000 1

Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five highest
paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to
the Listing Rules are set out in notes 11 and 12 to the financial statements.

Audit committee

The Audit Committee comprises the Company'’s three INEDs, namely, Mr.
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen (being the Chairman of the Committee with
appropriate professional qualification or accounting or related financial
management expertise), Mr. Liu Yi and Mr. Yue Rundong.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review the Company’s
annualreportsandaccounts, half-yearly reportsand accounts andto provide
advice and comments thereon to the Board, to make recommendation to
the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of external
auditors and to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditors. The Audit Committee is also responsible for reviewing
the financial reporting process and internal control system of the Group
and to give suggestions in these regards.
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The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year ended 31
December 2013 and the attendance of each member is set out as follows:
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EEREE Mr. Yue Rundong 3/3
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The external auditors of the Company and the related management of the
Group also attended these meetings.

During the meetings held in the financial year ended 31 December 2013,
the Audit Committee has performed the works which are set out as follows:

perform pre-audit meeting in respect of the financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012;

discuss and review auditing, internal controls, risk management
and financial reporting matters including the review of the annual/
interim reports, accounts and the related results announcements,
before recommending them to the Board for approval;

approve the remuneration for the audit and non-audit services
provided by the external auditors and its relevant terms of
engagement in respect of the financial year ended 31 December
2012; and

review the external audit findings, the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, the Listing Rules and statutory
compliance in relation to the financial reporting.

In addition, on 8 January 2014, the Audit Committee conducted pre-audit
meeting with the external auditors in respect of the audit of the financial
statements of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2013.
The Audit Committee also met with the management on 20 March 2014
to review the accounting standards and practices adopted by the Group
and to discuss matters regarding internal control and financial reporting
including the review of the Group's annual results for the year ended 31
December 2013 before proposing to the Board for approval.



REEEE

NATCHR2012F3818BKIIREREES - 1=
AETHBESEAREARRFEZNZIR
HibifEE - RER AL EZTAREEZE S
NEFE TRELZEMIBLEEZTARSER
BEMNE - REZECHTERTARTES
CHRE  REREK (BIERE - A &%
EZuiem)  MeABaEERAEIESEN
AL FIEBYRTERNBIE  RTES
B Z LB ([BXR]) Mg ESSRE
ERBERANAEERZUARRARG D
EARMENIENBBERZEEEMNERMNIEER
WEE -

REZE2013F1NANBILEFE  REBLZEGETT
N ERENHEBRAT

EEREAME

Corporate Governance Report

Nomination committee

The Company established a Nomination Committee with written terms of
reference on 18 March 2012 to be responsible for the appointment of new
Director(s) of the Company and other related matters. Mr. Zhang Jianhong
was appointed as the chairman of the Nomination Committee and Mr. Ting
Leung Huel, Stephen and Mr. Liu Yi were appointed as the members of the
Nomination Committee. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee
are to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge, experience and diversity) of the Board, to identify individuals
suitably qualified to become members of the Board, to assess the
independence of the INEDs, to review the policy (the “Policy”) concerning
the diversity of the Board and the measurable objectives that the Board has
adopted for implementing the Policy and to make the relevant disclosure
on the progress of achieving those objectives in the corporate governance
report of the Company.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year ended 31
December 2013 and the attendance of each member is set out as follows:

ERLEBR
Attendance of
the meeting

ZEERE Committee member:
SRR E Mr. Zhang Jianhong N
TREBEAE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen Ny
e Mr. Liu Yi N

ReZME ZEEXENRTESTSNAENKA
MEE IR ESSELHEBEZENRE
B RMEFESERZEUHRTESTAERRE
ERTEFZ2E=R > NEH T ELFATERD
B -

RAFE B EHMIERAZE MK
{ERTBMESEE - W AT RO A B ARk B HgE 52 P A i

During the meeting, the members discussed matters relating to the
composition of the Board and make recommendation thereon to the
Board for consideration, made recommendation to the Board on the
appointment of a new ED to fill the vacancy of the resigning ED as well as
reviewed the independence of the INEDs.

During the current year, the Board has reviewed and approved the revised
terms of reference for the Nomination Committee which has been available
on the Company’s and HKSE's websites.
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In addition, on 20 March 2014, the Board approved the Policy for the
diversity of the Board. A summary of the Policy is set out as follows:

A.  Policy Statement
The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board. A truly diverse Board will include and make good
use of differences in the skills, regional and industry experience,
background, race, gender and other qualities of Directors. These
differences will be taken into account in determining the optimum
composition of the Board. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board.

B. Measurable Objectives
1. The Nomination Committee will discuss and agree annually
measurable objectives for implementing diversity on the
Board and recommend to the Board for adoption.

2. The Company aims to build and maintain a Board with a
diversity of Directors, in terms of skills, experiences, knowledge,
expertise, culture, independence, age and gender.

C.  Monitoring and Reporting
1. The Nomination Committee will report annually, in the
Corporate Governance Report, on the Board's composition
under  diversified  perspectives, and  monitor the
implementation of the Policy.

2. A summary of the Policy, together with the measureable
objectives set for implementing the Policy and the progress
made towards achieving those objectives will be disclosed in
the Corporate Governance Report.

D. Review of the Policy
The Nomination Committee will review the Policy, as appropriate,
and recommend any proposed changes to the Board for approval.

The Nomination Committee and the Board are in the course of setting out
the measurable objectives as mentioned above and will make the relevant
disclosure in accordance with the Policy in the Corporate Governance
Report.
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Corporate Governance Committee

The Company established a Corporate Governance Committee with terms
of reference on 21 March 2013. Mr. Zhang Jianhong was appointed as the
chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee and Mr. Liu Chuangiand
Dr. Wu Tao were appointed as the members of the Corporate Governance
Committee. The primary duties of the Corporate Governance Committee
are to develop and review policies and practices on corporate governance
and make recommendations to the Board, to review and monitor the
training and continuous professional development of Directors, to review
and monitor policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements and to review the compliance with the Code and the Revised
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Reports.

On 20 March 2014, a meeting of the Corporate Governance Committee was
held. The attendance of each member is set out as follows:

SREERER
Attendance of
the meeting

EEERE: Committee member:
RER A Mr. Zhang Jianhong N
BlEakE Mr. Liu Chuangi J
REEL Dr. Wu Tao N
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During the meeting, the members discussed and reviewed matters
relating to the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance,
the training and continuous professional development of Directors, and
this Corporate Governance Report, which was recommended by the
Committee’s members for adoption by the Board.
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Respective responsibilities of Directors and
external auditors

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements,
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of
the Group's results and cash flows. The external auditors are responsible
to form an independent opinion, based on the audit, on the financial
statements prepared by the Directors and report the opinion solely to the
members of the Company as a body and for no other purpose.

Internal control

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining the soundness
and effectiveness of the internal control system and risk management
procedures of the Group, including setting a management structure
and its terms of reference to ensure efficient and effective use of the
Group's resources to assist the Group in achieving its operation objectives,
safeguarding the Group's assets against any unauthorized use or disposal
and ensuring an appropriate maintenance of according records and the
availability of reliable financial information for internal use or external

release.

The Audit Committee assisted the Board in discharging its responsibilities
for maintaining an effective system of internal controls on the Group’s
business and financial operations. The Audit Committee completed the
annual review of the Group's internal control evaluations in respect of the
financial year ended 31 December 2013 through a professional accounting
firm, which mainly covered certain of the Group'’s business and financial
operations and followed up the Group's major control weaknesses in
respect of the previous year. No major issues but areas of improvement have
been identified. All recommendations from the professional accounting
firm will be properly followed up to ensure that they are implemented
within a reasonable period to time.
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External auditor’s remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the total remuneration for the audit
services provided by the external auditors amounted to approximately
RMB1,632,000.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the total remuneration for the
permissible non-audit services provided by the external auditors amounted
to approximately RMB593,000, analyzed into (1) RMB455,000 for the review
of the interim financial report of the Group for the six months period ended
30 June 2013, and (2) RMB138,000 for the review of the internal control
evaluations for the year ended 31 December 2013.

The re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of the
Company has been recommended by the Audit Committee and endorsed
by the Board and is subject to approval by the Shareholders at the
forthcoming AGM.

Shareholders’ rights

Proceduresforthe Shareholderstoconveneextraordinary
general meetings (“"EGM”)

Pursuant to the Articles, one or more registered Shareholders holding
not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid up capital of the Company (the
EGM Requisitionists”) carrying right of voting at the general meetings
can deposit a written requisition to convene an EGM to the Board or the
Company Secretary at the registered office, which is presently situated at
Floor 4, Willow House, Cricket Square, PO. Box 2804, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1112, Cayman Islands, or its office in Hong Kong, which is presently situated
at Unit 02, 15/F, AXA Centre, 151 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
The EGM Requisitionists must state in their requisition the businesses of
the EGM to be transacted and such requisition must be signed by all the
EGM Requisitionists.

Promptly after confirmation that the EGM Requisitionists’ requisition is
in order, the Company Secretary will arrange with the Board to convene
the EGM by serving sufficient notice to all the registered Shareholders in
accordance with all the relevant statutory requirements. According to the
Articles, the EGM shall be held within two months after the deposit of the
requisition. If within twenty-one days of the deposit of the requisition, the
Board fails to proceed to convene the EGM, the EGM Requisitionists may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by them as a
result of failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the EGM Requisitionists
by the Company.
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Proceduresforthe Shareholders to putforward proposals
at a general meeting

To put forward proposals at AGM or EGM, the Shareholders should submit
a written notice of those proposals with their detailed contact information
to the Board or the Company Secretary at Unit 02, 15/F, AXA Center, 151
Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The request will be verified and
upon confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the Company
Secretary will request the Board to include the resolution in the agenda for
the general meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for consideration of
the proposal raised by the Shareholders concerned at AGM or SGM varies
according to the nature of the proposal, as follows:

At least 14 clear days’ notice in writing if the proposal constitutes an
ordinary resolution of the Company in EGM

At least 21 clear days’ notice in writing if the proposal constitutes a
special resolution of the Company in EGM or an ordinary or special
resolution of the Company in AGM

Procedures for the Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director
As regards the procedures for proposing a person for election as a Director,

please refer to the procedures made available on the Company’s website
www.dongyuechem.com.
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Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose contact details are
as follows:

Unit 02, 15/F
AXA Centre,
51 Gloucester Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong
Fax: 852-3529-1009
Email: dennisng1805@gmail.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at any general
meetings of the Company.

Investor relations

Communication channels

In order to develop and maintain continuing relationships with the
Shareholders, the Company has established various channels to facilitate
and enhance communication:

* the AGM provides a forum for the Shareholders to raise comments
and exchange views with the Board; and

. updated key information of the Group is available on the Company’s
website to enable the Shareholders and the investor community to

have timely access to information about the Group.
The Chairman and the Directors (including the chairmen and/or the

members of the various Board Committees) are available at AGM to answer

questions raised by the Shareholders.

Dongyue Group Limited
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Change in the constitutional documents of the
Company

During the year under review and up to the date of this report, there has
been no change in the constitutional documents of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Jianhong
Chairman

The People’s Republic of China, 20 March 2014
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Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE MEMBERS OF DONGYUE GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dongyue Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) set out on pages 65 to 175, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2013,and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

Dongyue Group Limited
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2013, and of
the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

20 March 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HZE2013F12A31BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

2013%F 20124
FfaE AR®F T ARETTT
2013 2012
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
Was Revenue 6 6,782,814 7,050,822
THERA Cost of sales (5,686,752) (5,367,436)
EH Gross profit 1,096,062 1,683,386
HAbUWr A Other income 7 178,186 117,817
DIHRHER X Distribution and selling expenses (253,976) (209,912)
THRAXZ Administrative expenses (298,483) (367,203)
o kAR Research and development expenses (71,668) (33,764)
BMEKAR Finance costs 8 (89,065) (136,076)
FGE & A Rl 4E Share of results of associates 445 324
BRAE A& A Profit before tax 561,501 1,054,572
FriSBiF Income tax expense 9 (124,275) (347,509)
F R A Profit and total comprehensive
EHERABE income for the year 10 437,226 707,063
T 7 &R Profit and total comprehensive
ZEWA (FAX) 8% income (expense) attributable to:
RATHEB A Owners of the Company 465,898 713,056
IR AR R A = Non-controlling interests (28,672) (5993)
437,226 707,063
BRAF Earnings per share 13
HER (AREBT) Basic (RMB) 0.22 034
#E (AR%T) Diluted (RMB) 0.22 034

Dongyue Group Limited ="~
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

2013512831 H
At 31 December 2013

2013%F 20124F
FfaE ARETT ARETTT
2013 2012
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
FRBEE Non-current assets
M - e KR Property, plant and equipment 15 4,494,015 4,121,444
BEYE  #ELRE Prepayments for purchase of property,

ZTENFIR plant and equipment 54,556 48488
AN TS Prepayments for land lease 367 495
EREE Prepaid lease payments 16 562,117 379,533
B EE Intangible assets 17 179,241 84,475
B E R Rl R R Interests in associates 18 17,038 1,593
A ERE Available-for-sale investments 19 195,283 118,178
REFIBE = Deferred tax assets 20 166,451 116,221
Bk Goodwill 21 85,894 1,354

5,754,962 4,871,781
REBEE Current assets
s Inventories 22 700,054 524,926
TEHE RS 2 EEY Properties under development for sale 23 569,488 372,884
aftEe Prepaid lease payments 16 15,272 10,909
L B 5K e L Ath P WA SR IR Trade and other receivables 24 1,218,239 894,191
ZEEX Entrusted loans 25 425,000 400,000
BHEAIRITIFH Pledged bank deposits 26 106,320 20,570
RITERRR S Bank balances and cash 26 1,243,296 1,682,728

4,277,669 3,906,208
REAE Current liabilities
RN AR M EAENTRIE  Trade and other payables 27 1,604,381 1,325,490
REBEME 2 ZS Deposits from pre-sale of properties 438,784
B Borrowings 28 866,474 774,302
HIREE Tax liabilities 16,736 63,063
EIEUIA Deferred income 29 12,797 8,256

2,939,172 2,171,111
MEVEEFHE Net current assets 1,338,497 1,735,097
BREERRDEE Total assets less current liabilities 7,093,459 6,606,878
REEEBRAA

—EB-=HER



RAaMBHIRR

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

#2013 12A318
At 31 December 2013

20134 20124F
BtEE AR¥T T ARBFIT
2013 2012
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
BEAXR#E Capital and reserves
(&N Share capital 30 201,013 201,111
i Reserves 5,065,836 4,747,204
RAREE A Equity attributable to the owners of
FE(h s the Company 5,266,849 4,948,315
FEPERR AR R A 2 Non-controlling interests 243,979 278,543
MRS Total equity 5,510,828 5,226,858
FRBEMS Non-current liabilities
FIEYA Deferred income 29 246,377 199,613
FERIEE R Deferred tax liabilities 20 50,164 42611
faE Borrowings 28 1,286,090 1,137,796
1,582,631 1,380,020
7,093,459 6,606,878

FOSE175B MERA VMR L ESZTZ 201453
A0 A ERIRET)E - SWH FAIATRERSE !

RELR
Zhang Jianhong
EE
DIRECTOR

The consolidated financial statements on pages 65 to 175 were approved

and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20 March 2014 and

are signed on its behalf by:

ERK
Cui Tongzheng
EE
DIRECTOR

Dongyue Group Limited ="~
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HZE2013F12A31BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

ALREE AR
Attributable to owners of the Company
HE EERS FER
Ba RitaE i AkEE RERRE i RERA a  RREg @t
AREFR ARBTL ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARMTL ARETR
(M) (Wtd) (ko)
Share Statutory Non-
Share Share  option  Merger  Capital  surplus  Retained controlling
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  earnings Total interests Total
RMB0O0  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBO0O0  RMBOOO  RMBO0O  RMB000
(Notea) ~ (Noteh) (Note )

012F1A18 48 Balance at 1 January 2012 00011 1238838 127778 (322100 101098 497046 2649427 4783088 292208 5075296

EREHREENA (%) Profit and total comprehensive income (expense)

s for the year - - - - - - 713056 7130% (5993) 707,063
& } Transfr - - - - - 130083 (130093 - - -
FARRRERL A Capital contrbution fiom non-controling inerests - - - - - - - - 9800 9800
BRAFERERERRE Dividends paid to non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - (74D (1741)

EfRE Dividends paid - - - - - - (6%876) (60876 - (6%g70)

DREES 2RO X TE Recognition of equity-ettled share-based payments - - B - - - - BW - B
012512831848 Balance at 31 December 2012 201,111 1238838 270825 (322100 101,098 627,139 2541514 4948315 278,543 5,226,858
EREHREENA (R%) Profit and total comprehensive income (expense)

ot for the year - - - - - - 465898 465898  (28672) 437226
25 Transfr - - - - - 7196 (19) - - -
FERRRERL A Capita contrbution fiom non-controling inerests - - - - - - - - 4000 4000
BRAFERRFERRS Dividends paid to non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - 989 (989

EfifRE Dividends paid - - - - - - (219428 (219428) - (194)
BB E RS R Recognition of equity-settled shared-based payments - - 74962 - - - - 7496 - 74962
B RHARG (M) Shares repurchased and cancelled (note 30) (98 (2800) - - - - - 28%) - (28%)
W13ENANALE Balance at 31 December 2013 201,013 1236038 345787 (322100 101,098 699,065 2716058 5266849 243979 5510828
Bt5E Notes:

@ A OHEB R AR 2006F 2R B EA - @) Merger reserve arose in group reorganisation completed in 2006.

(b) M2007F11 A168 - RARIBEMERAERHTERE (b) On 16 November 2007, the Company repurchased all of the 275,000,000 previously
{50,135 JT B9 & 38 B%275,000,0008% -+ T 5% S8 @ & 5@ A% &2 issued ordinary shares of US$0.1 each and these repurchased ordinary shares were
BEZBNMAZEZEEARBTRA—GZHE - A #& cancelled with all of the authorised but unissued share capital as of that date. On
3 55%4,000,000,0000% & AR EEO.1 & TR EIBAR - AT the same date, the authorised share capital was increased to HK$400,000,000 by
fi& 7532 2 400,000,000%8 7T ° 732007411 A158 » MIREFAR the creation of 4,000,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each. 275,000,000 new
R #47275,000,0008% AR E 0.1/ TRV ET L3R - FE A ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each were then issued to the shareholders existing on 15
SRR B BT REENZEE RS AR RS - November 2007. The excess of the repurchased amount over the nominal amount of

new shares issued was credited directly to the capital reserve.
1) B B 2 ) FE 20 A% % B Uk Bl KB NbE 25 T AR B JE 2R AR AR The acquisitions of additional interest from non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries
HEZNRZ S BUEANEEITE BEEERER were recognised as transactions with non-controlling interests and the corresponding
BEMETIBE 8 o discount/premium were credited/debited directly against capital reserve.

© BiEhE ARAEMNE ([RE(ATEE) RBEAL S (@ In accordance with the Company Law of People’s Republic of China (“PRC") and the
Al AAFTHEHEBATAEHRERNREDE et relevant Articles of Association, the PRC subsidiaries of the Company are required
E‘JE%E’\]B@*Rédm*']10%9’]&@”“%%&1@)\&'@%%%% o to appropriate amount equal to 10% of their profit after taxation as determined in

accordance with the PRC accounting standards to the statutory surplus reserve.
5%;@‘@@%1%1%2%%?%%?%*%5 s A pa e T E Statutory surplus reserve is part of shareholders’ equity and when its balance reaches
R & As0%r) %8 - BIBAEE—FDE - BRIEPH an amount equal to 50% of the registered capital, further appropriation is not required.
(RFRE) /fiﬁgj@@gﬁ—jﬁﬁf@tg\ﬁﬂggﬂg s BB According to the Company Law of the PRC, statutory surplus reserve may be used to
B R MR AB S I T SR A o make up past losses, to increase production and business operations or to increase
capital by means of conversion.
REEEFRA
:Q——ﬁiﬁ
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HZE2013F12A31BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

2013% 20126
BiEE ARETT ARETT
2013 2012
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
REED OPERATING ACTIVITIES
BRI A Profit before tax 561,501 1,054,572
WHEIER Adjustments for:
RBEKRAK Finance costs 89,065 136,076
MEKA Interest income (110,657) (95,985)
EERAZER Realisation of deferred income (12,384) (8,256)
HER U R K Recognition of impairment on
B trade receivables 111 5,380
H& 01 H b FEWTRIR Reversal of impairment on other
RE receivables - (1342)
EREH Depreciation and amortisation 561,195 556,027
REENES Release of prepaid lease payments 12,869 9,193
WS 2 AR Z Equity-settled share-based payment
X expenses 74,962 143,047
HWRFE Write-down of inventories 5,890 4,041
iEla N ES Share of results of associates (445) (324)
AIHEEREZREKA Dividend income from available-for
sale investments (5,302) (2,848)
HEWE - W REE Loss on disposals of property, plant
18 and equipment 1,138 17,908
LEEREPF 2L Operating cash flows before movements in
Reng working capital 1,177,943 1,817,489
FE (Em) m (Increase) decrease in inventories (100,706) 119,689
EHERBR EEYSE Increase in properties under development
120 for sale (169,666) (14,470)
R LT R R e L b B LA R TR (Decrease) increase in trade and other
CRLA) 52 m receivables (179,350) 618,505
FERH BRI TRIEIZ AN Increase in trade and other payables 152,752 15,483
RETEENE 2 RSN Increase in deposits from pre-sale of
properties 438,784 -
B AIE N Increase in deferred income 29,402 40,881
REmERSE Cash generated from operations 1,349,159 2,597,577
BFTEH R IEHIE Income taxes and withholding tax paid (234,829) (522,251)
REFBREREFHE NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1,114,330 2075326

Dongyue Group Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HZE2013F 128318 IEEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013

20135 20126
(i AR¥T T ARET T
2013 2012
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
REZH INVESTING ACTIVITIES
RE=FREZTER Entrusted loans to third parties (1,383,728) (700,000)
BEME  MREREE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (561,486) (577,414)
TREMLES Payment for prepaid land lease (168,388) (97,042)
EEEVEE Purchase of intangible assets (3,881) (83,761)
EEIHLERE Purchase of available-for-sale investments (77,105) (37,672)
TFEBRRITES Placement of pledged bank deposits (138,212) (25463)
A—KBE R AEE Capital contribution to an associate (15,000) (490)
E=HEEET Repayment of entrusted loans from
& third parties 1,358,728 703,000
BUFE Interest received 110,657 97,099
R B EIRRI TR RS Proceeds from release of
A pledged bank deposits 108,962 9233
ﬁﬁ%ﬁ 2SR TS Proceeds from disposals of
T property, plant and equipment 1,927 1,927
T{#u”j’%&ﬁZHx Dividend income from
WA available-for-sale investments 5,302 2,848
WEE—RMEAT Acquisition of a subsidiary 32 (550,294) =
REZBHARS NET CASH USED IN INVESTING
T ACTIVITIES (1,312,518) (707,735)
EED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
BEEE Repayment of borrowings (1,006,634) (1,163,988)
ERARE Dividends paid (219,428) (690,876)
RAREAE) Interest paid (130,842) (136,607)
EYRNE e 2500 Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (9,892) a7 472)
R REEERG Shares repurchased and cancelled (2,898)
BEMEHIE Proceeds from borrowings 1,124,450 805,000
FE Hxﬂx%%ﬁ Capital contribution from non-controlling
TE interests 4,000 9,800
METHIARE NET CASH USED IN FINANCING
FEE ACTIVITIES (241,244) (1,194,143)
RERERRELER (BD) NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH
B nEE AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (439,432) 173,448
FRZRERERRE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
1HH BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 1,682,728 1,509,280
FRZBAERERRE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
HH END OF THE YEAR
Bp represented by:
RITEH LIRS Bank balances and cash 1,243,296 1,682,728

RESEARAF]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

—RES

RESEAFRAF ([AAF) 200657 A
UERAESHETMALARBRER A
7l HiEf = R AR Floor 4, Willow House,
Cricket Square, P.O. Box 2804, Grand Cayman
KY1-1112, Cayman Islands o A~ 2 & &9 J& 15 &
2007F 12 B 10B REBBMARSIAARR
BlEMR T -

AN R A—EREER A
T BEREFHIEEST

A HHB AR

ZIK’AET&ﬁ\BHJ%’Aﬁ (A [AKE]) =2
fEsE NHMHEERLE SO0 FM
£ BRER R BEIE (TPVC])
RS A R Bt © b SN - NSRBI R B
EMERBERY  WRIZIRREHFC-237
fRIR H ([COMHER |) ADBAKELES
BAELNETRERE  EMEDRER
BHME -

AAREBEEBURER 2
B R -

AER] —

REMBRRARNDAIREMB AR 25
EBARE (TARK]) 251 -

HZE2013F12A31BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

General

Dongyue Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 24 July 2006 as an exempted company with
limited liability. The address of its registered office is Floor 4, Willow
House, Cricket Square, PO. Box 2804, Grand Cayman KY1-1112, Cayman
Islands. The shares of the Company are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 10 December 2007.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 37.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacture, distribution and
sale of refrigerants, polymers, organic silicone and dichloromethane,
polyvinyl chloride (“PVC") and liquid alkali and others. In addition,
the Group is also engaged in property development in the PRC and
established Shandong Dongyue HFG23 Decomposition Project
(“CDM Project”) to decompose certain greenhouse gases generated
from the Group's production process in order to reduce greenhouse
gas emissions.

The addresses of principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the section headed “Corporate Information” in the
annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB"), which is the same as the functional currency of the Company
and its subsidiaries.

Dongyue Group Limited ="
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HE2013FE1N2ANBILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013
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Application of new and revised accounting
standards

New and revised standards, interpretation and
amendments applied in the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and
revised amendments to International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs") issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
("IASB").
Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2009 — 2011 Cycle
Amendments to IFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities
Amendments to IFRS 10,
IFRS 11 and IFRS 12

Consolidated Financial Statements,
Joint Arrangements and Disclosure
of Interests in Other Entities:
Transition Guidance

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

IAS 19 (as revised in 2011) Employee Benefits

IAS 27 (as revised in 2011) Separate Financial Statements

IAS 28 (as revised in 2011) Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures
Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other

Comprehensive Income

Except as described below, the application of the new and revised
IFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BZE2013F12A3BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

Application of new and revised accounting
standards (Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the
package of five standards on consolidation, joint arrangements,
associates and disclosures comprising IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements, IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities and IAS 28 (as revised in 2011) Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures, together with the amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11
and IFRS 12 regarding transitional guidance.

IAS 27 (as revised in 2011) is not applicable to the Group as it deals
only with separate financial statements.

The impact of the application of these standards is set out below.

Dongyue Group Limited .~ -
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Application of new and revised accounting
standards (Continued)

Impact of the application of IFRS 10

IFRS 10 replaces the parts of IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate
that deal
statements and I(SIC) Int-12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities.

Financial Statements with consolidated financial
IFRS 10 changes the definition of control such that an investor has
control over an investee when (a) it has power over the investee, (b)
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and (c) has the ability to use its power to affect
its returns. All three of these criteria must be met for an investor to
have control over an investee. Previously, control was defined as the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity
so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Additional guidance has
been included in IFRS 10 to explain when an investor has control
over an investee. The directors assess the application of IFRS 10 and
conclude that the Group has had control over the investee which are
consolidated into the consolidated financial statements before the
application of IFRS 10. Accordingly, the application of the adoption
of IFRS 10 has had no material impact on the amounts reported in
these consolidated financial statements.

Impact of the application of IFRS 12

IFRS 12 is a new disclosure standard and is applicable to entities that
have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and/
or unconsolidated structured entities. In general, the application of
IFRS 12 has resulted in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements (please see notes 18 and 37 for details).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BZE2013F12A31ALFE

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Application of new and revised accounting
standards (Continued)

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

The Group has applied IFRS 13 for the first time in the current year.
IFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for, and disclosures
about, fair value measurements. The scope of IFRS 13 is broad:
the fair value measurement requirements of IFRS 13 apply to both
financial instrument items and non financial instrument items for
which other IFRSs require or permit fair value measurements and
disclosures about fair value measurements, except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based
Payment, leasing transactions that are within the scope of IAS 17
Leases, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value (e.g. net realisable value for the purposes of
measuring inventories or value in use for impairment assessment
pUrposes).

IFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as the price that would be
received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer a liability, in the case of
determining the fair value of a liability) in an orderly transaction in
the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement
date under current market conditions. Fair value under IFRS 13 is an
exit price regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. Also, IFRS 13 includes
extensive disclosure requirements.

The directors assess the application of IFRS 13 and conclude that the
Group has had no material impact on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of items of Other
Comprehensive Income

The Group has applied the amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of
[tems of Other Comprehensive Income. Upon the adoption of the
amendments to IAS 1, the Group's “statement of comprehensive
income” is renamed as the “statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income”. Other than the above mentioned
presentation changes, the application of the amendments to IAS 1
does not result in any impact on profit or loss, other comprehensive

income and total comprehensive income.

Dongyue Group Limited
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2. ERAHFEIRLBTZEE2R 2. Application of new and revised accounting

(#&) standards (Continued)
2 EMERERBIET R EEETE New and revised standards, interpretations and
Al - REREFTR amendments issued but not yet effective
IR BN LR T LA T B MR M AR AR The Group has not early applied the following new and revised IFRSs
Z AT RAME FT B B 7 i 5 22 R that have been issued but not yet effective.
BIRBBmELR S 105, REER Amendments to IFRS 10,  Investment Entities'
RE125R (BATA) KA IFRS 12 and IAS 27
KB & ERIE275%
(BETAK)
@RI 195, FERMEE - EEMR Amendments to IAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
CHES) Contributions?
BRI mE LR o5  BEMBREEREN 2 Amendments to IFRS9  Mandatory Effective Date of IFRS 9 and
RE7HR (BFIA) sl A B R BE and IFRS 7 Transition Disclosures?
e
BRI BEmE LR S0 SRIA IFRS 9 Financial Instruments?
e RTAERIE 325 Bt iEReRE R Amendments to IAS 32  Offsetting Financial Assets and
(CHES) Financial Liabilities'
e TTAERE 365 FeREEINNEEE Amendments to IAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
CHES) BE Non-Financial Assets'
BRI AER 305 TETAZEBREHes Amendments to IAS39  Novation of Derivatives and
(BETAK) ELIEE Continuation of Hedge Accounting’
BRI TR 2 BIR BB EERD010FE Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs
(fE3TA) 2012FRH 2 FEHuE 2010-2012 Cycle*
B B 7 e 5 28 BRI RS LR FE Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs
(BETAK) 0135 BE 2 FE D 2011-2013 Cycle?
BB REERE 145 EERERR IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts®
ARMBHRERERE HE IFRIC-Int 21 Levies'

- REENR

! R20145F1 A1 B ek 2 12 FItR 2 FE B AR © v Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014

2 7201457 A1 Bz & Fta 2 FEEIRAER 2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

: ATHRAE A — SR A 2 B A s B PR B 5 : Available for application-the mandatory effective date will be determined
SRERIF ORI REFHEE © when the outstanding phases of IFRS 9 are finalised

‘ R2014F7 A Bz Rt 2 FERER - R . Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with limited
B LT RMBIGN o exceptions

> R20165F 1 A1 H 32 & BtG 2 B B E B 55 > Effective for first annual IFRS financial statements beginning on or after 1
iﬁ%—’?—ﬂ@ﬂﬁ%iﬁ%iiﬁl °© January 2016

BTIXAiEN - ARRERTRERAEMD Except as described below, the directors of the Company anticipate

] RAER] BIBR B 5 o 5 B RS A& K that the application of the other new and revised IFRSs will have no

SEFERIBRIERERTE - material impact on the results and financial position of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BZE2013F12A31ALFE

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Application of new and revised accounting
standards (Continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. IFRS 9 was
subsequently amended in 2010 to include the requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to include the new
requirements for hedge accounting.

Specifically, under IFRS 9, all recognised financial assets that are
within the scope of IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are subsequently measured at either amortised cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within a
business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. All other debt investments and equity investments are
measured at their fair values at the end of subsequent accounting
periods.

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated as
at fair value through profit or loss, IFRS 9 requires that the amount
of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable
to changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of
changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.
Changes in fair value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in
the financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss. Under IAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the
fair value of the financial liability designated as fair value through
profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

Dongyue Group Limited ==
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Application of new and revised accounting
standards (Continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the
three types of hedge accounting. However, greater flexibility has
been introduced to the types of transactions eligible for hedge
accounting, specifically broadening the types of instruments that
qualify for hedging instruments and the types of risk components of
non-financial items that are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition,
the effectiveness test has been overhauled and replaced with the
principle of an “economic relationship”. Retrospective assessment of
hedge effectiveness is also no longer required. Enhanced disclosure
requirements about an entity’s risk management activities have also
been introduced.

The directors anticipate that the adoption of IFRS 9 in future may
have impact on amounts reported in respect of the Group's
available-for-sale investments but no impact on amounts reported
in respect of the Group’s financial liabilities. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a
detailed review has been completed.

Amendments to IAS 36 Recoverable Amount

Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

The amendments to IAS 36 remove the requirement to disclose
the recoverable amount of a cash generating unit (CGU) to which
goodwill or other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives had
been allocated when there has been no impairment or reversal of
impairment of the related CGU. Furthermore, the amendments
introduce additional disclosure requirements regarding the fair value
hierarchy, key assumptions and valuation techniques used when the
recoverable amount of an asset or CGU was determined based on its
fair value less costs of disposal.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application
of these amendments to IAS 36 will have a significant impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements.



3.

FESHEE

iR B M T ERER TR B B B 5 ¥ s E A R
BB GAVBBRREBEFTEBRER
ZFRERRBRS MR REE (RAHE
1) RE 2 BRI -

RAEMBHRTIAELRAVEREL ° BESEX
A—RiIEReEmcREZAFERE

N ERENGERRANS2EERERFR
ZFRHE-—HEER MR EE-RRER
X2 B Tz EBERREERERN
A EREMEETDEEL A - Mhi52R
ERFTEANHEERRETEREERE
ELBENRFE WAKBERGEFEER
BENAHERSZERZTRHH - WFRS
B BRPIEAER RRBERAEHODTF
BRI EREETE - EBRERM SRS %
AIFEBRBE RN RN S - BRE
REFTEAFI7RBEANEERS - AR
HAFERBOEEGELIERTENG
B BWMBEREFERFIRAN R R
BRBERSFERIE R AERBERID -

ETREHREIIMT

iR e B EER P EE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BZE2013F12A31ALFE

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Significant accounting policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by The Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
IFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of IAS 17, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2 or value in use in IAS 36.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Dongyue Group Limited ="~
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including structured
entities) controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

has power over the investee;

is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BZE2013F12A31ALFE

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the carrying amounts of the non-controlling
interests and the fair value of the consideration paid or received
is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between () the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable IFRSs). The fair value of
any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under IAS 39, when applicable, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate.

Dongyue Group Limited ="
Annual Report 2013 (981



iR e B RS EER P EE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE2013F12A38LEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013

3. FESETHE (&) 3.

EXKast

SR I TV IR E A o RIS A e
By RERATEGE  RAREREEY
AE  AEEERKESEREAEES S
1 o AN S A ST IR 7T 2 PR BB P BT
IR IR B AT BFEtE o 6
WA 2 R AR — AR R A B E B 2 D
2o PUREE B E - FUREE AT SR A R A
EEERLAKERE Y ATFERR - T
BIEE K5 -

s EREERREEKABREEBREMNL
BEBcBBEREED RIRERERS
PRSI 2R 5 M BFR & 5t A
F1SRES 15 FIHER G E

o HBWEET ARG XA RIEL B A
£5 1B 54 B A B MU 77 LA ST SRR
LHMEI L2 AR XA IR L HE A
e A B AT AR R BRE
BRI BR B 75 3R 5 Y RSB 25 LR (7 T 19 34
FHitE (R TXEHER) &

REREMBERE LR RAFELE
ZHRBEER KIS ERETFE D
AFEHEZEE (RWEHEA) RE
HRERETE -

BBRNMEBEZ E  SHERERN K

AR  RRBTUERBREK

BhgE N TE (E) Z8M - FATK

B2 P BRI EERPTAREZ B BRI R H

ZFER - P ZFAHE o MKBER

1% - PTUE Z AR B E EATAE R ERNK

BRPFRRNER 2 RE  SHERER

AU BT P e S R R B T AR A 1R

WiEH S A FE (NA) &7 BIE

BRIt AIER SR ERE W -

o REEEERAT
(082 Zg iy

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition related costs are generally recognised
in profit or loss as incurred. At the acquisition date, the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value at the acquisition date, except that:

deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related
to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes and IAS 19
Employee Benefits respectively;

liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace
share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with IFRS 2 Share-based Payment at
the acquisition date (see the accounting policy below); and

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale
in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that
standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquire (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BZE2013F12A31ALFE

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets
in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured at their
fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another IFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is
measured at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of
the consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes
in the fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as
measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively,
with the corresponding adjustments made against goodwill.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise from
additional information obtained during the “measurement period”
(which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about
facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration
is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates in accordance with IAS 39, or IAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquire is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains
control), and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquire prior to the
acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where such
treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by
the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs,
the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period (see above), or additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about
facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised as of that date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the
accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each
of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating
units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.



Egé—l-ﬁ% (nlﬁ)
BE (&)

BoEmEnReELS
AlE - W B RERE BB A BERE
R TR AR ZORR o IR E — S HiR#ETT
ZWEREEZEENS  BOEBEZR
SELBMNRZREHMEER ZAERE

SRR, o W3R & BE 4 B AL RO AT IR Bl FBR IR A L
REE - &L iRESEURD DR T
ZBUMEAEHENRRE - ABRZLHIR
BERBMNASEENRERESEEEME
F c WEMMMBESBEER BT E
R BEZOERREBETSREZ LM
BEE o

F g BFIERE

REEEMBESELENUR  EETHEDN
i MBS Rt A BB BV R B SRER o

REEEH RS A E AR BE
T -
REERAREELENRE
%%QE%K%I EBEARENNER -

BB NS R A BT R BT
&m%%ﬁ B3 3R b ok 24 A 3 ST
kﬁ o

iR e B EER P EE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BZE2013F12A31ALFE

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on
an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit
or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount
of profit or loss on disposal.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an
associate is described below.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investments
(Continued)

in associates and joint ventures

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. The financial statements of associates and
joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity
method, an investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the associate. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest in that
associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group's net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognizing its share of further losses. Additional losses
are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

Aninvestment in an associate or a joint venture isaccounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee becomes
an associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group's share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit
or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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BZE2013F12A3BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investments
(Continued)

in associates and joint ventures

The requirements of IAS 39 are applied to determine whether it
is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the
Group’s investment in an associate. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested
for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 Impairment of Assets as
a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount
of the investment subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the
date when the investment ceases to be an associate, or when the
investment (or a portion thereof) is classified as held for sale. When
the Group retains an interest in the former associate or joint venture
and the retained interest is a financial asset, the Group measures
the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is
regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in accordance with
IAS 39. The difference between the carrying amount of the associate
at the date the equity method was discontinued, and the fair value
of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of a part
interest in the associate is included in the determination of the gain
or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate or joint venture on the same
basis as would be required if that associate had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit
or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is
discontinued.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investments
(Continued)

in associates and joint ventures

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate or
a joint venture but the Group continues to use the equity method,
the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or
loss that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain
or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of
the Group (such as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the associate or joint venture are
recognized in the Group's consolidated financial statements only to
the extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are not
related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in
the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related
taxes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BZE2013F12A31ALFE

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following
conditions are satisfied:

the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods;

the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold;

the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Specifically, revenue from sales of properties in the ordinary course
of business is recognised when the respective properties have been
completed and delivered to the buyers. Deposits and instalments
received from purchasers prior to meeting the above criteria for
revenue recognition are included in the consolidated statements of
financial position under current liabilities.

CDM Project involves the sale of Certified Emission Reductions
("CERs") certificates to industrialised countries. Sales of CERs are
recognised when the Group concludes a valid sales contract with the
buyer, the risks and rewards of the CERs are properly transferred to
the accounts of the buyer registered with United Nations Framework
Convention on Climate Change and that the collectability of the
related receivables is reasonably assured.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Interest income from a
financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably).

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent
rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense
in the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BZE2013F12A31ALFE

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Government grant

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants of which the primary condition
is that the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income in the
consolidated statement of financial position and transferred to profit
or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the
related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Dongyue Group Limited

F'091™

Annual Report 2013 *.77°



GRE B ISR M R
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE2013FE1N2ANBILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

RE

Egé—l-ﬁ% (nlﬁ)
BIE (&)

BIERMIBIRRE B mENEERAGEERT
BERANGTEERT ST ABEREN TR E
$$W°LLHEEEL ERATE R
ERERER BEHIEEE —MRERALE
HH 2R ] ) R R A R A A FE AR B v A R I
FrERHIIMEREZERER - AR —BRS
- AREEEGRE M AINRE & IRFER
HinEERBEMSIBNEREZERTE
FERFLRA - M E e RA - BT 2RE
RAEEERARE

EERAA BT IRER KB A A R & A A
m&ﬁmmﬁm&ﬁﬁ%%%%m%ﬁ'ﬁ
AR E A S R AR RO R E R AR
RAE AT RE & A AT B 2RI B K IB SRR b o
E AR E kAR 0 R S R =58
mEERELET B S EEL A ALEE ZHIE
RS v ) A B R B R 2= BB ) 2 N T HR AT A AT
B PR FE Bl R RERR o

JEIERIE A R E R SR RS
W1 AT AR SR SRR M 2 26
5 555 A RS R -

BERAEER AETRAHNAEEER
HEEZRAYRMBERARE (AREHRE
ERREEEROBE (RBUR) BEE)

FTE ©

EXERERBEREENTE  RBRAKER
BEPRAARHEEREEREENAE
RRREIER) D AP EHTHIRAER

EBBERAT
) —e-=EER

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwiill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary

differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they

are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (@and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BZE2013F12A31ALFE

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
when it relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively. Where the current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for business combination.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes (other than construction in progress as described below)
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction in progress for production, supply or administrative
purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss.
Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group's accounting
policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories
of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for
their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment other than construction in progress
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments represent payment for leasehold interest in
land classified as operating lease and are released to profit or loss in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income over the term of relevant land leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BZE2013F12A31ALFE

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful lives are
carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite
useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effective of
any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
(or from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised
if, and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale;

the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell
it;

the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset; and

the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to
the intangible asset during its development.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Research and development expenditure (Continued)

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when
the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed
above. Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be
recognised, development expenditure is charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition,
internally-generated intangible asset is reported at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if
any), on the same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.

Acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are recognised
separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair
value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with finite useful lives are reported at costs less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses,
on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured at
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when
the asset is derecognised.

Exploration rights

Exploration rights are recognized at cost on initial recognition.
Subsequent to initial recognition, Exploration rights are stated at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Exploration rights include the cost of exploration rights and the
expenditures incurred in the search for natural resources as well
as the determination of the technical feasibility and commercial
viability of extracting those resources.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BZE2013F12A31ALFE

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Exploration rights (Continued)

When the technical feasibility and commercial viability of
extracting natural resources become demonstrable, previously
recognized exploration rights are reclassified as either intangible
or tangible assets. These assets are assessed for impairment before

reclassification.

Impairment of exploration rights

The carrying amount of the exploration rights is reviewed annually.
When one of the following events or changes in circumstances,
which is not exhaustive, indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable has occurred, impairment test is performed in
accordance with IAS 36 Impairment of assets:

the period for which the Group has the right to explore in the
specific area has expire during the period or will expire in the
near future, and is not expected to be renewed.

substantive expenditure on further exploration for and
evaluation of natural resources in the specific area is neither
budgeted nor planned.

exploration for and evaluation of natural resources in the
specific area have not led to discovery of commercially viable
quantities of natural resources and the Group has decided to
discontinue such activities in the specific area.

sufficient data exist to indicate that, although a development
in the specific area is likely to proceed, the carrying amount of
the exploration and evaluation asset is unlikely to be recovered
in full from successful development or by sale.

An impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss whenever the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value at
the end of each reporting date. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make the sale.

Properties under development for sale

Properties under development for sale are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises both the prepaid lease
payments for land and development costs for the properties. Net
realisable value takes into account the price ultimately expected
to be realized, less applicable selling expenses and the anticipated
costs to completion.

Development costs of properties comprise construction costs,
borrowing costs capitalized according to the Group's accounting
policy and directly attributable costs incurred during the
development period. On completion, the properties are transferred

to properties held for sales.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BZE2013F12A31ALFE

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the two
categories, including loans and receivables and available-for-sale
investments. The classification depends on the nature and purpose
of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables, entrusted loans, pledged bank deposits
and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below).

Available-for-sale instruments

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity instruments are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end
of the reporting period (see accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of the reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be
impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been affected.

For available-for-sale equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its costs is considered
to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
and principal payments; or

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation; or

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade and other
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually
are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group's past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past
the average credit period of 90 days or 180 days, observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate with default

on receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BZE2013F12A31ALFE

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade and other receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When a trade and other receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment losses was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not
be reversed through profit or loss in subsequent periods.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity instruments in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of afinancial liability and of allocating interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and
borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BZE2013F12A31ALFE

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise
the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises
an associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss, if any.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
(Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

Share based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received is determined by reference to the
fair value of share options granted at the grant date and is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share option reserve).

At the end of reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The
impact of the revision of the estimates during the vesting period, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
share options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised
in share options reserve will be transferred to share premium. When
the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised
in share options reserve will continue to be held in share options
reserve.
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4. Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concurring the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts on trade and other
receivables

The Group’s management assesses the recoverability and
determines the provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables in accordance with the accounting policy stated in note
3. Such estimation is based on the credit history of its customers
and the current market conditions. Management reviews the debtor
settlement status periodically and reassesses the sufficiency of
provision accordingly. The aggregate carrying value of trade and
other receivables at 31 December 2013, net of allowance for doubtful
debts of RMB6,169,000 (2012: RMB8,304,000), is approximately
RMB1,048,335,000 (2012: RMB790,460,000).

Dongyue Group Limited .~
Annual Report 2013 10



iR e B RS EER P EE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE2013F12A38LEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013

4. EFHTARENEERE (&) 4.

AT RERER (&)

ZEERHNKE
WEZEERLRREBEENTEERE - A%
E iR EAR AT EEERRR KRR LR ©
WEBENSBENZEERNREERIR
SRIEEMREERMNE (AR YR ERE T
EHERNEX) IR ARRR S RNERE
(TEEHRAREENRREEERE) NEE
FTE - WERRBSRBRIERD - BIRK
BISHAE et e H IR ERREREE © 102013
F12A318 - ZXEFNEEABEASARKE
425,000,0007T (20124F : A R #400,000,000
JT) °

YD - HEER R BB I
AEBEREETYHE  BERRENGE
AERFEHRBBITEER o ILIEMEIK
BETERAMNERSwREPARYE « #eEKk
RERAS B - WAl AL A BRI EFT R
HFARTERBARMENMNITEIME =
A& - Er]FEAFHONEREEIFEE -
EEESLMTEER - MR E =
A SRR ARIEREHEEE - K
20135F12H318 % - MR ERRENERE
BE A AREE4494,0150007T (20124F « AR
#4,121,4440007T) ° #E— T HFBERBEREGE
BTSRRI ZE15 ©

e REEEARAR]

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Collectability of entrusted loans

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss on entrusted
loans, the Group estimates the future cash flows of entrusted loans
for impairment testing purpose. The amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the entrusted loans’
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where the
actualfuture cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment
loss may arise in future financial periods. The aggregate carrying
value of entrusted loans at 31 December 2013 is RMB425,000,000
(2012: RMB400,000,000).

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group's management determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment. This
estimate is based on projected product lifecycles and economic life of
property, plant and equipment. It could change significantly as a result
of technical innovations and competitor actions in response to severe
industry cycles. Management will increase the depreciation charge
where useful lives are less than previously estimated lives, or it will write
off or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold. The aggregate carrying value of property,
plant and equipment at 31 December 2013 is RMB4,494,015,000 (2012:
RMB4,121,444,000). Further details are disclosed in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment

The carrying value of property, plant and equipment is reviewed for
impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may not be recoverable. The recoverable amount
of these assets, or, where appropriate, the cash-generating unit to
which they belong, is the higher of their fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
estimate the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating
units and to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. Where the actual cash flows are
less than expected, a material loss may arise. The aggregate carrying
value of property, plant and equipment at 31 December 2013 is
approximately RMB4,494,015,000 (2012: RMB4,121,444,000).

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets relating to certain deductible temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised as the Group’s management
considers it is probable that the future taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses or
tax credit can be utilised. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimate, such differences will impact the recognition
of deferred tax assets. The carrying value of deferred tax assets
at 31 December 2013 is approximately RMB166,451,000 (2012:
RMB116,221,000). Further details are disclosed in note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Dongyue Group Limited .~
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Exploration rights

The Group's exploration rights have afinite validity period, after which
the Group will need to apply for renewal. The Group'’s exploration
rights were renewed in October 2013 for a period of two years till
October 2015. Having checked the applicable laws and regulations
in the PRC, the directors of the Company anticipate that there is
no material legal impediments would prevent the Group from
renewing its exploration rights provided that the Group submits the
relevant application documents in compliance with the applicable
PRC laws and regulations to the relevant PRC government authority.
Accordingly, the directors of the Company believe the Group will be
able to renew the exploration rights with the relevant government
authority upon the expiry of the exploration rights in October
2015 at insignificant cost. In addition, the directors of the Company
assess the impairment of the exploration rights by estimating the
recoverable amount of the assets. The directors of the Company
expected that the mines are abundant with fluorspar resources. The
Group has appointed experts to assess the fluorspar resources and
is in the process of preparing an independent exploration report to
reasonably ascertain the reserve. If there is any material impediments
which would prevent the Group from renewing its exploration
rights or obtaining the mining right certificates, impairment loss
may be recognized. The carrying amount of exploration rights at 31
December 2013 is RMB80,000,000 (2012: RMB80,000,000) and there
was no impairment recognized during both years.

As at 31 December 2013, 20% of the exploration work was completed
by the independent experts and the independent exploration
report is expected to be issued by the end of 2014. Accordingly, the
directors of the Company expect the mining right certificates will
be obtained in 2015. Further details are disclosed in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill
has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the
cash-generating unitand a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December
2013, the carrying amount of goodwill is RMB85,894,000 (2012:
RMB1,354,000) and no impairment loss was recognized during the
year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: nil). Details of the recoverable
amount calculation are disclosed in note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of borrowings disclosed
in note 28, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising share
capital, share premium, reserves and retained earnings.

The directors review the capital structure on a semi-annual basis. As
a part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital. Based on recommendations
of the directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the
issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

Dongyue Group Limited
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5. Capital risk and financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)

() ERMTIANEE (a) Categories of financial instruments
201345 20124F
ARETT ARETTT
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
EHMEE Financial assets
Bk EYIE (B Loans and receivables (including
BERIRITER pledged bank deposits,
RITHEBRIIRE) bank balances and cash) 2,877,909 2,897,456
A ERE Available-for-sale investments 195,283 118,178
3,073,192 3,015,634
tHaE Financial liabilities
BESHR AR Amortised cost 3,696,823 3,138,063
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policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
and other receivables, pledged bank deposits, entrusted
loans, bank balances and cash, trade and other payables
and borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (currency risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The Group's
management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.
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5. Capital risk and financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Market risks

(i)

Currency risk

The functional currencies of the PRC subsidiaries are
RMB with most of the transactions settled in RMB.
However, foreign currency (mainly the United States
dollar “USS") were received when the Group earned
revenue from overseas customers and when settling
payables for purchases of machinery and equipment
from the overseas suppliers.

The Group does not have any hedging policy to manage
the risk arising from foreign currency transactions. In
order to reduce the risk of holding foreign currencies,
the Group normally converts the foreign currencies into
RMB upon receipt while taking into account its foreign
currencies payment schedule in the near future.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities
at the reporting date are as follows:

BE 8f&
Assets Liabilities
20134 20124 20134 20124F
ARBTRT ARETRT AR®TR AREBTET
2013 2012 2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ETT US$ 178,664 320,003 112,250 151,943

Dongyue Group Limited .~
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5. Capital risk and financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2013, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 10% against US$ with all other variables
held constant, post-tax profit for the year would have
been RMB4,981,000 (2012: RMB12,604,000) lower/higher,
mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses/gains on
translation of US$ denominated bank balances and
cash, trade and other receivables and US$ denominated
borrowings.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk
as the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate bank borrowings (see note 28
for details of these borrowings) and entrusted loans.
At 31 December 2013, 35% (2012: 12%) of the Group's
borrowings bear fixed interest rates.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to bank deposits and variable-rate
borrowings (see note 28 for details of these borrowings).

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of the market deposit
rate and the PRC official lending rate and London
Inter-Bank Offer Rate (“LIBOR") arising from the Group's
RMB borrowings and USD borrowings respectively.
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5. Capital risk and financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for bank
balances and variable-rate borrowings. The analysis is
prepared on the financial balance at the end of reporting
period. 10 and 25 basis points (2012: 10 and 25 basis
points) increase or decrease is used which represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rate.

In relation to the Group's exposure to interest rates risk
on bank deposits, if interest rates had been 10 basis
points (2012: 10 basis points) higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit
for the year ended 31 December 2013 would increase/
decrease by RMB1,042,000 (2012: RMBT1,278,000).

Furthermore, in relation to the Group's exposure to
interest rates risk on variable-rate borrowings, if interest
rates had been 25 basis points (2012: 25 basis points)
higher/lower and all other variables held constant, the
Group's post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2013 would decrease/increase by RMB2,605,000 (2012:
RMB3,148,000),
interest expenses on floating rate borrowings.

mainly as a result of higher/lower

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the year.

Dongyue Group Limited
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5. Capital risk and financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk

The carrying amounts of pledged bank deposits, bank
balances and cash, entrusted loans, trade and other
receivables, and other current assets (except for prepayment)
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
in relation to financial assets. The objective of the Group's
measures to manage credit risk is to control potential exposure
to recoverability problem. Most of the Group's cash and cash
equivalents are held in major financial institutions in the PRC,
which management believes are of high credit quality.

The Group also has policies in place to ensure that sales of
products are made to customers with an appropriate credit
history and the Group assesses the credit worthiness and
financial strength of its customers as well as considering prior
dealing history with the customers. Generally, customers are
granted with credit periods less than 90 days or 180 days
and the Group usually does not require collaterals nor any
credit enhancement from its customers. An aging analysis
of trade and other receivables is set out in note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Group’s management
makes periodic collective assessment as well as individual
assessment on the recoverability of trade receivables based
on historical payment records, the length of the overdue
period, the financial strength of the customers and whether
there are any trade disputes with them.
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BRERpETERERY -

ZAERERERF = T REER -
KBS AR SRR 8k R E B 1%
ZEEFH A A2013F8AE11 A
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

5. Capital risk and financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has policies to ensure the entrusted loans are
made to entities with an appropriate credit history and the
Group assesses the credit worthiness and financial strength
of them as well as considering prior dealing history with them.
Generally, the entities are granted with maturity of one year.
The Group's management continuously monitors collections
and payments from its customers and the allowance
recognised is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flow discounted at an effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition. Where the actual future cash flows are less
than expected, a material impairment loss may arise (please
see note 25 for details). In addition, before accepting any new
debtor, the Group conducts research on the creditworthiness
of the new debtor and assesses the potential debtor’s credit
quality and defines credit limits by debtor. The Group offers
various settlement terms which vary depending on the size
of contract, credibility and reputation of the debtor. Loans
balances are not past due or impaired at the end of reporting
period. The directors of the Company continuously evaluate
the creditworthiness of the independent third parties and
may, on a case by case basis, extend the repayment date on
mutual agreement.

The balances of entrusted loans represents loans to several
independent third parties. Included in the entrusted loan
of RMB277,000,000 which maturity date was on August to
November 2013 had been extended one more year during
the year 2013 after evaluation of the payment history and
the credit-worthiness of the debtor. Management closely
monitors the credit quality of entrusted loans and considers
the entrusted loans that are neither past due nor impaired to
be of a good credit quality.

Dongyue Group Limited
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5. BEXEREMBEEREERS
REBGR (%)

(b) BAEREREBZERBE ()

REBES M
EEERBETERE  ARESE
YHFEEERRERABNAKHE
LEMELRERSRERPDTEN
RehFRBAESEAKY - BEER
BRTEENERBERALERETE
RRHK -

REBKBIRITEEEARBDESH
FERR - B20135F128318 » K&
BARFANBITEERENBARE
4659,700,0007C (20128128310 A
R #5,333,220,0007T) ° =¥ 15 & 51 A K
FF28 ©

BT RFIERBER

TR AKEFTESRABNF
BRAENFERFE - JIRTIREARH
ARERERNFNRFAHANEAREA
BEARURBAETRERH - NERAE
ReREHDIINRKA -

RESEARAF]

5. Capital risk and financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in
cash flows. Management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity. As at 31 December 2013, the Group has
available undrawn borrowing facilities of approximately
RMB4,659,700,000 (31 December 2012: RMB5,333,220,000).
Details of which are set out in note 28.

Liquidity and interest risk tables

The following tables detail the Group'’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. The table includes both interest
and principal cash flows.
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5. EXERBEMERBREEBR 5. Capital risk and financial risk management
= . . o o .
RBUER (&) objectives and policies (Continued)
(b) B¥EREEBEERBEEK (F) (b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
REESEKE (8&) Liquidity risk (Continued)
BB RFIEREGEFR (& Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued)
FERRE  R2013F128
METHIHE EERS 1238A EAEIE 15255 RELE 31ANKEE
% ARETT AR%Tn  ARETr ARETr ARETR ARETR
Carrying
Weighted Total amount at
average Less than 1-3 3 months Tyearto  undiscounted 31 December
interest rate 1month months to 1year 5years cash flows 2013
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
2013512A318 31 December 2013
FERTERHRAMBEMNTE  Trade and other payables - 941,408 485,204 117,647 - 1,544,259 1,544,259
B8 Borrowings
-E8 - fixed rates 6.16 3,954 26,486 183,812 600,253 814,505 763,250
—%8 - variable rates 6.45 154,386 49,968 478,609 806,608 1,489,571 1,389,314
1,099,748 561,658 780,068 1,406,861 3,848,335 3,696,823
AEZRE  R012F12A
EFR% 8RR 123MEA MEARIE 1F55F mERE  3IBMKEE
% ARBTr ARETT ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARMTE
Carrying
Weighted Total amount at
average Less than 1-3 3months Tyearto  undiscounted 31 December
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year 5 years cash flows 2012
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
2012612A318 31 December 2012
FERTERHRAMBEMNTE  Trade and other payables - 590,809 486,680 148476 - 1,225,965 1,225,965
B8 Borrowings
-E8 - fixed rates 653 532 1,064 63,342 183,065 248003 233250
-38 - variable rates 665 109,103 286,603 214546 1260375 1870627 1678848
700,444 774347 426,364 1443440 3,344,595 3,138,003

Dongyue Group Limited
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6. WHERDIBEE 6.
W3S TR R G s o

REE2H/MLLEN IR BETRBILAE
mEkMERESD  cMARFES=S (B4
BERRAN) MEAMEERDE R D BRR
AHENERMERBER KX ENRL

E TR

2 EB I e AR

REBEIZ 2R REED TR S R EER D
G N

20135

Revenue and segment information

Revenue represents revenue arising on sales of goods.

The Group's reportable and operating segments are based on the

different types of products and property development. Information

reported to the board of directors of the Company, being the chief

operating decision maker, for the purposes of resource allocation

and assessment of segment performance is also presented based on

types of products and property development.

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by

reportable and operating segment.

2013
ZERE
IRE BATHH BHE CERR PVCR R NERRE  2HOPEE EfiER Hi &t
ARETR  ARETR ARETR  ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR  ARETR ARETR  ARETR
Dichloromethane, Reportable
Organic PVCand Property segments’ Other
Refrigerants Polymers silicone CER liquidalkali  development total  operations  Eliminations Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HhEE Externalsales 1919055 2053751 1,515,439 48,554 1,088,141 - 6,624,940 157,874 - 6782814
DRRNHEE Intersegment sees 1,004,835 - 5,440 - 55473 - 1,065,748 39805 (1,463,804) -
BUE-DBUE  Towleene-scomentrevenve 2923890 2083751 1520879 48,554 1143614 - 7,690,688 555930 (1463804) 6,782,814
%A SEGNENT RESULTS 74013 553,000 74,645 49,225 4015 (15,026) 739872 (15,10 - 724770
AARBRRR Unallocated corporate expenses (79951)
_*ﬁ@@ﬁﬁqﬁl)\ Unallocated other income 5302
BERA . Financecosts (89,065)
FlE—FBERFEE Share of resuls of assocites “s
Btanar) Profit before tax 561,501
REEEBRAA

R -CFFR
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2\ 37 A =3 . o o
Wk o ehER (&) 6. Revenue and segment information (Continued)
TE S K R (F) Segment revenues and results (Continued)

20124 2012

. 88k
BRH  BATHH Bk (R PVCRER DRERE  REATAE  HUER Faf &5t
ARBTT  ARBTR ARETR  ARETR ARBTT  ARETI )\E’%‘ﬁ ARBTL  ARBTT  ARETR
Dichloromethane, Reportable
Organic PVCand Property segments’ QOther

Refrigerants Polymers silicone (R liquidalkali ~ development total operations  Eliminations Total
RMBOO RMBOO RMBOO RMBO00 RMBOO RMB00 RMB0O RMBOO RMBOO AMBO00
HiME External sales 2319819 1,944,666 1346470 184697 1111246 - 6906898 143,924 - 7050822
ARRNEE Inter-seqrent sales 1351502 - 4808 - 3355 - 1409665 44064 (183709) -
BN -PUE  Tolrevenve-segmentrevene 3671321 194666 1351278 184697 1,164601 - 8316563 798 (8BT9) 705082
AHEE SEGMENT RESULTS 296270 856,118 (2849) 135524 92003 (9063 1,348,004 (9669) - 1338335
AAREERR Unallocated corporate expenses (150859)
AOBEMMA Unallocated otherincome 2448
RERA Finance costs (136076)
FIERERTRE  Shareofesultsof associates el
BiAnER Profit efore tax 1054572
2 5B 4R AL Gt e B W%BFEL\ E’\] The accounting policies of the reportable and operating segments

AEEGHHFAR - N EBRERAELE
FERDECEM YA ~ hRT E&ﬁkﬂi*i%%
B - PG — K E R RIRERBERAT -
BENEBHEAE o WIMAZERRAZRE
FAEB IR D BL R RV GG - R E
ERBEND BEMLIFABEERRAZ
BIER/DEERMFHERBANEE - B E
2HZEFER -

D EPERHE HIRIRITHEH -

are the same as the Group's accounting policies as described in note
3. Segment results represent the results of each segment without
allocation of unallocated other income, central administration costs,
directors’ salaries, share of result of an associate and finance costs.
This is the measure reported to the chief operating decision maker
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.
No segment information on assets and liabilities is presented as such
information is not reported to the chief operating decision maker for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.

Dongyue Group Limited ="~
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6. WmKkoRER (&)
EREENE

FRZERIBZRLBSBRANREF
B E R

6. Revenue and segment information (Continued)

Entity-wide disclosures

Information about revenue from refrigerants segment by
products from external customers

S ZB-ZEFRK

20135 20124
AR%F T ARETTT
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
—H &R BHCFC-22) Monochlorodifluoromethan (HCFC-22) 857,855 1,062,085
PU%R 2 K (R134a) Tetrafluoroethane (R134a) 167,497 392,617
HRZKE(R125) Pentafluoroethane (R125) 221,818 157,017
R439A R439A 14 85,500
R410a R410a 217,314 91,013
R413A R413A 39,333 55,124
R142b R142b 32,323 129,207
R152a R152a 4,455 76,796
R32 R32 72,784 56,885
Hith Others 305,662 213,575
1,919,055 2,319,819

. REEEERATE
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6. Revenue and segment information (Continued)

Entity-wide disclosures (Continued)

ERRERTE2ED TR IBRE IR Information about revenue from polymers segment by
EERRSEE products from external customers

20135 20124

AR¥TT AREFT

2013 2012

RMB’'000 RMB'000

BRI (PTFE) Polytetrafluoroethylene (PTFE) 1,183,844 1,451,166

TNEA M (HFP) Hexafluoropropylene (HFP) 244,812 455,908

NEIRT I Perfluorocyclobutane 36,572 34,000

2RALRNNEFEP) Fluorinated ethylene propylene (FEP) 238,157 =

BR & 2 1% (PVDF) Polyvinylidene fluoride (PVDF) 185,515 =

SRR (FKM) Fluorine rubber (FKM) 74,758 =

{Rm# 2 1% (VDF) Vinylidene fluoride (VDF) 30,998 —

Hith Others 59,095 3,592

2,053,751 1,944,666

ERRERIEZ2ERESPREIINRER Information about revenue from organic silicone segment by
e products from external customers

2013%F 20124

AR¥T T ARETT

2013 2012

RMB’000 RMB'000

DMC (ZHFEMAFESIRE)  DMC (Dimethylcyclosiloxane) 524,976 577,490

107518 8 107 Silicone Rubber 363,131 272377

B Raw Vulcanizate 156,840 137,457

D3 (NRER=fSER) D3 (Hexamethylcyclotrisiloxane) 12,343 18,517

RERE Gross Rubber 51,615 37,030

RAEBRE Gaseous Silica 86,558 46,760

DMC7Kf##) DMC Hydrolysate 126,706 62,406

= HRES L Trimethylchlorosilane 65,047 80,092

FES Stk Methyldichlorosilane 10,935 28,713

AR Ganister sand 30,880 15,258

Hity Others 86,408 70,370

1,515,439 1,346,470

Dongyue Group Limited
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6. WmkoABER ()

EREZERE (B)

FRRERIBEZ-_SR - PVCRERR

Revenue and segment information (Continued)

Entity-wide disclosures (Continued)

Information about revenue from Dichloromethane, PVC and

BINREFHREER liquid alkali by products segment from external customers
20134 20124F
ARETRT AREFTT
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
PVC PVC 566,578 495,236
—EHR Dichloromethane 178,859 216,823
e Liquid alkali 342,704 399,187
1,088,141 1,111,246

FRRERD B2 HMBEE D BRAIIRE

Information about revenue from other operations segment by

(122) —p =iy

FrkzmER products from external customers
20135 20124
AR¥ET T ARETIT
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
AHF (X E/LR) AHF (Anhydrous Fluoride) 7,621 5,100
FlLE® Ammonium Bifluoride 50,919 62,410
Fel i Hydrofluoric Acid 22,391 20,994
RE Bromine 26,616 16,893
HAmh Others 50,327 38,527
157,874 143,924

s REEEERATF
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6. Revenue and segment information (Continued)

EBREXEREFEH Information about major customers
BE2013F12A31 B IEMEFE S FHEK There was no revenue from a single customer that contributed over
BE —FP 2R E RSB AEEREAN10% 10% of the total sales of the Group during each of the two years
BAE © ended 31 December 2013.
wEER Geographical information
REBRBINEREF 2 WaRE PR S The Group's revenue from external customers by geographical
W location of customers is detailed below:
2013% 20124F
ARETT ARETIT
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
a3 PRC 5,266,217 5,135,697
o (BRAEESN) Asia (except PRC)
— B — Japan 363,919 334,727
— FAGE — South Korea 242,722 233,892
—EE - India 19,500 22,080
— ¥ - Singapore 18,007 49,133
— R — Thailand 31,263 64,763
— WA AR S R E — United Arab Emirates 21,014 34,157
— AR — Pakistan 19,032 18,645
— BRA R — Malaysia 19,393 30,793
— H MBI — Other countries 114,802 197,952
INEE Subtotal 849,652 986,142
EM America
— £ — United States of America 255,405 276,343
— B — Brazil 68,162 129,109
— 87 — Chile - 12,372
— HAER — Other countries 6,634 19,020
NEE Subtotal 330,201 436,844

Dongyue Group Limited
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6. WakoIPER (&) 6. Revenue and segment information (Continued)
wEER (&) Geographical information (Continued)
20135 20124
ARETT AREFIT
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
BM Europe
— BRH ~ ltaly 161,221 216,814
— R ~ England 6,591 63,965
— BB — Russia 39,996 33,734
— A — Spain 5,588 8,308
— 2 - Germany 34,569 34,128
— EH — France 6,928 9,591
— HEfbER — Other countries 21,220 34,239
N Subtotal 276,113 400,779
IEM Africa
eSS — South Africa 14,858 21,045
—KRRk - Egypt 8,737 27,201
— JEB#|ZE ~ Nigeria 10,251 14,062
— Eb B — Other countries 2,870 6,650
AN Subtotal 36,716 68,958
HBER & Other countries/regions 23,915 22,402
6,782,814 7,050,822

PR ARNEEZERBEEIMNTE -

e REREARAT
(1245 —g =gey

All of the non-current assets of the Group are located in the PRC.
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6. Revenue and segment information (Continued)

Hth 7 3 & # Other segment information
—8RE- SHRBEND
RN BAFiH AlE CER PVCRfEi IESEES ag EhRE @t
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARBTT AREFT ARBTT ARBTT AREFT
Reportable
and
Dichloromethane, operating
Organic PVCand Property segments’ Other
Refrigerants Polymers silicone CER liquid alkali development total operations Total
RMB000 RMB1000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB1000 RMB1000 RMB000 RMB1000 RMBI000
20135 2013
0% BERRE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 220,602 131,773 115,187 1,163 57,546 a5 526,686 25,801 552,487
BRAEEY Amortisation of intangible
assets 179 8,291 165 - 55 - 8,690 18 8,708
R RERE Recognition of impaitment
LR on trade receivables - m - - - - m - m
BERAR Research and development
ZHERAE costs recognised as an
A expense 7858 58,220 2,084 - 3,116 - 71,278 390 71,668
HAE Wiite-down of inventories 4,187 - 293 46 1,292 - 5818 n 5,890
HEME  BER Loss on disposals of
By property, plant and
equipment 262 666 144 - 59 - 1131 7 1,138
EEEMES Release of prepaid lease
payments 3,566 3,984 2,672 23 697 1,837 12,779 90 12,869
012F 2012
nE - BERR Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 24401 82052 109327 7618 84913 244 528425 27,063 555488
B AERY Amortisation of intangible
assets 109 109 287 - 28 - 533 6 539
RS R ERE Recognition of mpaitment
A on trade receivables 253 1990 33 - 376 - 528 % 5380
BEEMENGE Reversal of impairment on
A other receivables 1118 - - - 187 - 1305 37 1342
BRAARR Research and development
LHRRA% costs recognised as an
s expense 3703 273% 2376 - - - 33433 EE) 3764
HAEs Write-down of inventories - - 541 - 3500 - 4041 - 4041
HENE  BER Loss on disposals of property,
B plant and equipment 2368 15,004 - - 153 - 17615 293 17908
EEEMAES Release of prepaid lease
payments 334 1,110 2008 76 676 1837 9031 162 9193

Dongyue Group Limited
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7. EHAblgA

7. Otherincome

201345 20124F
AR¥T T ARETIT
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
T AL Government grants
— EFZIEE 5 (fizTa) — related to expense items (Note a) 12,576 3,623
—HBEESR (KI:E29) — related to assets (note 29) 12,384 8,256
RITF R BHA Bank deposits interest income 13,741 20,686
LREERFEBHA Interest income on entrusted loans 96,916 75,299
FELEMAHEEREZRE Dividend income from unlisted
A available-for-sale investments 5,302 2,848
EUEEE (KMisEb) Compensation received (Note b) 24,869 -
Hth Others 12,398 7,105
178,186 117,817
B3 - Notes:
@) BNAEFERERRESRS - EEEHEAA @) The government grants are mainly for the expenditures on research activities

HERRFEX

which are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

(b) ZeRIERBEAREEE T E=F] L HRE (b)  The amount represented compensation received from an independent third

WCDMIE B B3 5 = 75 B fE R (9 EE AR EER

EiAPT TR

RESEARAF]

party on CDM Project due to its failure to fulfil its obligation as stated in the

agreement entered into by the Group with the independent third party.
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8. REKAL 8. Finance costs
20135 20124
AR¥T ARETTT
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
ME Interest on:
ARAFRNEEEE Bank loans wholly repayable
Zfﬁ TEK within five years 112,597 131,369
ARAFAEEEE Other borrowings repayable
ZHMEE within five years 18,400 5,705
fEE R AN Total borrowing costs 130,997 137,074
W BRPSEMERRT Less: amounts capitalised for properties under
BARHEE development for sale (26,928) =
M - MR REREET amounts capitalised for property, plant
BB and equipment (15,004) (998)
89,065 136,076
FRBFRERZEERATIR —REEFE Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on the general
& B E BN EERS IR INETIEE borrowing pool and are calculated by applying a weighted average
AL REE667% (20124 : 6.53%) 5T& o capitalisation rate of 6.67% (2012: 6.53%) per annum to expenditure

on qualifying assets.

Dongyue Group Limited .~ "~
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9. FRSHRX 9. Income tax expense
20135 20124
AR¥T AREBFT
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
PEREET ([REFEH) PRC enterprise income tax (EIT")
— ERIFE — Current year (164,189) (305,757)
— BEFERRERE — Over(under)provision
(BETR) in prior years 7,705 (4,858)
(156,484) (310,615)
EEFIES ) (F15E20) Deferred tax charge (note 20)
— R & 2 & AT 99 I g A — withholding tax for distributable profits
Z TR of PRC subsidiaries (13,977) (22,053)
— HAft — others 46,186 (14,841)
32,209 (36,894)
FiS T X 4258 Total income tax expense (124,275) (347,509)
RESEEBRAR]
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9. Income tax expense (Continued)

RNEEFIEMT B E R EMERE 2 EBRA The tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit before

HRAORBRADZ NS BRINT

tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as follows:

20135 20124
AR¥T AREBFT
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
BRBL A& A Profit before tax 561,501 1,054,572
A25%ERATSTHMRETEM  Tax charge at enterprise income tax rate
MIE L (FfiEa) of 25% (Note a) (140,375) (263,643)
REBVRFTERMED Income tax on concessionary rate 14,277 -
DA AR AR TR IR Tax effect of income not taxable
=7 for tax purpose 1,271 275
Pl — KBt A A1 ZEAR Y Tax effect of share of result of an associate 11 81
MIAR &
NAI B 2 B FR I Tax effect of expenses not deductible
& for tax purpose (13,473) (48,153)
COMIE B PR MV R PT1SHT Tax effect of EIT concession on profit
BENORIEBELE (Fizb) from CDM project (Note b) - 17,743
RERMIEEBRNHIETE Tax effect of tax losses not recognised (52,172) (26,272)
AR AR ERTIE Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses
BN E previously not recognised 51,326 170
BEF SRR Over(under)provision in respect
(BETB) of prior years 7,705 (4,858)
BB AR AT IREME)  Deferred tax on distributable earnings
FEIEFIE (M5Ec) of PRC subsidiaries (Note ¢) (13,977) (22,053)
FERIARMR AL R ZEE  Tax effect of deductible temporary
MIER & differences previously not recognised 21,291 =
Hith Others (259) (799)
ANFERIAR X Tax expense for the year (124,275) (347,509)

Dongyue Group Limited .~
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9. FrSwiRAx< (&)

B aE -

(@)

5% BAEEASHBEEEAATEIEMER R
WERRECTBRAR (RE(ELT]) - ILRRE
PO FHHARAR ((RESHF))  WRRE
BHREMHERARE ([REA#KE]) RILERR
EREMHERAR (REAE]) WHEBHME
BBE o |IWREBMAMHARIE ([FEE
1) BFTEBBIER15% - TEREBREERHE
A -

Fh B B I B K B 2R B S 48 /B 7R 20094F3 A 23 B
HEA - AR EBECOMEBERMSHECE - RIE
A - COMIE B Fif5m 7 7] 5 A BA 18 B 5 16 BrEX
oMz B B B BN FE R E = F R B
BR - THREBR=FZACEMCSHRALER
(TEEFBRER]) - LEEAERIERBE2007
F1ABREBYER - RIRLEMEHESR - AT
BREXAICOMIE B i MR B 220126128318 IEF
EZACEMBERELERERNEZ2013F128
31 B 1 FE IR R R 5% N PSR ©

BEVERDBREARRGEERHAELYRT
[200812815% 314 + R B & 88 B 20084F1 A1 H AT
EERFIRSROKRE - BREGMNIRERE
OB EFTEFEE) BIR7IEA R OINEHRE
EMINABZEREEIERE AR F1EMNR
TN EFTER o HB R BARD IRE T 6ET
RIEBEAARE13977,0007T (20126 : AR
22,053,000) BT AFANBE ©

IEIETE IR IF SR BRE20

REEEBRAT
—EB-=HER

9.

Income tax expense (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

©

Applicable enterprise income tax rate of 25% represents the relevant income
tax rate of Shandong Dongyue Chemicals Co,, Ltd. ("Dongyue Chemicals”),
Shandong Dongyue Polymers Co. Ltd. ("Dongyue Polymers”), Shandong
Dongyue Organosilicon Materials Co., Ltd (“Dongyue Organosilicon”) and
Shandong Dongyue Fluo-Silicon Materials Co., Ltd. (“Dongyue Fluo-Silicon")
which are the major subsidiaries of the Company. The income tax rate of
Shandong Huaxia Shenzhou New Materials Co., Ltd. ("Huaxia Shenzhou") is 15%
as it obtained the qualification as a high and new technology enterprise.

The China Ministry of Finance and State Tax Bureau issued a notice on 23 March
2009 in relation to the EIT policy on CDM. According to the notice, the profit
earned from CDM project is entitled to an exemption from EIT for the first three
years since its first profit making year and 50% reduction for the next three
years ("EIT Concession”), commencing from the time when the project starts
to earn the CDM revenue. This EIT Concession had a retrospective effect from
1 January 2007. According to the EIT Concession, the profit earned from CDM
project entitles 50% reduction of EIT for the year ended 31 December 2012 and
subjects to EIT of 25% for the year ended 31 December 2013.

According to a joint circular of Ministry of Finance and State Administration of
Taxation, Cai Shui [2008] No.1, dividend distributed out of the profits generated
since 1 January 2008 held by the PRC entity shall be subject to EIT pursuant
to Articles 3 and 27 of the Income Tax Law Concerning Foreign Investment
Enterprises and Foreign Enterprises and Article 91 of the Detailed Rules
for the Implementation of the Income Tax Law for Enterprises with Foreign
Investment and Foreign Enterprises. Deferred tax liability of RMB13,977,000
(2012: RMB22,053,000) on the undistributed earnings of subsidiaries has been
charged to profit or loss in for the year.

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 20.
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BZE2013F12A3BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

10. Profit and total comprehensive income for

FREMNR2EBABBDIR GTA) T

the year

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year has been arrived

P& IE at after charging (crediting) the following items:
20135 20124
AR¥T ARETTT
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000

2 HE B E A Short-term employee benefits 296,288 250,932
RNEF Post-employment benefits 82,460 54,829
PR 2 AR SIIBASE  Equity-settled share-based payment expense 74,962 143,047
EfhE T Other staff welfare 25,084 19,265
8 TAAS (FI5E) Total staff costs (Note) 478,794 468,073
ERRARAZ 2 FENAN Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 5,143,767 5,367,436
LJE e Depreciation of property,

e plant and equipment 552,487 555,488
BT A Amortisation of intangible assets

(FTASHERA) (included in cost of sales) 8,708 539
ZE RN & Auditor’s remuneration 3,063 2,421
b i S R F AR Net foreign exchange losses 8,205 6,855
TR FEU AR K Recognition of impairment

DERIE] on trade receivables 111 5,380
1 0] At e WK IE R (E Reversal of impairment on other receivables - (1,342)
ERRAAZ 2T R Research and development costs recognised

FER A as an expense 71,668 33,764
MWRFE Write-down of inventories

(FEASHERA) (included in cost of sales) 5,890 4,041
BEFENE® Release of prepaid lease payments 12,869 9,193
HEME - SRR Loss on disposals of property,

g plant and equipment 1,138 17,908

MizE - A LB TRABFEERME o

Note: Directors’ emoluments are included in the above staff costs.
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M. EBERFTETBRAEME

M10% (20124 : 9%) BEEREBITHAE

BABENKEMNZFMET

11. Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 10 (2012: 9) directors
and the chief executive were as follows:

2013%
2013
RiELE
BARER URGORA
kA e B HE Bx A bR L hy
ARBTR  AR%TR  ARMTR  ARETRT ARWTR  AR%TR  AR®TR
Equity-settled
Pension  share-based
Discretionary scheme payment Other
Fees Salary bonus  contributions expense benefits Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(i)
(Note)
YTES Executive Directors
RERTE Mr. Zhang Jianhong 144 6,000 3,405 - 6,982 - 16,531
BERE Mr. Fu Kwan 144 - - - - - 144
Ry Mr.Liu Chuang 144 6,000 3,355 - 7,087 - 16,586
ERmELE Mr. Cui Tongzheng 144 2,400 1,225 4 2625 2 6,400
RBALE (RO13F - M. WuTao (appointed on
3R RRELE) 21 March 2013) 108 - - - - - 108
BRERE (M2013F M. Yan Jianhua (resigned on
3AEEE) 21 March 2013) 36 100 - - - - 136
RESE Mr. Zhang Jian 144 - - - 105 - 249
BUkHTES Independent Non-executive
Directors
TRIERE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 245 - - - - - 25
fEkE Mr. Liu Yi 144 - - - - - 144
EERE Mr. Yue Run Dong 144 - - - - - 144
1,397 14,500 7,985 4 16,799 2 40,687

Mt - BISEA D RBERNEARRMETE

REEEERAF]

Note: Discretionary bonus is determined based on the individual performance of the directors.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

11. Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

(Continued)
201F
2012
RigEEE
BIMER DRI
ik i [T it 8l 53 Ethiah| st
ARETT ARETR ARSTE ARETT ARETT ARETT AR%T:
Equity-settled
Pension  share-based
Discretionary scheme payment Other
Fees Salary bonus  contributions expense benefits Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(izE)
(Note)
HITES Executive Directors
RRELE Mr. Zhang Jianhong 144 6,000 5126 - 13067 - 24337
BEXE Mr. Fu Kwan 144 = = = = - 144
ey Mr. Liu Chuang 144 6,000 3,976 - 13263 - 23383
ERBELE Mr. Cui Tongzheng 144 2400 790 4 4912 2 8252
BRERLE Mr. Yan Jianhua 144 1,000 2% - 1965 - 3135
RESLE Mr. Zhang Jian 144 - - - 1% - 340
BUFHTES  Independent Non-executive
Directors
TRBR4 Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 233 - - - - - 233
Bfesk Mr. Liu Yi 144 - = - - - 144
ERREL Mr. Yue Run Dong 144 = = = = - 144
1,385 15400 9918 4 33,403 2 60,112

MaE - BRISTEADRBERNEARBMET

SRIBRFEENRARBITREE, - EXFTH
B2 R EERTTEAASRHE R
B -

FRN - AEEVERESKAEERTAL
T AR B E N A S B S EAIMAR
SENRSABBRHE  MEZZETHRAS
I E EREEE2013F12831H IER{E
FEHTAME -

Note: Discretionary bonus is determined based on the individual performance of the directors.

Mr. Zhang Jianhong is also the Chief Executive of the Company and
his emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered
by him as the Chief Executive.

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group to the
directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
Neither the Chief Executive nor any of the directors waived any
emoluments for the two years ended 31 December 2013.
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HE2013FE1N2ANBILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

12. [EE %A 12. Employees’ emoluments
AEEBREGERHFALTER =% (2012 Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
F:=Z2) BARAEES  EHFHMER EX Group, three (2012: three) were directors of the Company whose
eI R - Esrm A (20129 - WA) emoluments are included in the disclosures in note 11 above. The
X ATHEBT emoluments of the remaining two (2012: two) individuals were as

follows:

20134 20124F
ARETT ARETTT
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
#Fre MBI Salary and discretionary bonus 4,856 4,938
RIRETEIER SR Pension scheme contributions 6 12
PR 2 AN SIIFISE  Equity-settled share-based payment expense 3,150 7,073
8,012 12,023

1E B H T T LA T 4R - Their emoluments were within the following bands:

EEAE

No. of employees
20135 20124F
2013 2012
4,000,001 7T % 5,000,000/87C  HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 1 -
5,000,001 7T 56,000,000/ 7T  HK$5,000,001 to HK$6,000,000 1 -
6,000,001 707,000,000/ 70 HK$6,000,001 to HK$7,000,000 - =
7,000,001/ 7CE8,00000087C  HK$7,000,001 to HK$8,000,000 - 2
REEEBRAA

S ZB-=EFH
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13. Earnings per share

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share attributable
to the owners of the Company is based on the following data:

20135 20124
¥ +
2013 2012
‘000 ‘000
HRERERREERRNMEFR  Earnings for the year attributable to owners
REFARREIHEAR AEG of the Company for the purposes of basic
AR (ARE) and diluted earnings per share (RMB) 465,898 713,056
HERERREE R Weighted average number of ordinary
= & A i a8 shares for the purposes of basic and
diluted earnings per share 2,119,960 2,120,552

R AR RE E2013F &20128F12 4318 1E
FEARITEBRENITEES RGN T
B At EHZ2013F F2012412A318
I FENEREER TR BERRETZE
FERR T T(E o

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the years ended
31 December 2013 and 2012 does not assume the exercise of all of
the Company’s outstanding share options as the exercise prices of
those options are higher than the average market price of the shares.

14. RE 14. Dividends
20134 20124
AR®T T AREFIT
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
FREIRGHRS Dividends paid during the year:
2012 REAMRE + ®A%0.130 2012 final dividend: HK$0.130
BT (20124 : 2011 EEREA (2012: 2011 final dividend: HK$0.400)
f& 8 - FhR0.400/47T) per share 219,428 690,876

HZE2013F12A31HILFE - EFEEZEL
180,044,000/ 7T (& f%0.0857% 7T) 2 7K HA A%
B (20124 : B E2012F12831BIEEE 2
KEAR% B 5275,672,000/8 78 © HERARE
219,428,000 (& [%0.130/8 L)) + AR B
RAE FRERERE

A final dividend of HK$0.085 per share, amounting to approximately
HK$180,044,000 in respect of the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012:
final dividend of HK$275,672,000 (HK$0.130 per share), equivalent to
RMB219,428,000, in respect of the year ended 31 December 2012) has
been proposed by the directors and is subject to approval by the
shareholders in general meeting.

Dongyue Group Limited
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15. Y15 ~ HERRRE

15. Property, plant and equipment

BT HERRE RE GRREREE HRBIR @
ARETT  ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR
Plantand Motor Furniture ~ Construction
Buildings machinery vehicles  andfittings  inprogress Total
RMBI000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMBI000
KA COST
R01%F1A18 At 1 January 2012 1072015 4699954 39727 222826 79,262 6113784
NE Additions 82423 159275 1847 17,555 342,406 603,506
g% Transfer 30,109 182953 - 24620 (237,68) -
L ERHA Eliminated on disposals (245) (52517) (894) - = (53,656)
R2012412A318 At 31 December 2012 1,184,302 4,989,665 40,680 265,001 183,986 6,663,634
HE Additions 30900 36,699 2158 19,045 454836 543,638
WE-RNEARRBA Acquired on acquisition of a subsidiary
(MizE32) (note 32) 61138 312171 1658 3522 599 384485
L Transfer 81,608 354,645 120 62663 (499,036) -
HERHEE Eliminated on disposals (1,260) (5600) (1,207) (359) - (8429)
R013E128318 At 31 December 2013 1,356,688 5,687,580 43409 349873 145,782 7583332
ZithE ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
R012F1A1R At 1 January 2012 205929 1,661,609 16,605 136,380 - 2020523
RERRY Charge for the year 52411 465,941 6,175 30961 - 555,488
L ERH Eliminated on disposals (60) (33,024) (737) - - (33821)
R0124128318 At 31 December 2012 258280 2094526 2043 167,341 - 2542190
RERRR Charge for the year 63,365 446,963 6,552 35,607 - 552487
LER IS Eliminated on disposals (364) (3788) (820 (388) = (5360)
R013F128310 At 31 December 2013 321,281 2537,701 27,775 202,560 - 3,089,317
REE CARRYING VALUES
R2013%12A318 At 31 December 2013 1035407 3,149,879 15634 147313 145782 4494015
R2012412A318 At 31 December 2012 926022 2,895,139 18637 97,660 183,986 4121444
o REEEARAT

(136 —g—=gax
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R2013F12A31H » Z&EB/ME TEFH
APEEEED FEFELAARK
151,830,0007T (20124F : A R #104,641,000
JT) °

WE - HE MERBRAERER NI EET
AERFHRFRTE - BEMARERER
BE:

BF 205 S ARER (ABE & &%)
MR B 5105
JREL 5

BRMREKE 5%

AEBERFEAES I ABHNARES
(20126128318 : A R #6,594,0007T) &
A K 4919000007 (20124 : A R #&
678229,0007T) MIIETF « HEE R FfE - AR
EEIRITERREAERIEER o

BFUNRE L ERRIETRERS -

ERE ISR M R
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BZE2013F12A3BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

15. Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had not obtained the building
ownership certificates for certain buildings with carrying values of
approximately RMB151,830,000 (2012: RMB104,641,000).

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate their cost less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings Shorter of 20 years or the terms of lease
Plant and machinery 5-10 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

Furniture and fittings 5 years

The Group has pledged buildings and plant and machinery with
carrying amount of approximately nil (2012: RMB6,594,000) and
RMB491,900,000 (2012: RMB678,229,000), respectively, to secure bank
loans and other loans of the Group.

The buildings are situated on land in the PRC and held under
medium-term lease.

Dongyue Group Limited .~
Annual Report 2013 13
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16. ERAHEE
AEBOENEE BREFIEN DT -

16. Prepaid lease payments

The Group's prepaid lease payments are analysed for reporting
purpose as follows:

20134 20124
AR¥T T ARETT
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
AIEBBFERNDHIT © Analysed for reporting purpose as:
— BNEAER — Current portion 15,272 10,909
— JERNERER — Non-current portion 562,117 379,533
577,389 390,442
22 S xEHENATRER AE20E50F Ay P EA T HfE The amounts represent the medium-term land use rights situated in
F#E o the PRC for a period of 20 to 50 years.

R AN 5= B A EUS R HATE & 4 3t /) - b (55 FR 42
B S H A R #367,0007C (20124 © AR
#495,0007T) TSN - AEBEEZIEH
fth - s AR o

R E 2 R BR E 2 E 4 A K #566,794,000
THEMES  BASENETREME
FAEEA (2012F « REHMBEFERARKE
66,438,0007T) °

REZE2012F12A831HIEFE - AEEES
25 AR H358414,0007C AL AR B IL B A
18 & H IR T HhBE e & s 2 R
(Ff3E23) » WA E 2013512 831 H I FEHE
S CEE e

RESEARAF]

Otherthan prepaid lease payment of RMB367,000 (2012: RMB495,000)
which the Group is in the process of obtaining the land use right
certificate for the medium-term leasehold land, other land use right
certificates have already been secured.

The Group has pledged prepaid lease payments with the aggregate
carrying amount of approximately RMB66,794,000 to secure bank
and other loans (2012: RMB66,438,000 for other loans) of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group transferred an
amount of RMB358,414,000 representing two parcels of lands located
in Huantai Shandong, the PRC to properties under development
for sale (note 23). There was no transfer during the year ended 31
December 2013.
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HZE2013F 128318 ILEE

17. Intangible assets

For the year ended 31 December 2013

EEHM 204 FRUERE st
ARETTT ARBT T ARET T ARETTT
Proprietary Exploration
technologies Software rights Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
5% COST
R2012%1 818 At 1 January 2012 25,051 9% - 25,147
NE Additions - = 80,000 80,000
2012F 124318 At 31 December 2012 25,051 % 80,000 105,147
=Y Additions 3,881 = = 3,881
YiE—EMB AR Acquired on acquisition of
BB A (H5E32)  a Subsidiary (note 32) 99,580 13 - 99,593
#2013F12A31H At 31 December 2013 128,512 109 80,000 208,621
#hen AMORTISATION
R201241A18 At 1 January 2012 20,109 24 - 20,133
RERRX Charge for the year 527 12 - 539
2012128318 At 31 December 2012 20,636 36 - 20,672
RFERZ Charge for the year 8,692 16 - 8,708
#2013F12A31H At 31 December 2013 29,328 52 = 29,380
RREE CARRYING VALUES
M20135F12A318 At 31 December 2013 99,184 57 80,000 179,241
2012F 124318 At 31 December 2012 4415 60 80,000 84,475

Dongyue Group Limited .~
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17.

BEE (&)
AREF AR EESNE=BE -

BT R BISE R Al B A A R E R A
REH  WIREGED BIRSEE10F K3F
E5FHEEE -

20124 - ANERE BAKR KB A R #80,000,000
TLRE=FWERBERS S AR R R {ERE
TRERHE o RIEREM 20134610 A BIHT - 1RIEFE
H B BN IR R IR B AR E - REMED
FETAEHMARE  ASEAERD
BREANER - NEBM20135F10 A KD #SHE
B EERTLEE2015510A o

RAAREFEARSHEOERESE (BA
RAAEERSBEBHEZRMEL o g
RIS A EE S A IR ANEUSBE
HeE 2L 0 ERMEE - REE201354128
JINBIEFE  AEEERERTFEEAEIR
e RIERHBELHERS - UEBHET
L o WE LI EAER - FA%E
R IE R H )R S A S BS FREAE RE
Al B 5 SR (B BT R TTRERR © 720135
127431 B & FEERNBREE A A K %80,000,000
7T (20124F = A R #80,000,0007T) * 7% M &
FERHARERBME - KR2013F128318 -
20%H) B R TIEE B B R ek RIB L #)
TR ETERS R 2014 F FEEE M - BIL - A&
A R E H T8 HAERTERE RE A9 PR 201 5EE UGS ©

. REEEABRAT
) ZB-=F4H

17. Intangible assets (Continued)

All of the Group's intangible assets were acquired from third parties.

Proprietary technologies and computer software licences have
definite useful lives and are amortised on a straight-line basis over 5
to 10 years and 3 to 5 years respectively.

During 2012, the Group acquired exploration rights of two mines
from third parties in Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region in the PRC
for a total consideration of RMB80 million. The exploration rights
expired in October 2013. According to the regulations on exploration
and mining rights in the PRC, the Group can extend the exploration
rights as long as the survey is in process and the application fee is
submitted. The Group extended the exploration rights for a period
of two years till October 2015 in October 2013.

The directors of the Company expected that the mines are
abundant with fluorspar resources, which is a major raw material for
the refrigerant business of the Group. The acquisition of the mines
will enable the Group to secure a reliable supply of high quality
fluorspar resources at a reasonable cost. During the year ended
31 December 2013 the Group has appointed experts to assess
the fluorspar resources reserve and is in the process of preparing
an independent exploration report to reasonably ascertain the
reserve. If there is any material impediments which would prevent
the Group from renewing its exploration rights or obtaining the
mining right certificates, impairment loss may be recognized. The
carrying amount of exploration rights at 31 December 2013 was
RMB80,000,000 (2012: RMB80,000,000) and there was no impairment
recognized during both years. As at 31 December 2013, 20% of the
exploration work was completed by the independent experts and
the independent exploration report is expected to be issued by the
end of 2014. Accordingly, the directors of the Company expect the
mining right certificates will be obtained in 2015.
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18. Interests in associates

20134 20126
ARBTT AREBFT
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
R BIIE E & A7 Cost of investments in associates unlisted
HIRE AR in the PRC 16,470 1,470

FEIEWEBRER - FEREU  Share of post-acquisition profits,

&2 net of dividends received 568 123
17,038 1,593

2013 KX2012F12A318 » A BB &R The details of the Group's associates at 31 December 2013 and 2012

AIMEEBLAT are as follows:

RRAR EBRRYA  RUBX ITERBY FRRORN AEBSENEMER  AEEFEREEHH IEER

Principal
Form of business Country of place of Class of Registered capital held  Proportion of voting rights Principal
Name of entity structure establishment ~ operation  share held by the Group held by the Group activity
M13F  0F 0BFE WNF
2013 2012 2013 2012
TEILHREREER ARAT E E #Mae 49% 49% 40% W BHERHEERRE
BRAR (EARE]) (a) (M)  RRLEERE
Chifeng North Dongyue New Limited liability ~ PRC PRC Registered 49% 49% 40% 40%  Productionand
Material Development Co, Ltd. company capital (Note a) (Notea)  salesof
('North Dongyue’) fluorgypsum
HEEERERAERARAR ARAT HE HE itfEe 33.33% - B3 - WERE
([EERE]) (HizEb)
Zibo Qilu Equity Investment Co, Ltd  Limited liability ~ PRC PRC Registered 33.33% - 33.33% - Equity
(‘Qilu Investment’) company capital (Note b) Investment

B5E Notes:

@) REERPEIEFTRETREAZE - BAEAR @) The Group is able to exercise significant influence over North Dongyue
EIRBZ AR EESEAEETZ AN RARES because it has the power to appoint two out of five directors of that company
FHMRE o under the Articles of Association of that company.

(b) AEBEENEEBRETEEATE  BAEE (b) The Group is able to exercise significant influence over Qilu Investment

BIERZAABERANZEZ AR =RESF
FhH—% o under the Articles of Association of that company.

because it has the power to appoint one out of three directors of that company

Dongyue Group Limited
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18. REFE QRIS ()

M2011F2 8188 AR AINKMTBARARIAR
TRESERICTIERARHE—ZEBIE=
F IR - AL A RE - REE20126F
NAJNBILFE  EFRENIMELRHBA
IR #2,000,0007T # 11 = A & #3,000,0007T
NS B E AR L BlrA1 k)5 R E ARSI
& 7R AR #490,0007T © FA20135F12 4318 -
REBE I 75 R EFFF49% (20124 : 49%)
Pt - WHIERARER —KB & QAR

>< o

E\

201382158 * XA RIKB AR REL
TH—FZBIE=FET  KLBEERE -
H a3 E A A A RS0,0000007T - REE
2013 12A31BIEFE - EREEEARKE
45,000,000 FEMEARE T - HRARE
E5x & A R%150000007T ° AEEFHHH
BN E3333%E R AR E AR AR —K
fE N RINED - ERIREH TEMERA
R 55,000,000 # R AN B 7201562 A 19H
ZHIZAT e REETRENRBEBIRENEL
B FER  AEEHREEEERIRE40%8
IRt o BEARAERNFITHTINHIEES o BIR
ERRERNABERKE  WEEFBES L

BURMRBEEBEREE LA - Bt - 20135
REBEDEEEBREWBERAET5123333%

SESTE

PrARE R AR AEREZN L FhR A MR
RAER °

. REEEABRAT
) ZB-=F4H

18.

Interests in associates (Continued)

On 18 February 2011,
Chemicals Co. Ltd,, a subsidiary of the Company, entered into an

Inner Mongolia Dongyue Peak Fluorine

agreement with an independent third party to establish North
Dongyue. During the year ended 31 December 2012, North Dongyue
increased its registered capital from RMB2,000,000 to RMB3,000,000
and the Group injected an additional capital of RMB490,000 in North
Dongyue in proportion to its equity interest. As at 31 December 2013,
the Group holds 49% (2012: 49%) equity interest in North Dongyue
and accounts for the investment as interest in an associate.

On 15 February 2013, Dongyue Chemicals, a subsidiary of the
Company, entered into an agreement with an independent third
party to establish Qilu Investment with a registered capital of
RMB50,000,000. During the year ended 31 December 2013, registered
capital of Qilu Investment amounting to RMB45,000,000 was paid,
of which the Group contributed RMB15,000,000. The Group holds
33.33% equity interest in Qilu Investment and accounts for the
investment as interest in an associate. The remaining registered
capital of Qilu Investment amounting to RMB5,000,000 will be made
by the Group before 19 February 2015. Upon the Group completed
its contractual capital injection into Qilu Investment, the Group will
hold 40% equity interest in Qilu Investment. Details of the capital
commitment are set out in note 33. According to the Memorandum
of Association of Qilu Investment, the share of post-acquisition
profits depends on the proportion of actual capital contribution by
investors. As a result, the Group's share of post-acquisition profits of
Qilu Investment was calculated on a 33.33% basis in 2013.

All of the associates are accounted for using the equity method in
these consolidated financial statements.
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18. REFE A TR (E) 18. Interests in associates (Continued)

AR 15 B0 B B 75 s 2 2 B 4 U RO B 75 B R 2 Summarised financial information is set out below and were

AT o prepared in accordance with IFRSs.
EtARE North Dongyue

20134 20124

2013 2012

ARBT T ARET T

RMB’000 RMB'000

WEE Total assets 10,691 5,680

HER Total liabilities 6,638 2,430

BEFAE Net assets 4,053 3,250

AEBEREEEFE Net assets attributable to the Group 1,986 1,593

20135 20124F

2013 2012

ARBT T ARET T

RMB’000 RMB'000

Weas Revenue 10,186 6,891

B N EIER ARRIEFANEH  Profit for the year attributable to
owner of the associate 802 661

REBEIEHET Group's share of profit 393 324

Dongyue Group Limited .~
Annual Report 2013 14



(144 Zg =giy

iR A MBS HRAR MR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE2013F1N2ANBLEE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

18. REFE N RS ()

EARE ()

B BB R R OB A R s O BR
ERERINGR S M RA P HER -

18. Interests in associates (Continued)

North Dongyue (Continued)

consolidated financial statements:

Reconciliation of the above summarized financial information to the
carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognized in the

20135 20126
2013 2012
ARET ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
AT RENEEFE Net assets of North Dongyue 4,053 3,250
AEBMNILFRE Proportion of the Group's ownership
PB RS LL 1] interest in North Dongyue 49% 49%
AREERIL T RE Carrying amount of the Group's interest in
R ERE A North Dongyue 1,986 1,593
BERE Qilu Investment
2013% 20124
2013 2012
AR¥TT AREFIT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
wEE Total assets 45,158 =
HMER Total liabilities - =
BEFE Net assets 45,158 =
AEEEGEEFE Net assets attributable to the Group 15,052 =
RESEEBRAR]
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18. Interests in associates (Continued)

ESKRE (&) Qilu Investment (Continued)
2013% 20124F
2013 2012
ARETT ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
Weas Revenue - =

B N A B AFES Profit for the year attributable to

F N A owner of the associate 158 =
N E G Group's share of profit 52 =

IR RS B R BB

AR ARE

BB RNR S M RA P IER -

Reconciliation of the above summarized financial information to the

carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognized in the

consolidated financial statements:

20135 20126

2013 2012

AREBT T AREEFTT

RMB’000 RMB'000

BRI EANEETE Net assets of Qilu Investment 45,158 -
REBREBRE Proportion of the Group'’s ownership interest

Fir B e =5 tb A in Qilu Investment 33.33% =

REBREBIRE #s Carrying amount of the Group's interest in
HIAREE Qilu Investment 15,052 =

Dongyue Group Limited _~""-
Annual Report 2013 14
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19. AMEHERE

19. Available-for-sale investments

2013%F 20124
2013 2012
ARBTR AREBFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
FEEMAAT S - AR Unlisted equity securities, at cost
— IIREFRERER - Shandong Innovation Investment Co, Ltd.
BRAR] (isEa) (Note a) 2,324 2,324
— MEREEREER — Zibo ZhangDian Huitong Microfinance
BRAR ([RIEER]) Co, Ltd. (“ZhangDian Huitong")
(P 5Ea) (Note a) 66,703 26,453
— IR FEEELERE - Shandong Peninsula Ocean Blue
(I'sPOBE]) (Fff&Eb) Economic Investment Co,, Ltd.
("SPOBE") (Note b) 126,256 89,401
195,283 118,178

Fai3E EFIRERENILABBORAR
& REREPRERANRERETE - RE
EREATFENEEEEKR  AARRE
ERRERNTHER LA ETE -

B =E -

@)

ZEBRATERETMAZOFLAELE - AEE
RILERAIFT R E ERB R A Bl 59.9%H) AR 484
o REE2013F12A31BLEFE  RIEERE
FINE AN AR #540,250,0007T © R ANE BB AR A HE
1071938 INZ=15% ©

SPOBER— MMM E S EMA ML EEEE -
REZE2011F12A8318 LEFE © A A 7] ESPOBE
=] 3 3R B 17 3% - 7R #20,000,0008% SPOBERK 15 °
# £20125F12A31H + A~ & B B 72 #514,000,000
ARSPOBERR 15 + /% & 42 & %8 /4314,000,0003 7T (49
A R #89,401,0007T) ° M &, 22013512 A31
BIEFE - A% B 7R #4 T6,000,0008%SPOBERR
% EEBL T A6000000E T (WERARE
36,855,0007C) ° 720136128318 * R A GHEA
20,000,0008%SPOBER& 17 * 1 £ A% 7 # %5 #918.18%
(20124 : 18.18%) °

REEEBRAT
—EB-=HER

The above unlisted investments represent equity investments in

private entities. They are measured at cost less impairment at the

end of the reporting period because the range of reasonable fair

value estimates is so significant that the directors of the Company

are of the opinion that their fair values cannot be measured reliably.

Notes:

@)

The entities are private entities that were incorporated in the PRC. The Group
holds 9.9% of the equity interest in Shandong Innovation Investment Co., Ltd.
During the year ended 31 December 2013, additional capital of RMB40,250,000
was paid to ZhangDian Huitong and the Group's equity interests in ZhangDian
Huitong increased from 10.71% to 15%.

SPOBE is a private entity that was incorporated in the Cayman Islands. During
the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with SPOBE to subscribe 20,000,000 shares in SPOBE. Up to 31
December 2012, the Group subscribed 14,000,000 shares in SPOBE at a total
contribution of US$14,000,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB89,401,000).
During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group subscribed the remaining
6,000,000 shares in SPOBE at a contribution of US$6,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB36,855,000). As at 31 December 2013, the Company had
20,000,000 shares which represents 18.18% (2012: 18.18%) equity interests in
SPOBE.
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20. EZERIA 20. Deferred taxation
R REFTERIEERIBASBAITAT The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial

reporting purpose:

20135 20124
2013 2012
ARBFT ARKETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
RETH IR A = Deferred tax assets 166,451 116,221
RIERIEEE Deferred tax liabilities (50,164) (42,611)
116,287 73,610
AEFEBRAFEZELHEEE (BF) & The following are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised
HEHHOT : and movements thereon for the year:
KigaEsk
HENELT EEEA RBOHEH NERRE E3 T
udked  FEEE  ETER O UEER  NREER  EA(MRE  REER  AVERE At &3t
Tax
credits on
acquisition
Government  of qualified Fair value
Distributable Accrualfor ~ grantson  property adjustment
profits of PRC Deprecation ~ employee prepaidlease  plant,and  Capitalised on business
subsidiaries  allowance benefits  payments  equipment interests  Taxlosses combination Others Total

ARRTT ARETL ARETT ARMTR ARBTR ARMTR ARETn ARETT ARETR ARETR
RVBOOD  RMBOID  RMBOOO  RMBOO  RMBOOO  AVBOOO  RMBOID  RMBOOO  RWBONO  RMBOWO

M1 AR At January 2012 (92,064) 9033 %760 19411 3% (7801) - - 9705 243
BfifREEmE Dividend withholding tax paid 78061 - - - - - - - - 78061
BMBE (H1F) A (WE9)  (Charge) reditrecognised
inprofitorloss (note) (2205) 640 (29179 10622 (1) 1,246 4408 - R4S (368%)
NonEnAsA At31 December 2012 (36,056) 9673 64581 30033 2%6 (6555) 4408 - 7260 73610
ERREENH Dividend withholding tax paid 25165 = - = - - - - - 25,165
WS () A (Charge) credit recognised
(hizx) in profitor loss (note 9 (1397) 308 (12379) 0864 (1) (15) 34650 1714 (1759 3209
WE—FHBAR (H532)  Acquisiion of asubsidiary (note 32 - 1018 B 8572 - - - (27010) - (14697)
R03E12A318 At31 December 2013 (24868) 1393 5492 59469 133 (6570) 39058 (25,296) 5501 116287

Dongyue Group Limited
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20.

EERE (4)

72013F 128318 + AN & B 7] A {E K 88
AR HEMBORERATEEEN AR
432,400,0007T (20124F : A R #272,785,000
7o) o BBt E R R H A R #156,233,0007T
(20124F : AR¥17,633,00070) ) E 1B FER
REMIBEEE AN THREEHESEER
B R E A= T Al AR B BB E B E
0 AU ERSR T AR RARIBERARKE
276,167,0007T (20124 : A K #255,152,000
TT) PHERELEFIEEE - RERTIARE
BEBEEEH A R67480,0007T & A R
208,687,0007T * 9 All #% 7420174 } 20184 Z
H1 (20124F + AR ¥150,063,0007C & A R #&
105,089,0007T # 9 5l 7201645 K20174 =
H) o

BE(PBECEMEEE)  PRERBA
A)FH20084F1 A 1 B ABERENAY & 5 E R A A% 2
BURTETR o 476 B RS FRIR A0 £ kA B B
B A AW R 5 49 A R #2,269,420,0007T
(20124 © AR #2015217,0007T) FEAEHIE
FERAHRELEHERE  REASAEER
RE NI E S A R BRI - AR
RAJBET G HAR] RAS SR o

AEEYEAMBORERBEERAE -

. REEEABRAT
) ZB-=F4H

20. Deferred taxation (Continued)

At 31 December 2013, the Group had unused tax losses of
approximately RMB432,400,000 (2012: RMB272,785,000) available for
offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of RMB156,233,000 (2012: RMB17,633,000) of such losses.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in the remaining unused
tax losses of RMB276,167,000 (2012: RMB255,152,000) as it is uncertain
whether taxable profit of the corresponding group entities will
be available against which the unused tax losses can be utilised.
Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately
RMB67,480,000 and RMB208,687,000 that will expire in 2017 and 2018
respectively (2012: RMB150,063,000 and RMB105,089,000 will expire
in 2016 and 2017 respectively).

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1
January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been provided
for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary
differences attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC
subsidiaries approximately amounting to RMB2,269,420,000 (2012:
RMB2,015,217,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The Group has no other significant deferred tax assets and liabilities.
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21. Goodwill
20136 20124F
2013 2012
AR®T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
B AR COST

M ATH At 1 January 1,354 1,354

EXBRE—RWEAF Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary
(FftsE32) (note 32) 84,540 -
M12H318 At 31 December 85,894 1,354

BEITRER - AR¥84,540,0007T (2012
&) B AR 3540007T (20124F : AR
#£1,354,0007T) Z B E 5 B9 B T mER
CEEEMN  MKTPEMBAR : &5 F
MED EREE A REL B D H R E R
FHEERAR ([REHEZE] - REZE2013
F1ANBILEFE  AEBEEEERTEI R
IR R ERE o

SEWHA

EEMHAN KRB SEREEREBNE
BT iENREEEBCHANTES
S TEE TR R & = K& BhEE %16.60%5T
B AFHUENRSRERANNEE
R R - R REDEANERBITEL R
BE - BTHBBBETENTHRAER
o FREBENENEMEZ®RRHE (2
RREHEERENEEAN) BeRER
FTAE - ZBAEF DEREENANBAR
BREBBEMSEREBENTER - EEE
BE @ ZERIAELROTAE TS
BHREBMANBRAEREBETRKES
b o

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill of RMB84,540,000
(2012: nil) and RMB1,354,000 (2012: RMBI1,354,000) have been
allocated to two cash generating units (CGUs) representing two
PRC subsidiaries, Huaxia Shenzhou in the polymers segment and
Dongying Dongyue Salt Co,, Ltd (‘Dongyue Salt") in the refrigerants
segment respectively. During the year ended 31 December 2013,
management of the Group determines that there is no impairment
of goodwill.

Huaxia Shenzhou

The recoverable amount of Huaxia Shenzhou has been determined
based on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period and a discount rate of 16.60%. Cash
flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using a steady
3% growth rate. This growth rate is based on the relevant industry
growth forecasts and does not exceed the average long-term
growth rate for the relevant industry. Other key assumptions for
the value in use calculations relate to the estimation of cash flows
which include budgeted sales and gross margins. Such estimation is
based on past performance of Huaxia Shenzhou and management’s
expectations for the market development. Management believes
that any reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions
would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of Huaxia Shenzhou
to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of Huaxia Shenzhou.

Dongyue Group Limited
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22,

23.

A .

FE 22. Inventories
20135 20124F
2013 2012
ARETT ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
RATE B FE Raw materials and consumables 243,673 221,519
& Work in progress 86,997 66,779
B Finished goods 369,384 236,628
wEt Total 700,054 524,926

EHERBRZHEEYR

REZE2012F12A8318IEFE - AEEEE
BAERBIELERENEEME - EFH
FEETEIE R BIFRRE S PIRUE © Bt - iz
RAERELREAERS%ZARERABORERN
4 BRI {E A A R #358414,0007T B W 8 £ 36
HIEMNES (M6 BAERER®RZE
B o ZEXTER2012FHT - BEE
B ARH  HHERRKRAFATI

2013128318 - (ELERGBZEEME
9 AR B 49 A R #199,396,0007T (20124F :
AR #108,136,0007T) TEHA B R R4 HAR 4B
AT EARKT -

RESEARAF]

23. Properties under development for sale

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group'’s management
decided to develop residential properties for sale and the relevant
development plan had been approved by relevant authority in the
PRC. Accordingly, two parcels of land which are situated in Huantai,
Shandong, the PRC and held under a long lease, with the aggregate
carrying amount of RMB358,414,000 was transferred from prepaid
lease payments (note 16) to properties under development for sale.
The construction work was commenced in 2012. The whole project
is divided into five phases and expected to be completed in the
coming five years.

At 31 December 2013, the carrying amount of properties under
development for sale of approximately RMB199,396,000 (2012:
RMB108,136,000) are expected to be completed within twelve
months from the end of reporting period.
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24. Trade and other receivables

20135 20124
2013 2012
AR¥T ARETTT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
FEUT AR X Trade receivables 1,054,504 798,764
o REREE Less: allowance for doubtful debts (6,169) (8,304)
1,048,335 790,460
R B FIE Prepayments for raw materials 85,304 59,230
FEBURER Value added tax receivables 21,334 34,096
TREMEEENTEN Prepaid taxes arising from pre-sale
HIA of properties 30,714 -
mFE A R e FEIEAR AR R Advance to a non-controlling shareholder of
B a subsidiary 10,000 -
d K& CH M e I8 Deposits and other receivables 22,552 10,405
1,218,239 894,191

FE UG BR S B R R20134F 12 A31H = A R
811,604,0007C < F& U ZF #& (2012412 A31
B : AR#453327,0007T) © .

o B 2 1 F AR SR 3 A4
1+ 125 F 2080 3 MU ERF B B2 4
AR -

AEBRTRPZERKEREEH KA
DL ro0H - EEE —MR A0H A k1808
WEHR - RIFHZAE (JriElkzsrER A
HE) @ NEBRIRE BARTER 2 EUARER
(FBRRERHEEME) BRI DITEFIMAT

Included in the trade receivables are bills receivables amounting

to RMB811,604,000 at 31 December 2013
RMB453,327,000).

(31 December 2012:

Advance to a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary is
unsecured, charged at 2% interest rate per month and repaid

subsequent to the year end date.

Customers are generally granted with credit period of less than
90 days for trade receivables. Bills receivables are generally due
in 90 days or 180 days. The following is an aging analysis of trade
receivables, net of allowance for doubtful debts presented based on
the invoice date, also approximate the date of revenue recognition,
which are recognised by the Group at the end of the reporting

period.
20134 20124
2013 2012
ARBT T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
90H A Within 90 days 955,840 582,142
91H=E180H 91-180 days 86,345 192,914
181HZ365H 181-365 days 6,150 15,404
1,048,335 790,460

Dongyue Group Limited
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24, BWRA R B A EUGRE ()

TEFREEMIERR - ARBERAENEF
WEERTHEBEERE PN EEERNRESR
FREREE - RF8=ABEEERTR
TFFERIZMIR ° 98% (20124F : 96%) 7 180 AP
ABEZ BB EEREEEEBAENRITE
A - AEERTRFANSE - ERAK
BAGR ML IEERE -

AEBEZERRERE#HBRERRAEAAR
#523,280,0007C (20124F : A R #29,730,000
) ZBER - RIEAAEaEmMASEY
EREREREEL B E - REBW AR
FLEMBESEMERIISAER -

24. Trade and other receivables (Continued)

Before accepting any new customer, the Group conducts research
on the creditworthiness of the new customer and assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Limits and scoring attributed to customers are reviewed
twice a year. 98% (2012: 96%) of the trade receivables that are neither
past due nor impaired have the high ranking record attributable
under the research on the creditworthiness. The Group offers various
settlement terms which vary depending on the size of contract,
credibility and reputation of the customers.

Included in the Group's trade receivable balance are debtors with the
aggregate carrying amount of RMB23,280,000 (2012: RMB29,730,000)
which are past due as at the reporting date for which the Group
has not provided for impairment loss. The Group does not hold any
collateral or credit enhancements over these balances.

20134 20126

2013 2012

ARBT ARETT

RMB’000 RMB'000

91HZ=180H 91-180 days 17,130 15,059
181HE365H 181-365 days 6,150 14,671
23,280 29,730

HRAEEXNEEEZB AR RZFRR
R E - ANEERES bt IR -
ARREERRREAARERHEEL

e REEBEARAR]

Allowance of the above amount has not been made by the Group
as there has not been a significant change in the credit quality and
the amounts are still considered recoverable. The directors of the
Company consider they are in good credit quality.
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24, BIRERF R EMEUWFIE (&) 24. Trade and other receivables (Continued)

RRBBERH Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
2013 20124F
2013 2012
ARBT T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
FHEEER Balance at beginning of the year 8,304 2,924
MR AR TR E Recognition of impairment on
trade receivables 111 5,380
RATEEMEIMMEERIIE  Amounts written off as uncollectible (2,246) =
FIREERR Balance at end of the year 6,169 8,304
LA Bt A 1R AT ae U 19 e IR AR The above allowance represents impairment for trade receivables
(ERE which are considered not recoverable.
EAEEE BRI TR AN ERESIE The Group's account receivables that are denominated in currencies
Ry ZN S B FE R RSS20 T other the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set
out below:

FET HERARETT
US$'000  Equivalent to RMB'000

2013512 H31H As at 31 December 2013 18,120 110477
201212 A31H As at 31 December 2012 36,756 231,032

Dongyue Group Limited .~
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

— =
25. ZEER 25. Entrusted loans
20134 20124
2013 2012
ARBTT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
ZREER Entrusted loans 425,000 400,000
2013512 A31 B ASRIEMZ BB E = The balance represents entrusted loans to several independent
F iR A KR #8425,000,0007T (20124 @ A third parties amounting to RMB425,000,000 at 31 December 2013
R #400,0000007T) ZEEH 0 EFBIEE (2012: RMB400,000,000), which include unsecured balance of
1 45 87 A R #425,000,0007T (20124F : A RMB425,000,000 (2012: RMB300,000,000). At 31 December 2012,
R #300,000,0007T) ° 72012412 A31H + A balance of RMB100,000,000 was secured by unlisted shares of
R #100,0000007TcH &SRR S — BBV E= another independent third party. The entrusted loans bear fixed
FHFE ETRMEREIR - ZIBRTERIK interest ranging from 10.2% to 12% (2012: 10.2% to 12%) per annum
T F F R102%E12% (20126F : 102%%= with maturity of one year.
12%) &H R AR —F AT -
REBEMNTEEAD  SHITEBEAL Before accepting any new debtor, the Group conducts research on
ERETIHSE W HBEGEEAN the creditworthiness of the new debtor and assesses the potential
CFEEERATEEANEE IR - AEE debtor’s credit quality and defines credit limits by debtor. The Group
IBMTRRIB IR ABEIERERES 4R E offers various settlement terms which vary depending on the size
(T A R #70000007C 2 A R 80,000,000 of contract ranging from RMB7,000,000 to RMB80,000,000 (2012:
7¢ (20124 : A EE #20,000,0007C & A R #& RMB20,000,000 to RMB100,000,000), credibility and reputation of the
100,000,00070) &) « EEANEEREER debtor. Loans are not past due or impaired at the end of reporting
ZEMEE) o B REHIFR I B HA sk period. The directors continuously evaluate the creditworthiness
- EERFETEBIE=ANERRRT of the independent third parties and may, on a case by case basis,
WAIRE R E RS EE S - extend the repayment date on mutual agreement.
26. KRR 1TES $R1T4E6R 26. Pledged bank deposits/bank balances and
TAFFA Tim
Re cash
AEMEEEEERNEIKBETERY Pledged bank deposits amounting to approximately RMB106,320,000
B A R #106,320,0007T (20124 : A R & (2012:RMB20,570,000) have been pledged to secure the bills payables
20,570,00070) * B HIEE B EE - and are therefore classified as current assets.
2R ITERMPBITE I FH A R Pledged bank deposits and bank balances carry variable interest
B o DK IR 1T IE AR 1T 45 82 20134 rates. The weighted average effective interest rates on pledged bank
128318 i 35 TR F E 5 Bl A2.80% deposits and bank balances as at 31 December 2013 were 2.80%
(20124F : 2.80%) K0.35% (20124F : 035%) © (2012: 2.80%) and 0.35% (2012: 0.35%) respectively.
REEEBRAT
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26. Pledged bank deposits/bank balances and
cash (Continued)

The Group's bank balances that are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set

out below:
FErT HERARETT
US$'000  Equivalent to RMB'000
M2013512H31H As at 31 December 2013 11,184 68,187
720125124318 As at 31 December 2012 14,137 88,971
=, =,
27. BATERFR R H Ath B FIR 27. Trade and other payables
20135 20124
2013 2012
ARET AREBFIT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
FEfTRRR Trade payables 941,408 590,809
TR R I8 Receipt in advance from customers 62,048 60,254
FERTER T 5B (Bt sta) Payroll payable (Note a) 224,847 288,288
COMIE B FERTFRIA (FfFtb)  Payable for CDM project (Note b) - 146,047
M - R RREBEMNTIE  Ppayable for property, plant and equipment
(FfaEe) (Note ¢) 117,647 148,476
HhEATRIR Other tax payables 12,203 17,211
EYEERIBEBMAOEM  Other deposits in relation to property
RES development project 110,955 -
EHERBZ 2 EREYFERN Construction cost payables for properties
FETIREERK AR under development for sale 48,525 2,617
H et R SRR Other payables and accruals 86,748 71,788
#Et Total 1,604,381 1,325,490
B3 Notes:
@) M2013%F128318 » FEAB TEHMEIE—E AT (@) As at 31 December 2013, included in the payroll payable is a provision for

B8 A Al B THHRE S BE L A R #67,391,000
7 (20124 : AR¥E71,321,0007T) » BAEERBIEAR
SETENBAREEN 2B RESTEE )
REFAEMTRERETE - WIREHEIALRL
RitHE - HREHTEEEN —FEFHIE -
TMEIREHTREEFERMH TR -

social insurance fund for employees of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
approximately RMB67,391,000 (2012: RMB71,321,000). The amount of the
provision represents the Group's entire obligation for social insurance fund
for employees of PRC subsidiaries and is determined based on the relevant
national regulations on social insurance and calculated based on the basic
counting unit multiplied by the social insurance rate. The basic counting
unit for social insurance shall be the average wages of an employee in the
preceding year and shall not be less than the minimum limit promulgated by
the local social insurance bureau each year.
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27.

BN R R HMENRE (5)

ffeE (4) -

(b) R B AEREAR - COMIA B M65%FT 15 5B T
BRTERFE  AEEERKP BBTURE
ZED o FRAMARENE AT EBRFLMNE
% o

©  WEWE - BRRREOENTEBNEE MR
BRETRE=EARNXN » THRAFEEETA
FBHERTRR -

JFE {-F BR 3% B3 7 2= A R #5295,490,0007T (2012
F 0 AR¥E30,730,00070) Z FERTEEE o FELS
EEARAEENERRRI T FRIESER -

RBEERHTFEEERR0A - AKEE |
AR SRR EIRECR - ARRRATA B
REREEHRABE -

BIREZAH - EARFAERE ST 2520
T

27.

Trade and other payables (Continued)

Notes (continued):

(b) According to the relevant PRC regulation, 65% of the proceeds from CDM
project is belonged to the PRC government and the Group collected this
portion on behalf of the PRC government. All amounts were paid to the PRC
government during the year.

() The payable for acquisition of property, plant and equipment will be settled
three months after the completion of installation of the plant and machinery
which is recorded in the addition of construction in progress during the year.

Included in the trade payables are bills payables amounting to
RMB295,490,000 (2012: RMB30,730,000). Bills payables were secured
by the Group's pledged bank deposits.

The average credit period on purchase of goods is 90 days. The
Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that
all payables are settled within the credit timeframe.

The following is an analysis of trade payables by age, presented
based on invoice date:

20134 20124

2013 2012

AR®T ARKETT

RMB’000 RMB'000

30BN Within 30 days 686,530 423,757
31HZ=90H 31-90 days 174,941 70,257
91HZ=180H 91-180 days 52,744 62,326
181HZ=365H 181-365 days 12,929 15,724
1 ZE24F 1-2 years 8,254 8,678
HaiA2F More than 2 years 6,010 10,067
941,408 590,809

FE A BR B 46 — TH FE S W A B /8 1 B 3%
A% % B8 BR 3R 4 A R #55,464,0007T (2012412
A318 : AR®464,0007T) * B8Rk JHA30H
Neo FERBCEEHR—RAE=ZEEA -
TEH & g 2 TE YIS M FE S RN AN BR IR
JIRR90 A A °

oo, REEEARAT
e

Included in the trade payables is trade payables to two
non-controlling shareholder of two subsidiaries amounting to
approximately RMB5,464,000 (31 December 2012: RMB464,000)
which are aged within 30 days. The general credit period given
by them is three to six months. The construction cost payables for
properties under development for sale are aged within 90 days.



27. B REMENAKE (&)

AEEAEREEEER 2 EEBIAINZ
B AHE R BRSNS EL A R SRR 51 40

ERE ISR M R
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BZE2013F12A3BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

27. Trade and other payables (Continued)

The Group's trade and other payables that are denominated in
currencies other the functional currencies of the relevant group

™ entities are set out below:
TErx HERARETT
USS$'000  Equivalent to RMB'000
M2013512A31H As at 31 December 2013 1,536 9,365
2012412 H31H As at 31 December 2012 1,624 10,519
28. & & 28. Borrowings
20134 20124F
2013 2012
AR®T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
EIRIRITE R Unsecured bank loans 1,662,850 1,629,949
BEFIRITER Secured bank loans 70,379 140,725
EIRE M E R Unsecured other loans 316,450 =
EEBEMEK Secured other loans 102,885 141,424
2,152,564 1,912,098
AR AT BIRR MEEHIBREE  Carrying amount repayable:
1A Within one year 866,474 774,302
S FEDEBR2F More than one year, but not exceeding
two years 831,795 748,085
ZI2 BN ERIRSF More than two years, but not more than
five years 454,295 389,711
2,152,564 1,912,098
B DIRNREBABE TEIFA  Less: Amount due within one year shown
F|HAFRIE under current liabilities (866,474) (774,302)
15F1&FIHARIA Amount due after one year 1,286,090 1,137,796
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28. fBE (#&) 28. Borrowings (Continued)
F20135F12H31H © A K #70379,0007C As at 31 December 2013, secured bank loans of RMB70,379,000 (2012:
(20129F = A R ¥140,72500078) ) B K RMB140,725,000) were secured by the Group's buildings and plant
ARTEFHASEREHABOARYE and machinery with the aggregate carrying amount of approximately
297,422,0007T (20124 : A R #477,911,000 RMB297,422,000 (2012: RMB477,911,000) and prepaid lease payments
JC) METF - B RFEAREREERA with the aggregate carrying amount of approximately RMB2,307,000
R#2,307,0007C (20124F : &) WiEMNESE (2012: nil). The secured bank loans carry interest at 6.00% to 7.20%
AR o ZEEMFIRITE FULZF B6.00% (2012:6.65%) per annum.
Z7.20% (20124 : 6.65%) 5T 8. °
R2013F12A318  A— X /@B IEL As at 31 December 2013, secured other loan made by a financial
# B K E B 3k B 1 {8 B16,875,0003% institution represented borrowings of US$16,875,000 (equivalent
JC (#8E 7 A K #102,885,0007T) (20124 : RMB102,885,000 (2012: US$22,550,000 (equivalent RMB141,424,000)),
22,550,000% 7T (18 & M A K #141,424,000 which was secured by the Group's plant and machinery with the
)  BASBEEEBAEBEAARYK aggregate carrying amount of approximately RMB194,478,000
194,478,0007C (20124F : A R #206,912,000 (2012: RMB206,912,000) and prepaid lease payments with the
7o) M MR EUREEABNARE aggregate carrying amount of approximately RMB64,487,000 (2012:
64,487,0007T (20124F : A R #66,438,0007T) RMB66,438,000). The loan carries interest at LIBOR+3% per annum.
WIENESERER - ZEERIRMBERTT During the year, interest expense of approximately RMB3,892,000
RIZEFEINEB3%TE - TR+ AEEH (2012: RMB5,067,000) was paid and payable by the Group in relation
FAERENRENMFEAIHA/ARE to the loans.
3,892,0007T (20124 : AR¥5,067,0007T) °
HmERKRENEEEEERARYE Included in the unsecured other loans are interest free loans of
36,450,0007T ° E A KRR 1T M H B X RMB36,450,000. Other unsecured bank and other loans carry fixed
% B E MOF B B.6.00%Z29.62% (20124 and variable interest ranging from 6.00% to 9.62% (2012: 6.15% to
6.15%E7.76%) 5T 5 ° 7.76%) per annum.
AEBEESEERRREOIEA (EH The exposures of the Group's fixed-rate borrowings and the
EER) R : contractual maturity dates (or repricing dates) are as follows:
20135 20126
2013 2012
ARBTR ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
EBEE Fixed-rate borrowings
1A Within one year 169,750 57,000
ENER RS EpES In more than one year but not more than
two years 593,500 176,250
763,250 233,250

o REEEARAF
) —B—=£45%
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(H = . .
28. fBE (#&) 28. Borrowings (Continued)
gEoh - AEBRZEEBERSIAT ¢ In addition, the Group has following variable-rate borrowings:
#2013512A31H Loan amount as at
ME Fl= 31 December 2013 Interest rate
AERE124997900000  FREEFHEIN0%E5% RMB1,249,979,000 Standard lending rate plus 0% to 15%
(AFEBRMFE (current year applied rate:
6.00%%7.20%) 6.00% to 7.20%)
AR ®102,8850007T R TIRI SRS N3% RMB102,885,000 LIBOR plus 3%
R2012%12A31H Loan amount as at
MEH Fl= 31 December 2012 Interest rate
AR¥1537424000  BREEFFIEM0%RE5% RMB1,537,424,000 Standard lending rate plus 0% to 15%
(AFEEBMAE : (current year applied rate;
6.15%%7.76%) 6.15% to 7.76%)
AREE141 4240007 REBITRIZEREN3% RMB141,424,000 LIBOR plus 3%
Al R R B IEARE ST A R MR TR 2 The variable interest rates change in accordance with the standard
FEEE - REBRAERFEARBITH lending rate and the LIBOR. The standard lending rate is promulgated
o o P B ARBITEMOEENXES) - by the People’s Bank of China. The interest of borrowing at standard
BIZAIZ R E AR 5T B E R F B S E#T % lending rate will be reset when there is a change in the borrowing
E o BRI RERS ENERF BB rate promulgated by the People’s Bank of China. The interest of
REEZEEFZE - borrowings at LIBOR is reset on a quarterly basis.
FEFIENRFEAEIERS ° Interest is repriced every 3 to 12 months.
EBRFIE (BERAEFER) SEMAT The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal to

contracted interest rates) are as follows:

2013% 20124F
2013 2012

B FI= Effective interest rate;
ELEE Fixed-rate borrowings 6.00% t0 9.62% 6.15% t0 6.65%
FEEE Variable-rate borrowings 3.71%t0 7.75% 3.74% to 7.76%

Dongyue Group Limited .~
Annual Report 2013 (139



160"

o
o8

Note

BTSRRI RE

s to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE2013FE1N2ANBILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

28. B & (&) 28. Borrowings (Continued)
AR EE B H e BB LI B’ 5I(E The Group's borrowings that are denominated in currencies other
BWASEEEHTINT than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set
out below:
TErT HERARBTT
USS$'000  Equivalent to RMB'000
R2013%F12H318 As at 31 December 2013 16,875 102,885
72012412 A31H As at 31 December 2012 22,550 141,424
TR AKRERFEHEHARKR123,500,000 During the year, the Group obtained new unsecured short-term
7 (20124 : AR¥142,000,0007T) YT I bankloans in the amount of RMB123,500,000 (2012: RMB142,000,000),
HREHRITENR - 28R ARR684,500,000 unsecured long-term bank loans in the amount of RMB684,500,000
7t (20124 © AR¥663,0000007T) KB HR (2012: RMB663,000,000) and unsecured other loans in the amount of
RHRITEFAREE A ARIE316450,000 RMB316,450,000 (31 December 2012 nil).
7 (2012FF128318 : T) HEERRHR
TER -
RBEHRKR  AEBEUTADRERS As at the end of the reporting period, the Group has the following
= undrawn borrowing facilities:
20134 20124
2013 2012
AR%TR ARETTT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
R1EREIE Expiring within one year 4,369,700 4,483,220
8381 F 2 HA Expiring beyond one year 290,000 850,000
4,659,700 5,333,220
RESEEBRAR]

S ZB-=EFH
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29. IEZEW A 29. Deferred income
BRI AFE B BT S 5 - s R - Deferred income represents government grants received in respect
REEFZEENAMIRE FAZE RFEH of property, plant and equipment, costs incurred by the Group in
TES B HFHAL © relation to development activities and the prepaid lease payments

for existing office and plant.

FRREERAREB AT - Movements of deferred income during the year are as follows:
20135 20124
2013 2012
AR¥T AREBFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
IS DRRE At 1 January 207,868 175,244
NE Additions 29,402 40,881
WiE —RMEB AR (FHaE32)  Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 32) 34,288 =
EREEAR Release to profit or loss (12,384) (8,256)
R12A318 At 31 December 259,174 207,869
REREFER DTN T Analysed for reporting purposes as:
20135 20124
2013 2012
ARETR ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BNERER Current portion 12,797 8,256
FEENERES Non-current portion 246,377 199,613
259,174 207,869

Dongyue Group Limited .~
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30. IR 30. Share capital
RGHEAR [} &N
Number of shares Share capital
Fil ARBFTL
‘000 RMB'000
BROBTHERER Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
ETE Authorised:
20129 K% 2013F1 A1H At 1 January 2012 and 2013 and
AK2013F12A31H 31 December 2013 4,000,000 382,200
BEEITRARE Issued and fully paid:
201291 1B & At 1 January 2012 and
2012412 A31H 31 December 2012 2,120,552 201,111
fEm Kt aEARk ey (PREE) Shares repurchased and cancelled (Note) (1,233) (98)
20135124318 At 31 December 2013 2119319 201,013
Mz : FR - AREIEBEBHARIAER D RIEE Note: During the year, the Company repurchased its own shares through The Stock
HEARFBHDAT : Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as follows:
FR0.1BITH BRERE ERARE
LERYE Price per share Aggregate
No. of ordinary BS BiE consideration
AEDEEv) Month of repurchase shares of Highest Lowest paid
HK$0.1 each HKS HKS HKS
24/06/2013 24/06/2013 300,000 2.99 297 894,000
25/06/2013 25/06/2013 633,000 296 292 1,858,860
03/07/2013 03/07/2013 300,000 298 297 893,000
A BRI R 2 5 8H o The above shares were cancelled upon repurchase.

B 2 1 42 & 583,645,8607%8 7T (FH F R 47 A R #2,898,000

7T) LARE[E] AR 1p was paid to repurchase the above shares.

FA - BEARAMBRRBEE  HEXBEEARRIE

] ETIES © Company’s listed securities during the year.

e REEEBRAT
(162} —g =R

The total amount of HK$3,645,860, equivalent to approximately RMB2,898,000

None of the Company'’s subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
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20134 N 20124F12 8318 » HXAREE
ATEEASHEET 2 TR B IR H B i R 1 T {5 B PR A
WL R AT IR o
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31. Share-based payments

The Company’s Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and Share Option
Scheme (the “Schemes”) were adopted pursuant to a resolution
passed on 16 November 2007 for the primary purpose of providing
incentives to directors and eligible employees. Under the Schemes,
the board of directors of the Company may grant options to eligible
employees, including directors and employees of the Company and
its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company.

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, none of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

At 31 December 2013, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under
the Share Option Scheme was 142,800,000 (2012: 145,600,000),
representing 6.74% (2012: 6.87%) of the shares of the Company in
issue at that date.

Dongyue Group Limited "=
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31. BURHB X AHFE ()

FERENIEEERIFRNT -

31. Share-based payments (Continued)

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

J - E5R

REHAH
B AR 3 R L HHE HEH 1TEHR TEE A FE
Fair value
Date of Exercise at grant
Option type grant Vesting period Exercise period price date
B RESHEl
Share Option Scheme:
BRTEERERE
Options to directors
FERRREA 01/06/2011 01/06/2011201/06/2012  01/06/2012Z01/06/2016 813787 306778 7T
Option A 01/06/2011 01/06/2011 to 01/06/2012  01/06/2012 to 01/06/2016 HK$8.13 HK$3.067
fERRHER 01/06/2011 01/06/2011201/06/2013  01/06/2013ZE01/06/2016 813787 320178 7T
Option B 01/06/2011 01/06/2011 to 01/06/2013  01/06/2013 to 01/06/2016 HK$8.13 HK$3.201
AR EC 01/06/2011 01/06/2011201/06/2014  01/06/2014Z01/06/2016 81387 331487
Option C 01/06/2011 01/06/2011 to 01/06/2014  01/06/2014 to 01/06/2016 HK$8.13 HK$3.314
FER%#ED 01/06/2011 01/06/2011201/06/2015  01/06/2015Z01/06/2016 8.1387T 3411787
Option D 01/06/2011 01/06/2011 to 01/06/2015  01/06/2015 to 01/06/2016 HK$8.13 HK$3.411
BETHMESNWERE
Options to other employees
fEAR EE 01/06/2011 01/06/2011Z201/06/2012  01/06/2012Z01/06/2016 81387 3067787
Option E 01/06/2011 01/06/2011 to 01/06/2012  01/06/2012 to 01/06/2016 HK$8.13 HK$3.067
RS HEF 01/06/2011 01/06/2011&01/06/2013  01/06/2013&01/06/2016 8.13787T 3201787T
Option F 01/06/2011 01/06/2011 to 01/06/2013  01/06/2013 to 01/06/2016 HK$8.13 HK$3.201
fERRHEG 01/06/2011 01/06/2011&01/06/2014  01/06/2014%01/06/2016 8.13787T 331487
Option G 01/06/2011 01/06/2011 to 01/06/2014  01/06/2014 to 01/06/2016 HK$8.13 HK$3.314
RS HEH 01/06/2011 01/06/2011201/06/2015  01/06/2015Z01/06/2016 81387 3411787
Option H 01/06/2011 01/06/2011 to 01/06/2015  01/06/2015 to 01/06/2016 HK$8.13 HK$3.411
T REEEFRAF
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31. Share-based payments (Continued)

The following table discloses the movement of the share options

RN E) during the year ended 31 December 2013:
20135 20135
1818 12A31H
i RATRE =E:-&: BT B kM 8 RATHE
Outstanding Outstanding
iE R AR Option type at1.1.2013 Granted Exercised Forfeited at31.12.2013
T T T T T
'000 '000 000 000 000
FERARREA Option A 8,500 - - - 8,500
fERR TR Option B 8,500 - - - 8,500
B tEC Option C 8,500 - - - 8,500
HE AR #ED Option D 8,500 - - - 8,500
AR Eer Option E 27,900 - - (700) 27,200
B PR AR Option F 27,900 - - (700) 27,200
HE ARG Option G 27,900 - - (700) 27,200
A% AEH Option H 27,900 - - (700) 27,200
145,600 - - (2,300) 142,300

2013 4B Exercisable at the end

Al T{E of the year 2013 71,400
T Weighted average 81377 8.13787T
118 exercise price HK$8.13 HK$8.13

Dongyue Group Limited .~
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31. URHB A KIE (&) 31. Share-based payments (Continued)

LARFI R EEHZE 20126128318 LFEX The following table discloses the movement of the share options

RN E) during the year ended 31 December 2012:
720124 201246
TH1R 12H31H
B ARITEE [ 2178 Bk i ARATE
Outstanding Outstanding
=g 2Nl Option type at 1.1.2012 Granted Exercised Forfeited  at31.12.2012
T T % % Fi%
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
RERRHEA Option A 8,500 - - - 8,500
FERHES Option B 8,500 — - - 8,500
B #EC Option C 8,500 - - = 8,500
fERR#ED Option D 8,500 - - = 8,500
RBARIEE Option E 28,450 - - (550) 27,900
BB IAEF Option F 28,450 - - (550) 27,900
ARG Option G 28,450 - - (550) 27,900
BEARHEH Option H 28,450 - - (550) 27,900
147,800 - - (2,200) 145,600

2012 48 s Exercisable at the end

A[4T{E of the year 2012 36,400
Nt Weighted average 81377 813787
118 exercise price HK$8.13 HK$8.13

REFEHBE - E5rR2011FE6 B 1 BREHE
RS A A FEAE %) B A R #5405,174,0007C °
RNEBENA N - RETERECEER

e

HE2013F12A8318 IEFE - N&EE
AAREREMNEREREZASIARE
74,962,0007C (20124F : A R #143,047,000

JL) °

RESEARAF]

The estimated fair values of the options granted on 1 June 2011 at the
date of grant was approximately RMB405,174,000. These fair values
were calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.

The Group recognised the expense of RMB74,962,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2013 (2012: RMB143,047,000) in relation to share
options granted by the Company.
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32. Acquisition of a subsidiary

On 21 February 2013, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
acquired 100% interest in Huaxia Shenzhou from independent third
parties for the expansion of the Group’s Polymers business in the
PRC. Huaxia Shenzhou is principally engaged in the production and
sale of a variety of fluoropolymer fine chemicals, which is related to
the reporting and operating segment of “Polymers” of the Group.

EEBENRE Consideration transferred
ARETIT
RMB'000
e 590,000

U B8 = 38 48 B8 Ak A8 A R #5500,0007T B 48 Uk
BAAFHR  THRREERERARAS &
AR A B R EMEERARE [1TTEHE
X IETF o

RUBRRRCEERAE

Acquisition-related costs amounting to RMB500,000 have been
excluded from the cost of acquisition and have been recognised
directly as an expense in the period and included in the
"administrative expenses” line item in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Assets and liabilities recognised at the date of

acquisition

AREEFTT

RMB'000

M - W R Property, plant and equipment 384,485

BEYX  KEREE2TENTE Prepayments for purchase of property,

plant and equipment 4,055

BREE — FEREBEH Prepaid lease payments — non-current portion 30,339
mREE Intangible assets 99,593
FERIRE E Deferred tax assets 12,313
WITHEBREIRE Bank balances and cash 39,706
JE AT R K R L At R R IE Trade and other receivables 144,809
=& Inventories 80,312
RS — mEED Prepaid lease payments — current portion 961
BHEARITIER Pledged bank deposits 56,500
JREASH R K ELAth A5 038 Trade and other payables (156,812)
HMIREE Tax liabilities (6,853)
&K Borrowings (122,650)
RN A Deferred income (34,288)
FERIER R Deferred tax liability (27,010)
505,460
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32. WIB—EME AT (&) 32. Acquisition of a subsidiary (Continued)

REfEEHRICEERER ()

JREE LT B R e Lt R WS R TE A U R B R A
EAAREE144,809,0007T ° FTEBMZEE
U BR SR % HAth B W SR IB Y & A0 48 & BB UK
8 B H5 A R #144,809,0007T ° FAUKEE B &7
AR E N ENR SR EMNREGBTA

Assets and liabilities recognised at the date of
acquisition (Continued)

The fair value of trade and other receivables at the date of
acquisition amounted to RMB144,809,000. The gross contractual
amounts of those trade and other receivables acquired amounted
to RMB144,809,000 at the date of acquisition. The best estimate at
acquisition date of the contractual cash flows not expected to be

= ° collected amounted to nil.
WEEEZEHE Goodwill arising on acquisition
ARBFT
RMB'000
BEEERE Consideration transferred 590,000
B BRI A BRI EEREL Less: recognised amount of identifiable
EFE(100%) net assets acquired (100%) (505,460)
WEEEE 2 mE Goodwill arising on acquisition 84,540

BRAFRABEENRLEE WRBEE
HMAELRE - I EHZENKEER
BREEERRBRMENNE - Wk - K
KmEERMNEBMANBEBATER S
B AN FNETT A BRETLEEL
HERRARAE - eI AT B R B ) R ©

Goodwill arose on the acquisition of Huaxia Shenzhou because the
cost of the combination included a control premium. In addition,
the consideration paid for the combination effectively included
amounts in relation the benefit of expected synergies, revenue
growth, future market development and the assembled workforce
of Huaxia Shenzhou. These benefits are not recognised separately
from goodwill because they do not meet the recognition criteria for
identified intangible assets.

T8 HA bt TR U B B A 2 R B T R YRR B AR

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition is expected to be
deductible for tax purposes.

WIEEEMNBR ER HFHE

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition

AREEFIT

RMB'000

EXAEeRE Consideration paid in cash 590,000
A T EEIR & R ERIR £ E B A Less: Cash and cash equivalent balances acquired (39,706)
550,294

o BFEEMARAT
(168 —g_ =ty
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WRSERHAREXEZTE

HZE2013F12A3 B LFE 2 afBiERE
=B M A R #120,745,0007T © & 22013
FNANBIEFEZ WS EREEESA
A R#610,770,0007T ©

MREZE2013F 128318 L FERKRKEE
FWHEEB A - BIREBERNAREEAA
R 6,856,600,0007T & & £2013412H31H
LEF E R B i A A R #5444,029,0007T © Utk
HEEERHMEEZRZ A% AU RBERUE
A B R AR B R R A SR E B R AT
Bz Wam RIS EHEE - MEBERRKESE
ZTEA o

KRR E B9 2 1 B R F an s 1 Uk
MEEASEZ [HE] K lark - &
SREME - KB MRELETLEERWE
RHZERATETEYE R RBRER
BV EETE RN -

ERE ISR M R
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BZE2013F12A3BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

32. Acquisition of a subsidiary (Continued)

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group

Included in the profit for the year ended 31 December 2013 is
RMB120,745,000 attributable to Huaxia Shenzhou. Revenue for the
year ended 31 December 2013 includes RMB610,770,000 attributable
to Huaxia Shenzhou.

Had the acquisition of Huaxia Shenzhou been effected from at the
beginning of the year ended 31 December 2013, the total revenue of
the Group would have been RMB6,856,600,000 and the profit for the
year ended 31 December 2013 would have been RMB444,029,000.
The proforma information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed at the beginning of the interim period, nor is it
intended to be a projection of future results.

In determining the ‘pro-forma’ revenue and profit of the Group had
Huaxia Shenzhou been acquired at the beginning of the interim
period, the directors calculated depreciation and amortisation
of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets based on
the recognised amounts of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets at the date of the acquisition.

Dongyue Group Limited .~
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33. H&iE

20135128318 » NEE MR (E R K AE

33. Commitments

At 31 December 2013, the Group had outstanding commitments as

N follows:
20135 20126
2013 2012
ARET ARETTT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
BRI - Capital commitments:
BRANIBYR - #EERRER  Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition of
BARZMN - BETAERE property, plant and equipment contracted
ire IR N for but not provided in the consolidated
financial statements 296,242 54,939
BRAREBR AR ENE AR Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition
it BETRERERS of equity investments contracted for but
MRS IR R N not provided in the consolidated financial
statements - 37,713
BRARHEIREIR B H9E AN - Capital expenditure in respect of the
BRI ABERTELRE B 75 assessment of the exploration projects
MR AN contracted for but not provided in the
consolidated financial statements 4,248 -
BN —FMERAERTE Capital expenditure in respect of capital
MEARZH - BERTAMER contribution of interest in an associate
Tefr e B R N contracted for but not provided in the
(BftzE18) consolidated financial statements (note 18) 5,000 =
305,490 92,652
H A Other commitment:
BREREREZERYE  Construction commitment contracted in
BWEARLH - BaTRER respect of properties under development
iR e W mR NEE for sale contracted for but not provided in
the consolidated financial statements 81,004 201,087
386,494 293,739
RESEEBRAR]
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34. HEHRIE 34. Lease commitments
REBEREBEA The Group as lessee
20135 20124
2013 2012
ARET ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
FAENELEHEREEE  Minimum lease payments paid under
NP/ operating leases during the year:
SUES Premises 262 437
HE LM Leasehold land 6,698 6,740
6,960 7177
RIEBBR - AEBERE ST HEEL 2 At the end of the reporting date, the Group had commitments for
ExEHExEESNR - EREHBERM future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
T @ leases which fall due as follows:
201345 20124
2013 2012
ARETR ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
TR Within one year 6,843 6,330
F2FEFESF (BEBEREME) In the second to fifth years inclusive 26,370 24,633
HRiBSF Over five years 71,365 71,991
104,578 102,954
KEHENREZBASBEREE T THE Operating lease payments mainly represent rentals payable by the
EEE o MR T RAHA204F o Group for certain land. Leases negotiated for an average term of 20
years.

Dongyue Group Limited .~
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35. BEALERS

FA - BREEMBHRRAEIEID -

LETTIIBEALRS :

(a) BEERMHE

nts

35. Related party transactions

REH Other than set out in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group entered into the following related party transactions during
the year:

(@) Purchase of raw materials

2013 20126

2013 2012

ARBT T AREFTT

RMB’000 RMB'000

IR 2 Non-controlling interests 3,381 5,830

(b) EEEEASHMH

(b) Compensation of key management personnel

FRN - EZNEMFTEEIEAE NN The remuneration of directors and other members of key
ST : management during the year was as follows:

20135 20124

2013 2012

AR¥T ARBETTT

RMB’'000 RMB'000

SRS EEp Short-term employee benefits 33,330 38,139

RKAET Post-employment benefits 20 20

RTESE - TBITHAB R Share options granted to directors,
FEEE NS RERE chief executive and key
management personnel 24,779 48,335
58,129 86,494

36. BRIKRBERIFTE

36. Retirement benefits plans

REEEREAEES T B & B 75 BT & The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of
ENBERRANENGFENKE - NEBER state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the
STEMRETEOL (RFMAATHE) - respective local governments in the PRC. The Group is required to

ERBREMNNES - NAEEAKE

B FERTEIENEE K -

o REEMARAT
(172 —g_ =gy

—H{EE contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs to the schemes to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
these schemes is to make the specified contributions.
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37. Particulars of subsidiaries of the Company

ERRIRER BRfT /i ARRFSHA LA ARAFERE
W2 A& 78 25 /B FrisRpEs  BREBERA E# B Bl TEEHR
Country of Paid up issued/
incorporation registered Proportion ownership interest Proportion of voting
orregistration/  Class of ordinary share held by the Company power held by
Name of subsidiary operations share held capital Directly Indirectly the Company  Principal activities
2013F  2012F  2013F  2012F  2013F 20128
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Fr % % % % % %
'000 % % % % % %
RERAT i &R AR¥641360  100.00 10000 - - 10000 10000 HERHERDELSE
Dongyue Polymers PRC Registered capital RMB641,360 Manufacture and sale of
polytetrafluoro-ethylene
RE(LT e &R AR340000 - - 10000 10000 10000 10000 SERHERLE
Dongyue Chemicals PRC Registered capital RMB340,000 Manufacture and sale of
refrigerants
REHZ i &R AR%80000 - - 6000 6000 6000 6000 AERHEH
(20125 :
AR¥70,000)
Dongyue Salt PRC Registered capital RMB80,000 Production and sales of
(2012: RMB70,000) salt
RERERMELIARAR &R AR¥I0000 2500 2500 7500 7500 10000 10000 4ERBERE
Dongying Dongyue Precision  PRC Registered capital RMB10,000 Production and sales of
Chemicals Co, Ltd bromine
RERE i &R ARB400000 6979 6979 1343 1343 8322 830 HERHERREAH
Dongyue Fluo-Silicon PRC Registered capital RMB400,000 Manufacture and sales of
methane chloride
HERERRERAR A &R AR #200000 - - - B2 - B2 HERRERANRE
CiED)
Zibo Dongyue Lvyuan PRC Registered capital RMB200,000 Manufacture and sale of
Co, Ltd. (Note a) liquid chlorine and alkali
REFHE i FHHER ARE650000 8400 8400 1600 1600 10000 10000 BUERHEHEENH
Dongyue Organosilicon PRC Registered capital RMB650,000 Manufacture and sale of
organosilicon materials
NEERECEANLT FHHER ARH70000 - - 5100 5100 5100 5100 BMEREEEAELET
BRAR
Inner Mongolia Dongyue Peak PRC Registered capital RMB70,000 Manufacture and sale of
Fluorine Chemicals Co,, Ltd. anhydrous fluoride
HEZABEFRAR A &R AR#2000 - - 8000 8000 8000 8000 HERHELR
Chifeng HuaSheng Mining ~ PRC Registered capital RMB2,000 Manufacture and sale of
Co, Ltd. fluorite

Dongyue Group Limited
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37. X AFIMBARFE (&)

37. Particulars of subsidiaries of the Company

(Continued)
ERRIRER BRfT /i ARRFSHARRRELA ARAFERE
WEAR AR 25 /B FEROER  BREERE EE B 1547 TEEH
Country of Paid up issued/
incorporation registered Proportion ownership interest Proportion of voting
orregistration/  Class of ordinary share held by the Company power held by
Name of subsidiary operations share held capital Directly Indirectly the Company  Principal activities
2013F 20126 2013F  202F  2013%F  2012%
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
T % % % % % %
‘000 % % % % % %
AREREANHERAR TE HMER AR#50000 - - 10000 10000 10000 10000 EERHELE
Inner Mongolia Dongyue PRC Registered capital RMB50,000 Manufacture and sale of
Fluorine Chemicals Co, Ltd. fluorite
WERREIA AMH i A ER AR%115700 - - 5100 5100 5100 5100 HERHEEAELE
=[N
Shandong Dongyue Wenhe ~ PRC Registered capital RMB115,700 Manufacture and sale of
Fluorine Chemicals Co,, Ltd. anhydrous fluoride
WRREHAEEXERAR HE &R AR¥80,000 - - 10000 10000 10000 10000 MIEHE
Shandong Dongyue Union ~ PRC Registered capital RMB80,000 Property development
Property Co,, Ltd.
BEARERRESERAR &R AR¥5,000 - - 10000 10000 10000 10000 WHELIER
Huangtai Dongyue PRC Registered capital RMBS5,000 Sale of chemical products
International
Trade Co, Ltd.
Z24 (firb) HE AR AR10000 - - 100.00 - 100.00 - HEREEEAE
BAFHLER
Huaxia Shenzhou (Note b) PRC Registered capital RMB10,000 Manufacture and sale of
fluoropolymer

RER - HBRRBEETEAERES
PR BB AR REINERSR -
i

@) MERERARERARAREARNZENEBA
A » BR2013F 11 A1 AR ERES G - Bt -
SEERERREMR A AR

(b) FEEMAREE2013F12A31B I FERAER
Uil o FEIEFRATE32 ©
REEEBRAA

—EB-=HER

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of
the year. All the PRC subsidiaries are domestic enterprises.

Notes:

(@)

Zibo Dongyue Lvyuan Co,, Ltd, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Dongyue Fluo-
Silicon, has been merged by Dongyue Fluo-Silicon on 1 November 2013. As a
result, Zibo Dongyue Lvyuan Co,, Ltd. was dissolved.

Huaxia Shenzhou was acquired by the Group during the year ended 31

December 2013. Details are set out in note 32.



38. A A B AR R RBEE

ERE ISR M R
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BZE2013F12A3BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

38. Summarised statement of financial position

of the Company
20134 20126
2013 2012
AR®T T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
M - WE MR Property, plant and equipment - 2
RIERRMIRE Investments in subsidiaries 1,523,873 1,523,873
AMEHERE Available-for-sale investments 126,250 89,401
RITEHRNIRS Bank balances and cash 10,966 23,102
HEftmEh&E Other current assets 216 193
HEfymEhaE Other current liabilities (95) (350)
1,661,210 1,636,221
A& (BffEE30) Share capital (note 30) 201,013 201,111
& (M) Reserves (Note) 1,460,197 1,435,110
1,661,210 1,636,221
B3E - Note:
REES) : Movement in the reserves:
RIPRE BRERE IR REEF st
Share
Share option Capital Retained
premium reserve reserve earnings Total
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARBTR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
20124F1 A1 B &8k Balance at 1 January 2012 1,238,838 127,778 200,344 (135,006) 1,431,954
FRmF REEBAERE Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year - - - 550,985 550,985
BRE Dividends paid - - - (690,876) (690,876)
TERIRAEAEE 2 LARR (D Recognition of equity-settled
XA FRIE shared-based payments - 143,047 - - 143,047
2012412 A31 B #s 4 Balance at 31 December 2012 1,238,838 270,825 200,344 (274,897) 1,435,110
FREF REEBAEE Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year - - - 172,353 172,353
BEARE Dividends paid = - = (219,428) (219,428)
TERIRREAEE 2 LARR 9 Recognition of equity-settled
S FRIE shared-based payments - 74,962 - - 74,962
BE o) K w $H AR 15 Shares repurchased and cancelled (2,800) = = = (2,800)
2013512 A31 B 464 Balance at 31 December 2013 1,236,038 345,787 200,344 (321,972) 1,460,197

Dongyue Group Limited .~
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Five-Year Financial Summary

EEREE Assets and liabilities
®12A31H
As at 31 December
20095 20105 20114 20124 20135
ARBTT ARETRE ARBTTE AR®TrT AR®Tx
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
BEMR Total Assets 5,884,274 6,898,115 9,128,932 8777989 10,032,631
aERsE Total Liabilities (3,639,001) (4,031,527) (4,053,636) (3,551,131)  (4,521,803)
2245273 2,866,583 5,075,296 5,226,858 5,510,828
RATEEAELER  Equity attributable to
Owners of the Company 2,014,646 2,674,266 4,783,088 4948315 5,266,849
FERIR AR RS Non-controlling interests 230,627 192,322 292,208 278,543 243,979
2,245,273 2,866,583 5,075,296 5,226,858 5,510,828
B 7 e 4 Financial results
ll\,
BZE12A3BLEE
Year ended 31 December
2009%F 20104 20115 20124 20135
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTT AR%TR
(BT3E) (Bt3E)
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
(Note) (Note)
(g Revenue 3,544,447 5,964,322 10,165,200 7,050,822 6,782,814
SHEM AR Cost of sales (3,024,006) (4,320,670) (6,126,913) (5367,436)  (5,686,752)
EA Gross profit 520,441 1,643,652 4,038,287 1,683,386 1,096,062
Hpng A Other income 32,347 35,859 66,058 117,817 178,186
DR HERY Distribution and selling expenses (154,742) (171,279) (211,849) (209912) (253,976)
THRAX Administrative expenses (148,635) (318,075) (590,984) (367,203) (298,483)
7 REER Y Research and development expenses (5,807) (11,517) (9,603) (33,764) (71,668)
& AR Finance costs (113,447 (113,923) (150,277) (136,076) (89,065)
Tt A Bl 5EE Share of results of associates 1016 1,192 (201) 324 445
BR%E AT A Profit before tax 131,173 1,065,909 3,141,431 1,054,572 561,501
FrEfHER (%) Income tax credit (expense) 22,796 (284,412) (880,550) (347,509) (124,275)
FEERNK Profit and total comprehensive
ZHRAEEE income for the year 153,969 781,497 2,260,881 707,063 437,226
T 5% 75 A & A Profit and total comprehensive
REEWA (BiX) 4% :  income (expense) attributable to:
KARER A Owners of the Company 165,303 733,869 2,189,861 713,056 465,898
FEiE AR AR R i 2 Non-controlling interests (11,334) 47,628 71,020 (5,993) (28,672)
153,969 781,497 2,260,881 707,063 437,226

Mzt ETHRBEFCEHS

& o

RESEARAF]

B URA

T EL VT

Note:

presentation format.

Certain figures have been reclassified to conform to the change in the current year's
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Corporate Information

Registered office

Offshore Incorporations (Cayman) Ltd.
Floor 4 Willow House

Cricket Square PO. Box 2804

Grand Cayman KY1-1112

Cayman Islands

Head office and principal place of business in the PRC

Dongyue International Fluoro
Silicone Material Industry Park
Zibo City

Shandong Province the PRC

Principal place of business in Hong Kong

Flat 02, 15th Floor, AXA Centre
151 Gloucester Road

Wan Chai

Hong Kong

Website address

www.dongyuechem.com

Directors

Executive directors

Mr. ZHANG Jianhong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. FU Kwan

Mr. LIU Chuangi (President)

Mr. CUI Tongzheng (Vice President and Chief Financial Officer)
Dr. WU Tao

Mr. ZHANG Jian

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen
Mr. LIU Yi
Mr. YUE Rundong
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Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands
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Company secretary

Mr. NG Kwok Choi

Authorized representatives

Mr. FU Kwan
Mr. NG Kwok Choi

Audit committee

Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen (Chairman)
Mr. LIU Yi
Mr. YUE Rundong

Remuneration committee

Mr. LIU Yi (Chairman)
Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen
Mr. ZHANG Jianhong

Nomination committee

Mr. ZHANG Jianhong (Chairman)
Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen
Mr. LIU Yi

Corporate Governance Committee

Mr. ZHANG Jianhong
Mr. LIU Chuangi
Dr. WU Tao

Principal share registrar and transfer office

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands
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Corporate Information

Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer
office

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Principal bankers

China Construction Bank Corporation
Huantai Branch

134 Jianshe Road

Zibo City, Huantai

Shandong Province, PRC

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Huantai Branch

7 Zhangbei Road

Zibo Huantai

Shandong Province, PRC

Bank of China Limited
Huantai Branch

48 Heng Huan Road
Zibo City, Huantai
Shandong Province, PRC

Agricultural Bank of China Limited
Huantai Branch

101 Zhongxin Road

Suo Zhen

Zibo City, Huantai

Shandong Province, PRC

Bank of Communications Company Limited
Zibo Branch

100 Jin Jing Road

Zhang Dian Qu

Zibo

Shandong Province, PRC
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China Everbright Bank Company Ltd.
Zibo Branch

107 Liu Quan Road

Gaoxin District

Zibo

Shandong Province PRC

Industrial Bank Co., Ltd.

Zibo Branch

103 Liu Quan Road

Gaoxin District

Zibo Shandong Province PRC

Investor relations consultant

A-World Consulting Limited
Unit 2401-2402, 24th Floor
Tower 2 Admiralty Centre

18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong

Auditors

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

External legal advisor

Norton Rose Fulbright Hong Kong
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